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PLACE OF INCORPORATION

Cayman Islands

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. XI Yu (Chairman and CEOQ) '
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling !

Ms. JIANG Qian ' #

Ms. LIU Yu Jie !

Mr. HON Wa Fai '

Non-executive Directors
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica
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Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong %345

Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael 2 3.46
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred 2 347

Mr. YANG Harry 23 4 #

1 Member of Executive Committee

2 Member of Audit Committee

e Member of Nomination Committee

& Member of Remuneration Committee
& Chairman of Audit Committee

© Chairman of Nomination Committee

g Chairman of Remuneration Committee

Note:

L Ms. JIANG Qian was appointed as executive director of the Company with
effect from 30 June 2022.

##  Mr. YANG Harry was appointed as independent non-executive director of
the Company with effect from 1 January 2023.

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling
Mr. HON Wa Fai

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. HON Wa Fai

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square
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P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS
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16 Wang Hoi Road
Kowloon Bay
Kowloon

Hong Kong
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17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road
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LEGAL ADVISERS
As to Hong Kong Law
Lau, Horton & Wise LLP

As to PRC Law

Beijing Yongrui Law Firm

FINANCIAL ADVISER

OCTAL Capital Limited

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of East Asia Limited

Bank of Jiangsu Co., Ltd.

Cathay Bank, Hong Kong Branch

Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

LISTING INFORMATION

Shares

The issued shares of the Company are listed and traded on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code
00436

Board Lot
20,000 shares

CORPORATE WEBSITE AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS CONTACT

Website :  www.nuigl.com
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Fax : (852)2435 3220
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During the year of 2022, the Group still have to face the uncertainties
caused by the changing containment policy against COVID-19 and the
decline in overall local market demand on handling hazardous waste
in different industries. The overall performance of the Group in 2022
was on the downtrend as compared to that in 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s revenue
decreased by 19.0% to HK$588,951,000 and the net profit decreased
by 91.4% to HK$4,564,000 as compared to the previous year.
Total EBITDA in 2022 decreased by 27.8% to HK$109,264,000 as
compared to 2021.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the profit attributable to
owners of the Company was HK$7,273,000 (2021: HK$40,419,000),
a decrease of 82.0% from 2021.

Equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 December
2022 was HK$961,677,000 (2021: HK$1,052,779,000). Total
bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2022 was
HK$97,959,000 (2021: HK$198,970,000). Cash and cash equivalents
of the Group as at 31 December 2022 was HK$270,279,000 (2021:
HK$302,074,000).

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

ﬁ% |

CHAIRMAN’S

STATEMENT
$b?( L

I present herewith the annual report
of New Universe Environmental
Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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Final Dividend

On 24 March 2023, the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.0038 per share at a payout ratio of approximately 158.6% of
the profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to express gratitudes to the continuous
supports of the shareholders among the uncertainties during the
COVID-19, which is subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM"). Upon
shareholders’ approval at the AGM, the final dividend is expected to
be payable on or about 31 July 2023 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members on 9 June 2023.

Business Prospects

The business operations of the Group will stay stable again given
the containment policy against COVID-19 would be relaxed and
the market demand would revive. The Group commits to stable
performance targets with continuous upholding the practices
of corporate governance and environmental governance. Going
ahead, the Group will continue to leverage its experience and client
portfolio of different industries in Jiangsu Province. While exploring
for new opportunities in the environmental industry, the Group will
also consider measures to mitigate possible operation risks. The
Group will remain consistently healthy on indebtedness and liquidity
and will ensure effective cash management and internal control
of its operations. Barring any uncertain economic factors and the
uncertainties left by the COVID-19, we expect the operations of the
Group’s environmental related business would be sustainable in the
long run.

Acknowledgment

I would like to express my gratitude to our customers, suppliers,
business partners, current bankers and shareholders for the
continuous support to the Group. Notwithstanding we still
encountered market difficulties and uncertain factors in 2022, | would
like to extend my thanks to our employees, my colleagues, and our
management team for their efforts to deliver the results for 2022.
We would do better and work harder for an improved results in the
forthcoming year.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
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MANAGEMENT
Discussion
AND ANALYSIS
E B E

N R D A

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS BB E Basic EARNINGS PER SHARE AND

o DiviDENDS PER SHARE (HK CENTS)
. Group revenue down 19.0% to HK$588,951,000. ;
AU T 2 19.0% Z 588,951,000 Bt o SREXBARSERES (5

(HK cents &1l
. Group EBITDA down 27.8% to HK$109,264,000. 045 2.46

EEE M EBITDA T i 27.8% £ 109,264,000 & T ©
o Profit attributable to owners of the Company down 82.0% to
HK$7,273,000.
A THEE AEMEEFT B 82.0% E 7,273,000 BT ©
J Equity attributable to owners of the Company was
HK$961,677,000 at 31 December 2022. 1.34
0.68 IO7O

RZB-ZZF+-A=+—H XA AEEAELKREE 961,677,000
BT o

1.83

o Cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to
HK$270,279,000 at 31 December 2022.
R-ZBZZF+ZA=Z+-RB 25ENREREEARELEER
270,279,000 & T ©

0.72

0.39 o8
0.24
o Basic earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company I I I .
down 82.0% to HK cents 0.24. . .
RAREAABMEERERER T 82.0% = 0.24 Bl - 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

o The Board resolved to declare a final dividend of HK cents 0.38
per share for the year ended 31 December 2022.
BB ERBE S+ A=T-HLEEZFERESR
0.38 Al °

Basic Earnings per Share
. BREAREF

Dividends per Share
. FREE

6 New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EERBA®WEDM

5-Year Grour REVENUE*

hEREMEYE

(HK$)
(&)
789,341,000

800000000

727,167,000
700000000

595,706,000

600000000
588,951,000

500000000 493,932,000
400000000
300000000
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

*  Group revenue represents the consolidated revenue from all
environmental related operations of the Group but excludes
the other revenue and other income that being included in the
segment revenue.

* AREERBIERE R EBHTERRIGAES A Kz AR E
HEEFA S B as A Bt Wk R EAKA

5-YeArR NeT PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OwNERs oF COMPANY

RERNRHE AESL ST
(HK$)
(%r)
100000000

80000000

74,386,000 ( 74,576,000

60000000
40000000 40,419,000
40,625,000
20000000
7,273,000
0000

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

SEGMENT REVENUE

5 B &

2022

2021

Provision of industrial and medical
waste treatment and disposal
services: HK$373,494,000

REIERBREDEER
B & BRT5 © 373,494,000 T

Provision of industrial and medical
waste treatment and disposal
services: HK$456,400,000

PRG3R B R W a3 e
B E IR : 456,400,000/8 7T

Provision of environmental equipment
construction and installation services:
HK$72,810,000
RERRIEBERLTERS :
72,810,000/ 7T

Provision of environmental equipment
construction and installation services:
HK$124,496,000
RERRIBEEERLTERS
124,496,000/ 7T

Provision of sewage treatment,
management services, utilities and
facilities leasing: HK$142,647,000
REFKEE  EER® - 2F
RERREHEE
142,647,000/ 7T

Provision of sewage treatment,
management services, utilities and
facilities leasing: HK$146,271,000
RESKEE  EERY - NF
RERZBHES
146,271,000/% 7T

Investments in plastic materials
dyeing operations: HK$4,249,000
BRAGEBIRE -
4,249,000 7T

Investments in plastic materials
dyeing operations: HK$4,637,000
BRACEBIRE -
4,637,000/% 7T

SeGMENT ResuLTs (PRE-TAX)

SEEE (BLa)

2022

Provision of industrial and medical
waste treatment and disposal
services: HK$20,629,000

RETELBRENEE R
BB RS : 20,629,000/ T

2021

Provision of industrial and medical
waste treatment and disposal
services: HK$46,386,000

RUIERBEEDRER
RE R : 46,386,000/ 7T

Provision of environmental
equipment construction and
installation services:
HK$(13,167,000) (loss)
RERRRIBEZERTERS
(13,167,000)7% 7T (f548)

Provision of environmental
equipment construction and
installation services:
HK$3,158,000
RERRIBEEERTERS
3,158,000/ 7T

Provision of sewage treatment,
management services, utilities and
facilities leasing: HK$30,762,000
RESKER EERHE 28
BRERREEE
30,762,000/ 7T

Provision of sewage treatment,
management services, utilities and
facilities leasing: HK$24,148,000
REUTKEE  ERRE -
RERRZREHEE :
24,148,000/ 7T

Investments in plastic materials
dyeing operations: HK$3,345,000

Investments in plastic materials
dyeing operations: HK$4,266,000

BRABEBREA : BRAEEBIRE :
3,345,000/ 7T 4,266,000/ 7T
ZECCEFR FFRREEBBERAA



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2022, the overall performance of the Group were still down-turning
as compared to that in 2021 amongst the continuous impact of
COVID-19, the stricter national control on emissions and pollutants,
and the changing local market demand of handling hazardous waste
discharged.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s revenue
decreased by 19.0% to HK$588,951,000 (2021: HK$727,167,000)
and the net profit decreased by 91.4% to HK$4,564,000 (2021:
HK$52,918,000) as compared to the previous year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the profit attributable to
owners of the Company was HK$7,273,000 (2021: HK$40,419,000),
a decrease of 82.0%.

Equity attributable to owners of the Company as at 31 December
2022 increased to HK$961,677,000 (2021: HK$1,052,779,000). Total
bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2022 decreased to
HK$97,959,000 (2021: HK$198,970,000). Cash and cash equivalents
of the Group as at 31 December 2022 decreased to HK$270,279,000
(2021: HK$302,074,000).

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Environmental Treatment and Disposal Services for

Industrial and Medical Wastes

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company’s subsidiaries
had collected from external customers for treatment and disposal in
aggregate of approximately 100,096 metric tonnes (2021: 113,346
metric tonnes) of different hazardous and non-hazardous waste from
various cities in Jiangsu Province, and the total segment revenue from
the provision of environmental treatment and disposal services for
industrial and medical wastes was approximately HK$373,494,000
(2021: HK$456,400,000).

EEES W KD

IXLRBEBEEYRREEREE

A 75

BT - F+-_A=+—HIEFE &
N A B A A A R BT B8R & (B T (ISR
EPWREREREEAR H£4100,096 A1 (=
T4 1 113,34601F) ZRE % R IERK
BEYmiEHIXNEEEYRREENEE
Bk 7 2 2> 5B UL %= 48 BB 4 /373,494,000 7T
—Z— —4F : 456,400,000 7T) °

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Waste Waste
collected Segment collected Segment
and disposed revenue and disposed revenue
WEREEREY aElE KEREERED D E K Es
metric tonnes HK$'000 metric tonnes HK$'000
A WE THExT NI FHET
Hazardous industrial waste f&& T ¥EEY) 82,553 287,654 102,914 408,252
Regulated medical waste % #IEBEEEY 14,428 82,973 7,616 45,406
General industrial solid — MR T EE R

waste and others REY R E A 3,115 2,867 2,816 2,742
Total st 100,096 373,494 113,346 456,400

The Group holds interests in two associates, with 30% equity interest
in Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste Disposal Limited* (“Zhenjiang Xin
Qu") which was licensed for landfilling 20,000 metric tonnes of
hazardous industrial waste per annum, and 30% equity interest in
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Tianyu Solid Waste Disposal Company
Limited (“NCIP") which was licensed for collection, incineration and
disposal of 38,000 metric tonnes of hazardous industrial waste per
annum in the PRC. The attributable results of Zhenjiang Xin Qu and
NCIP are accounted for on equity method and classified under the
operating segment of environmental treatment and disposal services
for industrial and medical wastes of the Group. For the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group shared a net profit of HK$2,209,000
from Zhenjiang Xin Qu (2021: shared a net profit of HK$6,164,000)
and shared a net loss of HK$9,459,000 (2021: shared a net loss of
HK$12,553,000) from NCIP respectively.

AEBARMEBE ARG EED  RETIH
EEEEERGERAR ([EIFERE]DH
B30% D  EREREBTXRKAFER
BEMEEBRAR (BRAXF] FEH30%
Hm o BRI EHEEGRIXEDS
20,000/ M8 - B EET A RPEAKS
W RENRESE BRI EEYSE38,000
R -BIINERERRFHEEEER
B EZARUER»BEASB T ERER
BEYRREEREENLEESH 2T - HE
—E-—HF+-_A=+—HItFE K&EE
2 Bl FEAE ST 37 [E M A8 F2,209,0007%8 7T (=
T —F : E(E4 716,164,000 7T) K FE(L
B AR K FH) R E5189,459,00008 7T (—F — —
& E(EIFE51812,553,0000870) ©

“ECCEER FFRREBEBRAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEE MRS M

The Group holds 65% equity interest in a sino-foreign joint venture,
Liuzhou Xinyu Rongkai Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited*
(“Xinyu Rongkai”), which was licensed for collection, incineration
and disposal of 20,000 metric tonnes of hazardous industrial waste
per annum in Liuzhou, Guangxi Province, the PRC. The attributable
results of Xinyu Rongkai is accounted for on equity method and
classified under the operating segment of environmental treatment
and disposal services for industrial and medical wastes of the Group.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group shared a net loss of
HK$13,044,000 (2021: shared a net loss of HK$4,440,000).

REBFAPINEG EDENIMNFTFLRE 2
BEMEEERAA ([FFLE]) M65%H
B ZAREFIERBEREMINKESK
£ RE - B EETF20,0002 WGk T 5
Yo AEBEBMMFRINEEZEREA
EARDHEEAEB IEX N BEREYRFE
BREENKEESH 2T HE_ZE—_—
TZA=T—HBLEFE ASBEGLFEERE
13,044,000 L (Z 2= —F : B FEHIE
4,440,000/ 70) °

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the profit margin (pre-tax)
of the Group’s operating segment of environmental treatment and
disposal services for industrial and medical wastes was approximately
5.5% (2021: 10.2%).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s combined capacity of
the licensed waste treatment and disposal facilities for the provision
of environmental treatment and disposal services for industrial and
medical wastes was summarised as follows:

EEES W KD

BE-_TE-_—_F+-_A=+—HIEFE K
SERETENBERYRREEREER
EHEEDBORAFBEERLY A55% (=ZF
——F:10.2%) °

REBEEHMR  AREREKTIENEREYR
REENBEERY < EFFRAIEDMREREE
Rz HramIBee NIRRT

2022 2021
—ZE=-= —E-—F
Annual Annual
capacity capacity
Note metric tonnes metric tonnes
FEBERN FRER
{hg=d AW NI
Subsidiaries in the PRC: RHPEIMELT :
Licensed hazardous waste TEET A fa b BE W K I
incineration facilities B4 135,400 135,400
Licensed epidemic medical waste BRI BRI BEEY
incineration facilities R 6,080 6,080
Licensed epidemic medical waste BRI ER G BEEY
detoxification treatment facilities mELFRERIE 3,300 3,300
Associated companies in the PRC: RAPBEBENT :
Licensed hazardous waste TEFT A fE b BE W I I
incineration facilities B 38,000 38,000
Licensed hazardous waste TEFT Al fa b BE ) HE 8
landfill facilities B 20,000 20,000
Joint venture in the PRC: RPBEEELE
Licensed hazardous waste TRl b BRI &
incineration facilities B3] 20,000 20,000
Combined licensed waste EBHFUBEYEER
treatment and disposal facilities BEERESHE (i) 222,780 222,780
Notes: s

(i) The combined capacity of the licensed waste treatment and disposal

facilities represents the total effective treatment and disposal quantity
of hazardous waste allowable to handle under the valid operating
permission licences with contribution to the results of the Group as at
the end of the reporting period calculated on annualised basis.

(i) The combined licensed treatment and disposal facilities above does not
include the hazardous waste landfill facilities with an annual capacity
of 18,000 metric tonnes constructed and owned by a subsidiary
situated at Yancheng, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, which is still pending
governmental approval to resume operation.

() EFUEVERREEREZHAEEE
NERFELCELEFERREPRRYAE
BXEEERMZERKEFARARIFE
BERENIBEREENGCELHE -

(i) FREFIRBREEZHARETEIE
MRFEIHEERTA—RWBARE
R ER FERIEE 518,000 A H 15 K &
YRR - RN BUTHLE - F ATk
BEE -

—ECCoEER HMFRASEERAA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Environmental Equipment Construction and Installation

Services

In 2022, the wholly-owned engineering subsidiary that principally
engaged in environmental equipment construction and installation
services has focused on its existing contract works. For the year ended
31 December 2022, total revenue recognised from the contract
works provided to external customers and to a joint venture was
approximately HK$72,810,000 (2021: HK$124,496,000) and the
segment loss margin (pre-tax) was approximately 18.1% (2021: profit
margin (pre-tax): 2.5%).

Environmental Plating Sewage Treatment Services in
Eco-plating Specialised Zone

For the year ended 31 December 2022, total revenue from the
operating segment of provision of environmental plating sewage
treatment services and provision of leasing facilities and related
utilities in the eco-plating specialised zone owned by the Group
situated at Zhenjiang, Jiangsu Province, the PRC (the “Eco-plating
Specialised Zone") was approximately HK$142,647,000 (2021:
HK$146,271,000) and the segment profit margin (pre-tax) was
approximately 21.6% (2021: 16.5%).

RIRRERE R KR

TECF AR RERARIEEERL
HREN2ETEMBRARNBAOBEENELD
IR -#HEZTE-_—_F+_A=+—HIHF
B AEERAIMBEEFER—RAEELERME
ISP FWES 472,810,000 T
— T~ —4F:124,496,000587T) © MBI D
HE IR R A A181% (ZFE = — E /AT M )E
R :25%) o

RREFEEERMIRREE S5KE
B R
BE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—BILFE #&
URPRBEIHEABEITZRASERER
([RREFHEER]) ARHEREREEISKE
EfRBREHEEREEBEEERBOL
BO I LFEL B142,647,0008 T (- F
— —% : 146,271,000/ 7T) - 5 267 A A
R E216%(ZFE=—%F :16.5%) °

2022 2021
—E-= —T-—F
Average gross floor area of factory EHEETHERE KRG
buildings and facilities available for FHEEEmE (FAK)
leasing (square metres) 101,034 103,921
Average utilisation rate of buildings W= K 5& b < T FI A &=
and facilities 96.0% 93.8%
Plating sewage handled by the SRR RKEEMATEEEFEI5K
centralised sewage treatment plant (B RA0)
(metric tonnes per annum) 348,939 428,314
Average utilisation rate of sewage EIKE BN 2 F R A E
treatment capacity 21.1% 26.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Eco-plating Specialised Zone has a total land area of
approximately 180,000 square metres, in which, office building,
factory buildings, and centralised filtering plants were built. The
office building and centralised sewage filtering and sludge treatment
plants were built with a total gross floor area of 19,560 square
metres, and factory buildings and facilities with a total gross area of
106,807 square metres and available for leasing to manufacturing
clients which undertake their plating-related operations inside the
Eco-plating Specialised Zone. The Group owns 22 factory buildings in
the Eco-plating Specialised Zone which are leased by 38 (2021: 41)
manufacturing clients as at 31 December 2022. The Group operates
a centralised plating sewage treatment plant, a centralised industrial
sludge treatment plant and customised facilities equipped for all
clients in the zone.

Investments in Plastic Materials Dyeing Business

The Group holds the equity interests in three manufacturing entities,
which principally engaged in plastic materials dyeing in the PRC, as
equity investments. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the profit
margins (pre-tax) of Suzhou New Huamei Plastics Company Limited
("Suzhou New Huamei”), Danyang New Huamei Plastics Company
Limited (“Danyang New Huamei”) and Qingdao Zhongxin Huamei
Plastics Company Limited (“Qingdao Huamei”) were 2.4%, 2.1% and
2.3% (2021: 3.9%, 1.7% and 3.2%) respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, total dividend received by
the Group (before PRC dividend withholding tax) in relation to the
results of Suzhou New Huamei, Danyang New Huamei and Qingdao
Huamei in previous year was approximately HK$4,249,000 (2021:
HK$4,637,000).

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has still
encountered down-turning in revenue from operations in the cities
where there was increase in regulated medical waste but decrease
in hazardous industrial waste. The Group was able to resolve issues
on logistics of hazardous waste collection and transportation across
different restricted districts to avoid the possible spreading of
COVID-19. Owing to the changing market demand, the Group had
to account prudently for the continuous under-performing accounts
receivable from certain distressed clients during COVID-19 period.
Nevertheless, the Group commits to uphold the national directions
toward environmental protection and keep up the waste processing
facilities and standards. Entering 2023, the Group has well-prepared
for ensuring licence renewal for its subsidiaries that would be granted
on time with minimal downtime for necessary fine-tuning of the
incineration facilities and hazardous waste management system
required under the stricter compliance standards in recent years.

EBEH B RSN

IRRTBEEERE 2 A (h b FE 4 A180,000
Tk BRAEARAE - IRERERE
RS AKBEIER - AR EFRNA KA
B RS R REMAELMES 119,560
TRk IREERKXMBZEAREARER
106,807 F 5 K AItEHE TERREEZ
XERNREEFERHBAEB  REXRF - X
SETRREFEXRE AEE220E TKE
E -R-ZE-_—_&#+=-A=+—H " IH38
F(ZE-—F MR)VUEERTFHEA - K
SEKEEATERBRAMEREMEMNESD
NEESKEEW SPRAITESREER
K T8 I 3R e o

BRACEBRE

AEEFE-HEIEATRENREERLEE
B BECENRBIEARAKRE -#HEZ
T —F+_A=1+—HILFE ' &RMNFTE
EBRERAB ([FHINFEE]) - FEH=E
EBRBRAB ((AEHEZ]) RESFH
EXBRAERAR([EEEE]) A E
RARNBE2.4%  21%M2.3% (ZFE - —4F:
3.9%  1.7%KX%3.2%) °

HE _ZT-_—_F#+-_A=+—HItFE &K
SEWHBEBRHENTEES  AENEERS
EEXAFEEZREBAB(CRNBHRR
BEIEHF) #/54,249,0008 T (ZE-—4F:
4,637,000/ 7T) °

(BRE

BE-_ZE-_—_#+-_RA=+—BRILEE"
FELENBETT BEIEHNHBEEYE
m-EBEIEEREDIRD  AEEEY
Urek TRE o NEB AN REU TR T BT
RIS EREDEEER S EAYE - )
e RBENAEERE BARMERRT
Bl AEEBEHETTREFEFNER
1B HAR N BRER IR 45 18 R A 7B UROBR BUIR R
HHEEEHH AWM AEERHETER
IRIRIE S| A RARIFEE W) BRI A e IR AT 2 B
AZZT=F AEBECWTERS  BEN
BRABMBESHUZER UERRENE
TH ABRBEFERBFEEHARIZER
o HERESEREREDERRFETT
BEREEMMA -

—ECCoEER HMFRASEERAA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE N B R D

As at 31 December 2022, the existing incineration capacity owned by
the four subsidiaries of the Company for handling hazardous waste
in the PRC was 135,400 metric tonnes per annum. The centralised
sewage filtering system in the Eco-plating Specialised Industrial Zone
and its sewage filtering plant has been kept fine-tuning to good
conditions.

The Group continues to uphold corporate governance practice and
environmental governance, and would ensure smooth and stable
operation of the whole Group and adapt to all changes that might
be caused by the impact of COVID-19. The business environment in
which the Group operates is filled with uncertainties and challenges,
as such, the Group will continue to focus on environmental
related business and explore for opportunities prudently in a
timely manner for business restructuring and industrial upgrade to
improve sustainable performance of its environmental operations.
The Company is also conducting a review on its current business
operations and financial position with a view to allocate its resources
more effectively; to diversify its resources and broaden its income
sources; to divest in the business operations which had not performed
well as expected; and to accelerate the Group’s growth and improve
its profitability. Further, in view of the unsatisfactory performance of
the environmental equipment construction and installation services
business, the Group will consider different alternatives to improve
the overall performance of the Group which include a disposal of the
lossmaking business.

R-ZTBE_—_F+-_A=+—H8  "XQAAETF
MRKTEARER RSN EEEREDD
WAL N AT F1354002 1 - REEH
REBREFEXETERMNEPASKEBER
FESKBER —ERFMAZE R GAKE -

AEBEEERFECXELREBRRRER
WHERANEBNBERBRELE  UREEH
BREREZENETRENERE L - AE
B AR BB IRIR T M & N HERE ME AR -
FHit - ARESEBEZ TN RRBBES -
EENRRREHEEAEEXETROK
€ URSERREBNAFERRE A2
7] 75 1E 4 42 &1 B 2 Al Y 57558 & M B 7SR
N NBEEARMEEER  ZTTILEER
WHIRAREWARR - BEREFHRRROE
BEE  NERAKENKRIL N EHE R
N psh - BERRRRERERLTRRHEE
B2RARE  AKREKEENR RN
EASEZERBRE  BRLEERER -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The summary of annual results for the year ended 31 December 2022
together with corresponding figures for 2021 is presented as follows:

Summary of annual results
(Expressed in HK$'000 unless indicated otherwise)

T B E i wm Mk o
B4 %5 [B] k&
BHE-_TE-_—_F#+-_A=+—HItFEZ22
FEEEWME(BER-_Z-_—F2HEHZE)
25T

PEREHE
(BFSEHT » BRHGUTFETLIF)

Year ended 31 December
BEZE+=-HA=1+—HBLEE

2022 2021 Change
—E-—F —FT_-—F B
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 %
hg=s FH&xT FHIT
Revenue from environmental TENBEEVNREREREN

treatment and disposal services bR B RIS 2 W=k

for industrial and medical wastes 373,494 456,400 -18.2
Revenue from environmental IRRBERERTERB 2

equipment construction and gy

installation services 72,810 124,496 -41.5
Revenue from environmental TITES5KEREE BE -

industrial sewage treatment, BB RS N TR e 2

utilities, management services, Wz

and factory facilities 142,647 146,271 -2.5
Total Revenue Was4asa 1 588,951 727,167 -19.0
Average gross profit margin FHEME (BHt)

(in percentage) 2 20.3 26.4 -23.1
Other revenue Hipuzs 3 4,249 4,637 -8.4
Other income EH AU A 4 11,416 7,407 +54.1
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMB AR 2 WEE 5 27,303 - -
Distribution costs Pal =1 %N 6 24,727 23,916 +3.4
Administrative expenses THHAX 7 59,025 59,718 -1.2
Other operating expenses Hih & ZMY 8 30,747 17,826 +72.5
Impairment loss on trade JEWEBR R Z REER - F5

receivables, net 9 3,388 28,685 -88.2
Finance income BMEKA 10 5,652 4,140 +36.5
Finance costs BB KA 11 5,693 6,521 -12.7
Share of results of associates PARI=Y: ek R/NCTIVAE - 12 (7,250) (6,389) +13.5
Share of results of a joint venture JEE—RELDEHEE 13 (13,044) (4,440) +193.8
Income tax P18 14 19,539 7,436 +162.8
Net profit for the year REFE T 15 4,564 52,918 -91.4
Profit attributable to owners of the  ZNA & #EH A JE (L% F

Company 15 7,273 40,419 -82.0
Basic EPS (in HK cents) FREARZN (B) 16 0.24 1.33 -82.0
Diluted EPS (in HK cents) GRREERF GBI 16 0.24 1.33 -82.0
EBITDA EBITDA 17 109,264 151,348 -27.8

“ECCEER FFRREBEBRAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERE N B R D

Summary of annual results by semi-annual cycle

(Expressed in HK$'000 unless indicated otherwise)

BEXrFRREINEFREAME
(BFESEHT » BRHGUTFETLIF)

1H 2022 2H 2022 Total 2022
—E--fF —Z=-C —s=-=
F¥F T¥F st
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
ihy=s FET F&T FET
Revenue from environmental TENBEREYNIRREE R

treatment and disposal services BB RSz WE

for industrial and medical wastes 186,823 186,671 373,494
Revenue from environmental RRUEBRERTERE 2

equipment construction and g

installation services 4,309 68,501 72,810
Revenue from environmental ITESKEREE BE-

industrial sewage treatment, EIRIRTE M TR 2

utilities, management services, Wz

and factory facilities 74,453 68,194 142,647
Total Revenue W = 4B =R 1 265,585 323,366 588,951
Average gross profit margin FHEFME(EALL)

(in percentage) 2 20.9 19.7 20.3
Other revenue E g e 3 4,249 = 4,249
Other income H b A 4 2,674 8,742 11,416
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RFABARI 2 W= 5 27,303 = 27,303
Distribution costs Al 1D N 6 14,630 10,097 24,727
Administrative expenses THAX 7 30,003 29,022 59,025
Other operating expenses EMEERT 8 8,189 22,558 30,747
Impairment loss on trade FEWBR R 2 M EEE -

receivables, net i 9 - 3,388 3,388
Finance income ERA 10 958 4,694 5,652
Finance costs A& AR 11 3,149 2,544 5,693
Share of results of associates DR E N E 2 EE 12 (3,643) (3,607) (7.250)
Share of results of a joint venture DIE—REEDLEIHEE 13 (6,939) (6,105)  (13,044)
Income tax F1Z 8 14 11,409 8,130 19,539
Net profit/(loss) for the period HAN&F, (E8) 15 12,807 (8,243) 4,564
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners A& FHES AFEE R

of the Company (EE) 15 14,761 (7,488) 7,273
Basic EPS (in HK cents) FRRERZF B 16 0.49 (0.25) 0.24
Diluted EPS (in HK cents) FREERF BWL) 16 0.49 (0.25) 0.24
EBITDA EBITDA 17 67,887 41,377 109,264
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TR E

am S o AT

(i) a decrease in revenue and profit from the environmental
treatment and disposal services for industrial and medical wastes
in the PRC as there was a decrease in quantity of hazardous waste
collected at declining average unit handling prices; and

(if)

a substantial decrease in revenue from the environmental

equipment construction and installation services.

(i)

(if)

1H 2021 2H 2021 Total 2021
B T —ET-—F
¥ THEF HEt
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B FHT FHIT THT
Revenue from environmental TENEBREYRNIRREE X

treatment and disposal services Be B 7% < W

for industrial and medical wastes 235,819 220,581 456,400
Revenue from environmental RRRERERTERE 2

equipment construction and W &5

installation services - 124,496 124,496
Revenue from environmental TESKEREREE BE -

industrial sewage treatment, EERE R TR

utilities, management services, W &5

and factory facilities 71,804 74,467 146,271
Total Revenue Wz 4258 1 307,623 419,544 727,167
Average gross profit margin FHEME(BDL)

(in percentage) 2 30.7 23.2 26.4
Other revenue Hfh Wz 3 4,637 - 4,637
Other income H At g A 4 3,414 3,993 7,407
Distribution costs SN =17 N 6 8,823 15,093 23,916
Administrative expenses THRAX 7 30,517 29,201 59,718
Other operating expenses Hi& M 8 7,241 10,585 17,826
Impairment loss on trade receivables, FEURBR X 2 BIEEE @ F58

net 9 - 28,685 28,685
Finance income BE WA 10 3,270 870 4,140
Finance costs Bh & B AR 11 3,164 3,357 6,521
Share of results of associates DB E N E) 2 EE 12 (4,138) (2,251) (6,389)
Share of results of a joint venture DTE—REELEZESE 13 (1,713) (2,727) (4,440)
Income tax gt 14 11,042 (3,606) 7,436
Net profit for the period HA A 48 15 38,984 13,934 52,918
Profit attributable to owners KR RIER AL &S T

of the Company 15 28,746 11,673 40,419
Basic EPS (in HK cents) BRERZF BWL) 16 0.95 0.38 1.33
Diluted EPS (in HK cents) SREERF (BIL) 16 0.95 0.38 1.33
EBITDA EBITDA 17 95,133 56,215 151,348

Notes: B :

Net decrease in total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022 was 1. BHE-Z--—F+-A=+—BILEEW

mainly attributable to: WERRFRD  TEHRN

RETETERRBEREYNORRFLE
FEERBOREIEFRD  BR
EFHEMEEER TERNBERT -
ERENHKRERERD K

SBAR R TR 225 PR 7 10 UK 36 0B
TH -

“ECCEER FFRREBEBRAF
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Decrease in gross profit margin of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 was mainly attributable to increase in outsourcing
landfill cost for disposal of the secondary residues and ashes produced by
the incineration process of the Group.

Net decrease in other revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022
was mainly attributable to decrease in total dividends declared by the
equity investments in the current year.

Net increase in other income for the year ended 31 December 2022
was mainly attributable to increase in the PRC governmental incentive
subsidies received in the current year.

Gain on disposal of the entire equity interest in a wholly-owned
subsidiary in the PRC was a one-off income recognised in the current
year.

Net increase in distribution costs for the year ended 31 December 2022
was mainly attributable to the increase in marketing agency fees in the
current year to ensure stable supply and transportation of industrial
hazardous waste in the province.

Net decrease in administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December
2022 was mainly attributable to decrease in staff remuneration and
welfare during the year.

Net increase in other operating expenses for the year ended 31
December 2022 was mainly attributable to increase in costs on
litigations incurred in the current year.

Decrease in net impairment loss on trade receivables was mainly
attributable to increase in amounts recovered from over-aged receivables
in the current year.

Net increase in finance income for the year ended 31 December
2022 was mainly attributable to the increase in net exchange gain on
financing activities in the current year.

Net decrease in finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
mainly attributable to the decrease in interest-bearing borrowings of the
Group in the current year.

Net increase in loss shared from the associates for the year ended 31
December 2022 was mainly attributable to the decline in overall business
performance of both associates in the current year.

Net increase in loss shared from the joint venture, Xinyu Rongkai, for
the year ended 31 December 2022 was mainly attributable to the lower
market demand on hazardous waste disposal services in Liuzhou in the
current year.

Net increase in income tax for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
mainly attributable to:

(i) over-provision of PRC Corporate Income Tax for the year ended
31 December 2021 arisen from one-off national preferential tax
policy in favour of environmental operations of the Group that did
not recur in the current year; and

(i) increase in deferred tax effect on temporary differences arisen on
increase in ECL allowance for the year ended 31 December 2021
that did not recur in the current year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

15.  For the year ended 31 December 2022, the decreases in net profit of the
Group and net profit attributable to owners of the Company were and
mainly attributable to:

(i) a decrease in revenue and profit from the environmental
treatment and disposal services for industrial and medical wastes
in the PRC as there was a decrease in quantity of hazardous waste
collected at declining average unit handling prices;

(i)  asubstantial decrease in revenue from the environmental equipment
construction and installation services which recorded a net loss
owing to the irrecoverable costs incurred on overrun projects;

(iii)  a significant increase in the share of loss from the joint venture
company, Xinyu Rongkai; and

(iv) anincrease in litigation expenses incurred in the current year.

16. Decrease in earnings per shares (“EPS”) was directly attributable to the
decrease in net profit in 2022.

17.  The Company uses the earnings for the reporting period before interest,
taxation, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA") to measure the
operating results of the Group. Decrease in EBITDA for the year ended
31 December 2022 was mainly attributable to the decrease in net profit
of the Group in the current year.

Seasonality of operations

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the operation of providing
environmental treatment and disposal services for industrial and
medical wastes was the key driver of revenue of the Group which
encountered a relatively higher demand in the first half of the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the environmental treatment
and disposal services for industrial and medical wastes though
still being affected by the impact of COVID-19 which recorded a
revenue of HK$373,494,000 (2021: HK$456,400,000) and pre-tax
profit of HK$20,629,000 (2021: HK$46,386,000) with revenue of
approximately 50.1% (2021: 51.7%) being accumulated in the first
half of the year and approximately 49.9% (2021: 48.3%) being
accumulated in the second half of the year.

Capital expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group incurred capital
expenditure to increase property, plant and equipment and to
acquire land use rights for the operating segment of (i) environmental
treatment and disposal services for industrial and medical wastes
amounted to approximately HK$21,954,000 (2021: HK$24,824,000),
(i) environmental equipment construction and installation services
amounted to HK$61,000 (2021: HK$1,235,000); (iii) industrial sewage
and sludge treatment and facility provision services in the Eco-plating
Specialised Zone amounted to approximately HK$2,959,000 (2021:
HK$1,684,000), and (iv) head office for corporate use in Hong Kong
being HK$7,000 (2021: HK$1,730,000).

EBEH B RSN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERE AR DN
Commitments

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments for capital assets:

AIE
REREBIR - NEE L E RN E E B AT &
b

2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Contracted but not provided for: EHESES =

— Capital expenditure in respect of - BRAME BEEEREZ

property, plant and equipment BEARE 22,464 20,624
— Capital contribution to an equity —m—IERAKRELE

investment 15,976 15,976

On 28 July 2022, Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited (“Zhenjiang New Universe”) (an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company), entered into an investment
agreement (the “Investment Agreement”) with the Zhenjiang
Economic and Technological Development Zone Management
Committee, pursuant to which Zhenjiang New Universe would further
invest USD15,000,000 into the local expansion plan of Zhenjiang
New Universe which comprises, among others, the building of a
new incinerator with a daily capacity of 100 metric tonnes (33,000
metric tonnes per annum) of hazardous waste, the technical
transformation of the existing incinerator with a daily capacity of
50 metric tonnes (16,500 metric tonnes per annum) of hazardous
waste, and the optimization of other facilities. The expansion plan
will be implemented on the land owned by Zhenjiang New Universe
with a total area of 2,045 square metres. Pursuant to the Investment
Agreement, New Universe Environmental Technologies (Jiang Su)
Limited (“NUET(S)”) (the immediate holding company interested
in 100% paid-up registered capital of Zhenjiang New Universe)
should inject additional capital in the amount of USD5,000,000 into
Zhenjiang New Universe by the end of December 2022. Up to the date
of this report, the additional capital of USD5,000,000 to be registered
for and injected into Zhenjiang New Universe is still subject to the
approval of the relevant departments of the PRC government.

Liquidity, financial resources and gearing

(@) For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group financed its
operations and made payment of debts and liabilities due timely
with internally generated cash flows and banking facilities.

The Group remained stable in its financial position with
equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$961,677,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
HK$1,052,779,000) and consolidated total assets amounted
to approximately HK$1,514,046,000 as at 31 December 2022
(2021: HK$1,784,011,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Company did not have any equity fund raising activity within
the past twelve months immediately prior to the date of this
report (2021: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had:

Rl am M o AT

(0 ARARBEAREAHMBET=
HARYEERBEAEEFZE (=ZF
Z—F ) o

RN

d RIEHKR AKEE :

2022 2021

—E-—F T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FBT FET

(i)  Cash and bank balances iy IBeKkBITEH 270,279 302,074
(i) Available unused unsecured (i)  AIELfE AR B A A IR

banking facilities HIRTTRLE 39,041 14,640

Key Performance indicators

(a)

EBITDA represents the EBITDA of the Company and subsidiary
companies. EBITDA is defined as earnings before gross interest
and other finance costs, taxation, depreciation and amortisation.
The Group considers EBITDA to be a performance measure
which is used in the Group’s internal financial and management
reporting to monitor business performance. EBITDA of the
Group was HK$109,264,000 for the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: HK$151,348,000).

Reconciliation of consolidated net profit for the year to EBITDA is
set out as follows:

78 52 45 WU 1T

(a) EBITDAARAERMEBE AR Z
EBITDA ° EBITDAME FE & A MK A5 &
TEMB KA BiIE - T EREHE
BB & F) o N & E R BEBITDAT) — 18
E¥ERIZ ARAEBENRIBGT B R
EERENERERRR - AEER
HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HLHF
€ WEBITDAA109,264,000/ 7t (= &
——4% :151,348,000/87T) °

REFLEA RN EEBITDAZ HERIIT ¢

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER FHET

Profit for the year F &R T 4,564 52,918

Add: -

Depreciation on property, plant and M- WEREZETE

equipment 75,715 80,332

Depreciation on right-of-use assets ERAEEERE 3,753 4,141

Gross interest expenses BHR B X 5,693 6,521

Income tax FTiS®i 19,539 7,436

EBITDA for the year N4 ZEBITDA 109,264 151,348

“ECCEER FFRREBEBRAF
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The Company monitors its financial and earnings performance
of the associates through EBITDA by cancelling the effects of the
associates’ capital, financing and tax entity structure. Set out
below is the EBITDA of the associates of the Company for the
two years ended 31 December 2022:

A BB BEBITDALK E B Bt & A &

ERX RERUBEEBREBOTZE
LA BE 4% 6’#.%.*’&7%57}%&&7%%”2‘%%%

ATEHINARARBHERRRBE=T
CCoF+ A=t BLERMEFERN
EBITDA :

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FA&ET

EBITDA of associates: Bt & X RIEBITDA
Zhenjiang Xin Qu L= 14,974 29,486
NCIP mmKRF (5,475) (16,428)
The Group monitors its liquidity through current ratio. The (¢) ZANEBENUREL REEHETHESD

current ratio of the Group representing the ratio of the
consolidated current assets to the consolidated current liabilities
was 1.15 times as at 31 December 2022 (2021: 1.02 times).

The Group monitors its capital by reference to the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total interest-bearing borrowings

RZEZ—_F+= ﬂ_+ SN $%
ERREt R (BRea R EELHEA
HEBAaEZEER) B1ISE (2R —
F:1.021%) °

AEBUEERBILREEREAR
BHERDZRFSEEAR(EEEAER

(including lease liabilities) divided by total equity. The gearing B)BRUBEARBETEE  c RIEEIRD
ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows: EBEABBLHENT :
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FH&T
Bank borrowings RITIEE 97,959 198,970
Lease liabilities HEAE 667 1,470
Total interest-bearing borrowings frREEHEE 98,626 200,440
Total equity (inclusive of non-controlling % 7K 42 %8 (& #E FE4R AR 25 )
interests) 1,075,507 1,182,810
Gearing ratio BEAREE 9.2% 16.9%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital structure

There was no significant change to the capital structure of the
Company as at 31 December 2022 comparing to that as at 31
December 2021.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and

affiliated companies

On 29 March 2021, the registered paid-up capital of Zhenjiang
Sinotech Eco-Electroplating Development Limited (“Zhenjiang
Sinotech”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, was
reduced from USD34,260,000 to USD25,000,000. Zhejiang Sinotech
builds, owns and runs the Eco-plating Specialised Zone. The amount of
reduction in capital of Zhenjiang Sinotech amounted to USD9,260,000
(approximately to HK$72,042,000) has been fully remitted back to
Fair Time International Limited in Hong Kong, being the immediate
holding company of Zhenjiang Sinotech and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, with USD4,660,000 (approximately
HK$36,162,000) in September 2021 and USD4,600,000
(approximately HK$35,880,000) in May 2022 respectively.

On 2 March 2022, the Group as the vendor has entered into
an agreement with a purchaser to dispose of the entire equity
interest in Taixing Xin Xin Resources Recycling Company Limited*,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration
of RMB42,100,000 (approximately HK$51,760,000) (the “Equity
Disposal Agreement”). Completion of the Equity Disposal Agreement
took place on 14 April 2022 and the Group recognised a gain on such
disposal of approximately HK$27,303,000.

Save as disclosed herein, there were no significant investments nor
material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

T B E S wm Mo
BARGEE
ARAR—_BE-_—_F+_-_A=+—HZERN
ERER_FE_—F+_A=+—HITEML
AIEXEE -

MEBARIKBEB ARMNEANKER
==

R-EBE-_—F=ZA=-+NA  AQaHE:2
BHEAENMBAREIENAREEHERK
BERAER R ([EIER] NEH LM
& 7N 134,260,000 7T R 4> 25,000,000
TLoSETEREAE HRARKERREER
[@ o $HOT ZE R & AN 4> £ 589,260,000
JC (#972,042,0007% 75) * E #4,660,0003%
70 (#936,162,0008 L) RZE=Z—F LA K
4,600,000 jt (#735,880,000/ 70) A =&
T CHERASHEREERREENEEH
BERAR (ZARREIENMNERILER
RRAIRAABHEZEFENNBLAR) -

R-ZT-_—F=A—H NEBUBHFFH
H—FZBAHZ—BH#E UREARKE
42,100,0007T (#J48 & 751,760,000 7T ) !
E—REARARZEMNBRARTETNFTERE
EFBER RGN 2 BAE (TARELEH
#])  cZBELEHEER T -__FWMA
TOATKR S  AEBEERZHEHRSE
%5 4927,303,0007 7T °

BAXEKEEN  RARARBE_ZT_—
T A=t BLEFEIETAMEMERNR
BAMBAR BMERARARALEEEMNEK
W R & o

—ECCoEER HMFRASEERAA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Significant investments held and their performance

According to the valuation report dated 23 March 2023 issued by an
independent professional valuer, Colliers International (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Colliers International”) (2021: Colliers International), the
total fair value attributable to the Group’s interests in the equity
investments in Suzhou New Huamei, Danyang New Huamei and
Qingdao Huamei as at 31 December 2022 was HK$70,300,000 (2021:
HK$80,800,000).

FiisERIEERERIR

BB EEGHEMS HEBMEBRRM (F
B)BER2E ((BABRBD (ZE=—F:
SOABRB)MHABRHRAE-ZTS-_=ZF=F7
“t+t=ZHBHFEERE R _ZE-_—F+=
A=+—B FXEBHEHMNHTEE F
GHEERETFEEZINRAKREREZNA
B 42 %8 570,300,000/ L (Z B = —F ¢
80,800,000/ 7T) °

Fair value attributable
to the Group

AEBEGLATE
Group’s interest 2022 2021
AEBE R —E-C —E-—F
HK’000 HK$'000
FHE T TAETT
Suzhou New Huamei BRMETESE 18.62% 17,500 33,300
Danyang New Huamei TS RrEx 24.50% 7,600 8,100
Qingdao Huamei S58&EXE 28.67% 45,200 39,400
70,300 80,800

The change in fair value of the equity investments for the year end 31
December 2022 were recognised as other comprehensive income and
accounted for in the investment revaluation reserve of the Group.

Impairment testing on goodwill

Goodwill was recognised upon the completion of a business
combination in 2007 that currently composed of Zhenjiang New
Universe and Yancheng New Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company
Limited that principally engaged in environmental waste treatment
and disposal services in Jiangsu Province, the PRC which since then
being identified as a cash-generating unit. As at 31 December 2022,
the assessment on the recoverable amount of this cash-generating
unit was conducted with reference to the valuation report dated
23 March 2023 issued by Colliers International (2021: Colliers
International), based on reasonable assumptions, including but not
limited to the cash flows projection with a growth rate at 2.2%
(2021: 2.0%) of that cash-generating unit operating with the licensed
incineration capacity of hazardous waste 26,400 metric tonnes per
annum and licensed disposal capacity of regulated medical waste
3,380 metric tonnes per annum, and at the pre-tax discount rate of
16.61% (2021: 19.50%) having accounted for the risks encountered
in the industries. No impairment loss to the goodwill was considered
necessary for the two years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Impairment testing on interest in an associate, NCIP

As at 31 December 2022, the assessment on the recoverable
amount of the Group's interest in NCIP, that principally engaged
in environmental waste treatment and disposal services in Nanjing,
Jiangsu Province, the PRC, was conducted with reference to the
valuation report dated 23 March 2023 issued by Colliers International
(2021: Colliers International), based on reasonable assumptions,
including but not limited to the cash flows projection of NCIP with a
growth rate at 2.2% (2021: 2.0%) of NCIP as cash-generating unit
with the licensed incineration capacity of hazardous waste 38,000
metric tonnes per annum, and at the pre-tax discount rate of 15.74%
(2021: 18.03%) having accounted for the risks encountered by NCIP
in the industries. No impairment loss to the Group’s interest in NCIP
was considered necessary for the two years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2022, the following assets of the Group were
pledged as collaterals for banking facilities granted and other ordinary
business of the Group:

EEES W KD

REtE A5 (BRAF) EarRE
B &R,

RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H8 HKREER
MRARKF(EBRABTIHEDARERR
BE W) B 1B & Br B AR 75 ) #E v B9 AJ UK [B] & BB AY
FEH2ESHEE (ZCE-_—F: 51K
CYFTHERA-_SE-_=F=ZA_-+=H
MEERSET HEERSHERZES

BHEBE BEETERANZREEESEM
REFAEREYRIERE S F38,000

WEBEITHEE22% (ZE-—F :2.0%)EEK
—?—Eﬁiﬁﬁ//w%gE‘J&&@&ﬁﬁ"%ﬂ"ﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ
NERFATITER15.74% (T = —F :
18.03%)  BE_T-_—_FR_FT=—%F
+ BA=+—HLMAFE A5ERAEE
ZHRBERRAFRESTIRAESBIE -

& EE
RZEZZF+ZA=+—H x&EBUT
BETUNEGH (EAERBITMEUREAE
BEEMAFEB 2B

2022 2021
—=E=-= T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Carrying amount of collaterals: BEHmzREE :
Property, plant and equipment M- BREREE 89,129 108,107
Land use rights + b {5 AR A 26,091 28,830
Restricted bank deposits PR B AR 1T 3K 5,119 8,191
120,339 145,128
2022 2021
—E_-_F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Secured liabilities and guarantee issued: A K3 & & & B % H R ¢

Secured bank borrowings BRFRITEERE 67,800 73,200
Bills payables EREE 10,242 6,086

Bank guarantees issued in favour of ABEPIEMINBEPRME

external customers for undertaking RITHER

contract works - 2,105
78,042 81,391

“ECCEER FFRREBEBRAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Contingent liabilities

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 20
May 2022, 30 May 2022 and 7 February 2023 in relation to the legal
proceedings in process against NUET(JS), an 82% indirectly owned
subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Hong Kong. Two writ
of summons issued by the Jiangsu Zhenjiang Intermediate People’s
Court (the “Court”) in Mainland China were received by NUET(JS) in
respect of the proceedings filed by two existing shareholders (each
a "Plaintiff”, Mr. YIN Yong Xiang” and Mr. SUN Jia Qing"") each
holding 8% of the issued share capital of NUET(JS) on 20 May 2022
and 27 May 2022 respectively. Pursuant to each of the two writ of
summons, each Plaintiff alleged that NUET(JS) should immediately pay
each Plaintiff accrued and unpaid dividends of HK$26,579,113.60
(approximately to RMB22,477,608.92) and interest thereon in the
amount of RMB4,057,752.68 (the “Actions”). In connection with the
Actions and upon the application of each of the Plaintiffs, the Court
had, in respect of each of the Plaintiffs’ applications, granted an asset
preservation order to preserve (the “Asset Preservation”) 38.54%
of the equity rights of Zhenjiang New Universe, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of NUET(JS) established in the PRC, with effect from 18
March 2022 and, unless extended, will last until the earlier of 17
March 2025 or until the Asset Preservation is lifted by the Court.
Thereafter the first hearing of the two Actions took place and
completed on 15 July 2022 at the Court, NUET(JS) has received two
civil judgments of the Court dated 4 January 2023 and 5 January
2023 in respect of the two Actions respectively, in which, amongst
others: (i) the claims of each of the Plaintiffs against NUET(JS) under
the Actions were dismissed; and (ii) it was ordered that the two
Plaintiffs bear the costs (including case acceptance fees and asset
preservation fees) of their Actions respectively. Both Plaintiffs did
not admit to the judgments of the Court and have each submitted
a civil appeal (with both civil appeals dated 29 January 2023) to the
Court, and in the civil appeals, the Plaintiffs have requested for (i) the
revocation of the judgments of the Court; and (ii) NUET(JS) to bear the
respective costs of the Actions. The civil appeals will be transferred
from the Court to the Jiangsu Province High People’s Court in
Mainland China, and the dates and times for further trial and hearing
will be determined at a later date. As the Actions are still ongoing, the
Asset Preservations will continue to remain in effect.

Notes:

* Mr. YIN Yong Xiang is an existing director of the Group’s subsidiary,
Zhenjiang New Universe, and he is also the existing chairman of the
boards of Danyang New Huamei and Qingdao Huamei, and the existing
vice-chairman of the board of Suzhou New Huamei.

**  Mr. SUN Jia Qing is an existing director of the Group’s subsidiary,
Zhenjiang New Universe.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group has already recognised the amounts being claimed under
the Actions as dividends payable to non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary without payment terms that being classified under other
payables in the Group’s financial statements but no provision has been
recognised for any interest on those non-interest bearing dividend
rights. As the Actions are still in process, the information usually
required by HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets is not disclosed on the grounds that it might prejudice the
outcome of the proceedings. The Directors are of the opinion that the
Actions and the Asset Preservations are not expected to have adverse
impact to the normal operations of NUET(JS), Zhenjiang New Universe
and any members of the Group.

Save as disclosed herein, there were no other significant contingent
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Employee information

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 655 (2021: 651) full-time
employees, of which 18 (2021: 17) were based in Hong Kong,
and 637 (2021: 634) in Mainland China. For the year ended 31
December 2022, staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration
and amount capitalised as inventories was HK$110,231,000
(2021: HK$108,986,000). Employees and Directors were paid in
commensurate with the prevailing market standards, with other fringe
benefits such as bonus, medical insurance, mandatory provident fund,
and continuous development and training.

Exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China and most of the
Group'’s transactions, assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk due to the exchange
rate fluctuation of RMB against HK$. Fluctuation of RMB against HK$
is expected to be moderate to the Group, and the Group considers
the foreign currency risk exposure is acceptable and Mainland China’s
economy will regain its robustness. The Group will review and monitor
its currency exposure from time to time, and when appropriate hedge
its currency risk.

EBEH B RSN

REBEEILZSHFANKRDNESBER
BESTHERAEN — B A 5 JEIE AR a5
MRS  EAEEMNMBERETOEAEM
FERRIE - B ERZ I ERBER
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RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—8 Xx£EREHE
6558 (ZZE - —F :651%) 2HES  H
FI8Z (T —F 1 178) IRNEBER -
M637% (Z T - —4F :634%) TRHHENRK
WER #HE-_ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—H1
FE - BINKN(BEESHe RENLA
FEZ4%) 5110,231,0008 T (T = —
F : 108,986,000 7T) cEERESZME )
HFEBRMMBKE  SHEEMKEEF -
BREEe BERRE RIUEIES  BE
RN -

AR M RO B) R B

AEBIEETHAMKEEER  MAEE
RN BERBEUIARBEE &
SEE AR LB T IE R E) M A S HMNE R,
2o BHMARBHLETER KU ANEEM
EBEY MAKERRAININEERE
ARER  FEABEETRHRERS) - K
SEBTERSMERAEEGERR  XRNE
EREPEEERR

—ECCoEER HMFRASEERAA

27



28

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EBEHBE DM

The results of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
translated from RMB into HK$ at the exchange rates approximating
the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of financial
position items of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
translated from RMB into HK$ at the closing rate ruling at the end
of the reporting period. For the year ended 31 December 2022, RMB
depreciated on average relatively to the HK$ resulted in an overall
downside exchange difference on translation from RMB to HK$ for the
financial statements of the subsidiaries, associates and a joint venture
in Mainland China in an aggregate of approximately HK$82,937,000
(2021: upside difference HK$37,883,000) that were recognised as
other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the translation reserve of the Company in the current year, and
there was a downside exchange difference of HK$2,591,000 (2021
Nil) arisen on the disposal of a PRC subsidiary that was recognised to
the profit or loss of the Company during the year. The accumulated
exchange differences in the translation reserve will be reclassified
to profit or loss as when the interests in the relevant subsidiaries in
Mainland China being entirely or partially disposed of by the Group.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The following are the principal risks and uncertainties related to the
Company’s business:

1. Since the outbreak of COVID-19 started from early 2020,
there were different precautionary and control measures being
implemented in Mainland China. The operations of the Group
located mainly in the Jiangsu Province are expected to resume
normal gradually and revive upon those strict measures are being
relaxed. As of the date of approval of this consolidated financial
statements, the Directors consider that there is no material
uncertainty as a result of COVID-19 that casts a doubt on the
Group’s ability to carry on its business as a going concern in the
next twelve months.

2. The Group is dependent of the continuous renewal of hazardous
waste operating permission licences to be granted by the PRC
Government. The environmental business of the Group involving
in collection, storage, incineration, landfill, treatment and
final disposal of hazardous waste in Mainland China requires
operating permission licences for handling hazardous waste
and the operating permission licences for handling epidemic
medical waste issued by the Environmental Protection Bureau of
Jiangsu Province and local environmental authorities. There is a
risk that the hazardous waste operating permission licence(s) of
the Group may be suspended temporarily or withdrawn or the
renewal of which may be delayed and subject to the compliance
with the PRC Governmental directions for renovation and
reconstruction.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group commits to ensure the continuous renewal of all
necessary licences for its operations and to ensure all subsidiary
entities engaging in environmental operations maintain and
continuously uphold their operating standards and waste
management standards and technically renovate the facilities in
order to comply with the environmental policies, standards, and
legislations as promulgated by the PRC Government from time to
time.

The Group faces competition in the market of hazardous
waste collection for treatment and disposal services from other
operators in the environmental hazardous waste treatment
industry.

The Group has to continuously upkeep its facilities and provide
continuous staff development, and to strengthen hazardous
waste decomposition technology, its waste management
standard and financial stability in order to compete with the
increasing number of competitors in treatment of hazardous
waste sector with more financial resources to develop larger
scaled waste disposal and recycling facilities, better standards
and technology to the compliance with all national and
international environmental regulations, and better technical
know-how than we have.

Owing to the increasing number of hazardous waste disposal
companies being granted license to operate currently in the
market, and the quantity of hazardous waste produced from
upstream manufacturers has not increased relatively, it resulted
in keen competition of hazardous waste among disposal
companies. The competition has become fierce, and it has also
increased the bargaining power of the intermediary agency
in hazardous waste distribution market. Intermediary agency
fee will be determined on the quantity of hazardous waste
discharged by a cooperative hazardous waste disposal unit.
Intermediary agency fee would constitute one of the major costs
to an entity running hazardous waste disposal operations and
affect the Group’s profitability performance.

The Group will strengthen its own marketing function and the
contractual relationship with all existing clients as well as the
operative relationship with the intermediary agencies emerging
in the market in order to ensure the Group operate in a stable
manner under the transitional change.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREHBH R DN

The Group engages in hazardous waste incineration to reduce
quantity of hazardous waste and to decompose hazardous waste
through high temperature incineration process, to landfill the
hazardous waste and post incineration residue, and handling
industrial sewage discharging by clients in an industrial zone that
faces environmental and social responsibility risks, which might
be caused by incidental breach of environmental emission limits,
incidental safety issues, contamination to land, and incidental
adverse waste discharging conditions caused by clients, and
which could have negative impact to the environmental waste
treatment operations of the Group.

The Group has sought for high quality plant construction design,
and implemented stringent controls over the construction of
new projects. The Group has to continuously upgrade the
efficiency of the existing plant and equipment and to enhance
the project management standards from time to time. The
Group has its own project management team and will appoint
independent professionals to report on environmental emissions
periodically and to monitor all possible environmental impact to
the society.

The Group engages in the provision of environmental
equipment construction and installation services and bidding
for contract works of setting up hazardous waste incinerators
with specifications stipulated under contracts with the projects’
stakeholders. The Group undertakes contract works for
construction and installation of hazardous waste incinerators
would encounter technical risks that the resulting facilities built
might not meet the changing policies of local environmental
authorities and would result in the investors of private capital
might withdraw from the projects prematurely. The contract
works for setting up hazardous waste incinerators would also
face the contract change risks arising from imperfect project
plan and design, changes in technical specifications and changes
in stakeholders’ requirements that lead to delay and suspension
of the services provided by the Group.

The Group would leverage on its experience in successful
bidding for contract works for construction and installation of
environmental equipment since 2016. The Group has formulated
construction schedule based on the specifications of contract
works, and recorded the completion of milestones and kept
tracking of each project’s progress. The Group has conducted
special inspection in respect of safety, environment and quality
of the construction on site to mitigate overall enterprise risks
thereon the operations. The Group will also review from time to
time the risks brought by further investment in the construction
industry of environmental equipment to the overall performance
of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The scale of the Group’s operations has changed moderately
which from time to time, increases the significance of internal
control risks arising from the uncertainties of effectiveness and
achievement of the objective of risk management and internal
control systems, or ineffectiveness of the internal control due
to any defective critical point subsisted in the risk management
and internal control systems or any improper internal control
measure.

The Group has continuously monitored the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems of the Group by
appointing independent professional consultants to carrying
out internal control review on all key operations of the Group
periodically. The Group has assigned designated staffs to
monitor each key operation of the Group who would strengthen
the liaison between the Group’s headquarter in Hong Kong,
head office in Zhenjiang and all project companies, and from
time to time, keep informed of the status of the projects and
ensure the top management’s policies are being implemented in
a timely and effective manner.

The impact of economic conditions on local industries in
Mainland China would affect the quantities of hazardous
waste discharged and the treatment service pricing for the
specific market offered by specific client base of the Group for
environmental waste treatment and disposal services.

The Group has to continue its business strategy to strengthen
penetration of different geographical markets and thereby to
reduce its dependency on the specific markets.

Loss of key personnel and lack of appropriately experienced
human resources would result in a delay in achieving the Group’s
strategic goals and development of new projects.

The Company has to review the organisational structure of the
Group and responsibilities and duties of all key staff members
regularly and to mitigate any possible loss on human capital
by regular reviews of recruitment and retention practices,
remuneration packages and succession planning within the
management team and to motivate the staff by implementation
of the share option scheme of the Company.
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?,J MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Y EREHBEH N
f;t.‘., 10. The Group faces significant increases in credit risk which are 10, 7<% F IF & ¥ 5 & & fg 69 78 2 42 410 -

mainly attributable to the increase in underperforming accounts
receivable from distressed clients during the period of increasing
economic uncertainty and emergency services called up by
local authorities during the impact of COVID-19. The Company
faces the challenge of inputting subjective forward-looking
information into the assessment of whether credit risk on the
accounts receivable has increased significantly. The Company
would perform both individual and collective assessments
on the recoverability of underperforming accounts due from
clients grouped by locations in different industrial parks in
Jiangsu Province, the PRC. As all clients of the Group have to
comply with strict environmental regulations to timely handle
the hazardous waste produced in their manufacturing process,
they have to engage with qualified service provider(s) to
collect, manage, decompose and finally landfill their hazardous
waste produced in order to avoid non-compliance penalties
or even being ordered to shut down. Those clients facing
risks of financial stress from increased economic uncertainty
would request for concessions against the current terms of
their contracts with the Group, delayed settlement of invoiced
amounts, and even involve the local authority in charge of the
industrial parks where they located to intervene in mediation.

The Group would incorporate impacts of increased economic
uncertainty on the risk of default into the probability of default
for individual exposures on a timely basis, incorporate qualitative
factors as there were changes in client’s payment behaviour,
assess if there were significant increases in credit risks on a
collective basis, and recognise allowance on lifetime expected
credit loss upon the deviation of contractual payment terms
by client(s). The Group would limit its exposure to credit risk
by rigorously selecting the counterparties (i.e. the clients, the
customers, the hazardous waste producers, and the market
intermediaries) and explore prudently for opportunities of
business optimisation and market diversification.

The Group faces various financial risks that have been disclosed
in note 43 to the financial statements on pages 258 to 270 of
this report.
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hF B2

= A =3
.é-"ﬂ? (=] %ﬁ

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-ALEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
oS —E-—F —TE-TF —T-HhE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F&T Fi& T FHET FHET
Revenue % 588,951 727,167 789,341 595,706 493,932
Cost of sales $H & A AN (469,594) (535,502) (569,558) (393,979) (311,859)
Gross profit EF 119,357 191,665 219,783 201,727 182,073
Other revenue N 4,249 4,637 4,107 4,152 4,266
Gain on disposal of HE—KWEB QA
a subsidiary 2 Wa 27,303 - = - =
Other income g A 11,416 7,407 13,443 11,198 18,512
Distribution costs 73 58 B AN (24,727) (23,916) (6,971) (9,554) (9,987)
Administrative expenses  1TE X (59,025) (59,718) (56,433) (54,172) (55,624)
Impairment loss on assets 2 (AR IEHEAE
classified as held for sale 2 {EEE - - (12,636) - -
Impairment loss on trade & W BR 3 2 5l 1B
receivables, net B8 - FE (3,388) (28,685) (9,526) (4,469) -
Other operating expenses H fth 8 & g 5z (30,747) (17,826) (24,525) (53,898) (21,752)
Operating profit BERF 44,438 73,564 127,242 94,984 117,488
Finance income B E A 5,652 4,140 402 2,517 5,152
Finance costs ELE= DN (5,693) (6,521) (9,564) (13,909) (14,302)
Finance costs, net BERA - HEE (41) (2,381) (9,162) (11,392) (9,150)
Share of results of DR R A
associates ZEE (7,250) (6,389) 10,302 6,826 2,510
Share of results of a joint D15 — KA &
venture ESvdE | (13,044) (4,440) (1,835) (1,545) (820)
Profit before taxation &% AR 24,103 60,354 126,547 88,873 110,028
Income tax FriSHt (19,539) (7,436) (24,501) (17,744) (23,602)
Profit for the year FEHA 4,564 52,918 102,046 71,129 86,426
Profit for the year UTFTATEGREE
attributable to: A
Owners of the Company AR F#EE A 7,273 40,419 74,576 40,625 74,386
Non-controlling interests  JF 122 5 % 25 (2,709) 12,499 27,470 30,504 12,040
4,564 52,918 102,046 71,129 86,426
Dividend declared for the BEEE &SR
results of the year f% 2 11,536 11,839 21,857 21,250 20,643
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T+ B #

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

HREEERER

&

Rt+t=-—A=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-C B —F —ZT-FTF —NE ZZE—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and LE RN
equipment 651,164 755,547 789,633 776,848 762,574
Prepaid lease payments b {# FI#E 2 J8 1+
for land use rights HEHE - - - - 132,402
Right-of-use assets ﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁF 103,159 111,053 129,640 131,559 -
Goodwill Bk 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000 33,000
Interests in associates REEE R A 2R 153,450 175,835 180,175 169,137 170,802
Interest in a joint venture M—REE XY
= 35,213 51,990 47,400 23,123 25,181
Equity investments at fair i@ H b 2 B W5 1%
value through other NEEAERZ
comprehensive income X AIKE
(non-recycling) (T r&eE) 70,300 80,800 118,100 97,300 92,200
Deferred tax assets BEREERE 10,229 10,154 - - -
1,056,515 1,218,379 1,297,948 1,230,967 1,216,159
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 7,037 6,718 6,062 4,283 3,573
Trade and bills R R EE
receivables 106,499 150,022 129,438 89,021 37,726
Prepayments, deposits ERRIE - e kE
and other receivables fth 78 U 30 I8 21,081 36,456 25,176 25,858 16,942
Contract assets BHEE 32,652 22,591 1,534 894 1,469
Prepaid lease payments i {F A 2 B
for land use rights EFE - - - - 3,657
Financial asset at fair BREZEAFEA
value through profitor BRZ&REE
loss - - - - 6,210
Restricted bank deposits S [R &l 2 R 177 5,225 8,191 12,511 154 -
Cash and cash RekERREIER
equivalents 270,279 302,074 257,523 267,393 282,239
442,773 526,052 432,244 387,603 351,816
Assets classified as held S AFIEHEDN
for sale BE 14,758 39,580 15,411 - -
457,531 565,632 447,655 387,603 351,816
Total assets WEE 1,514,046 1,784,011 1,745,603 1,618,570 1,567,975
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hF B2

o AL =l
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES #&5%5EREE (&
(continued)
As at 31 December
R+t=-—HA=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E-_= 2 —F ZZ2-TF ZT-hEF ZT—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAET FET FET
Current liabilities RBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 97,959 198,970 178,905 174,782 168,809
Other borrowing HifEE - = 25,000 = 25,000
Trade and bills payables R L ZE 69,739 78,607 66,315 32,732 10,254
Accrued liabilities and JEETaE R A EA

other payables FQL| 218,612 228,986 226,539 196,733 159,391
Lease liabilities HEBE 326 750 117 451 -
Contract liabilities EHEE 3,190 38,507 25,011 25,103 14,033
Considerations payable — YHEMIEB A 72

for acquisition of FERHRAE

subsidiaries - - - 24,800 49,600
Deferred government 3 E U 4 BA

grants 1,935 2,057 1,106 1,048 949
Income tax payable FETFriS B 5,575 6,094 6,251 4,112 3,428

397,336 553,971 529,244 459,761 431,464
Non—current liabilities I REBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE - - 10,130 65,627 85,680
Other borrowing HEEE - - - 25,000 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 341 720 30 139 -
Deferred government 3R RE RS 46 B

grants 10,462 13,431 5,327 6,095 6,592

Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEGE 30,400 33,079 37,535 33,632 33,710

41,203 47,230 53,022 130,493 125,982
Total liabilities maes 438,539 601,201 582,266 590,254 557,446
Net current assets/ REBEE(AE)

(liabilities) FE 60,195 11,661 (81,589) (72,158) (79,648)
Net assets BEEFE 1,075,507 1,182,810 1,163,337 1,028,316 1,010,529
Share capital A% A 30,357 30,357 30,357 30,357 30,357
Reserves 1 931,320 1,022,422 1,004,070 881,171 876,020
Equity attributable RRRERAEMS

to owners of the B2

Company 961,677 1,052,779 1,034,427 911,528 906,377
Non-controlling interests  3E#2 i% # 25 113,830 130,031 128,910 116,788 104,152
Total equity Az 1,075,507 1,182,810 1,163,337 1,028,316 1,010,529
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

)

EE e dEREE

DIRECTORS
XI'Yu (“Mr. X", aged 65)

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Mr. XI was appointed as executive Director and nominated as the
Chairman of the Board on 11 April 2016. He was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 16 October 2018. He is the chairman
of the executive committee of the Board. Mr. Xl is the director and legal
representative of various major subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland
China.

Mr. Xl was an executive Director from 7 June 2002 to 18 August 2014,
and was the Chairman of the Board, compliance officer and authorised
representative of the Company from 9 December 2004 to 18 August
2014. He has been a consultant to the Group from 22 August 2014 to 31
March 2016.

Mr. XI graduated from the Chemistry Department of the Peking University
in July 1980. Mr. Xl is the father of Ms. Erica XI. Mr. Xl is a director and
shareholder personally holding 83.66% equity interests in New Universe
Enterprises Limited (“NUEL"”) which in turn currently owns beneficial
interests in 36.54% of the issued shares of the Company. Mr. Xl is also the
director of New Universe Holdings Limited (“NUHL") and the director of
its subsidiaries, China (HK) Chemical & Plastics Company Limited (“China
(HK) Chemical”), which is principally engaged in trading of plastic resins,
and Sun Ngai International Investment Limited (“Sun Ngai”), which is
principally engaged in property investment.

CHEUNG Siu Ling (“Ms. CHEUNG"”, aged 61)

Executive Director and Authorised Representative

Ms. CHEUNG was appointed as executive Director on 1 April 2005.
On 18 August 2014, Ms. CHEUNG was appointed as the authorised
representative and the process agent of the Company. She is a member
of the executive committee of the Board. Ms. CHEUNG is the director of
various major subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. CHEUNG obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from
the University of South Australia in September 2005. Ms. CHEUNG is a
director and shareholder personally holding 6.07% equity interests in
NUEL. She is also the director of NUHL and the director of its subsidiaries,
China (HK) Chemical and Sun Ngai.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEkeREEEBRN

JJANG Qian (“Ms. JIANG”, aged 34)

Executive Director
Ms. JIANG was appointed as an executive Director and a member of the
Executive Committee with effect from 30 June 2022.

Ms. JIANG obtained a Bachelor’'s degree in Economics from Xi’an
University of Finance and Economics, China in June 2009, and a
Master’s degree in Finance from Fudan University, China in June
2012. Ms. JIANG obtained a Chartered Financial Analyst qualification
from the CFA Institute in May 2017, a fund practitioner qualification
from the Asset Management Association of China in June 2017, and
a Chinese legal professional qualification in April 2022. From July
2012 to September 2015, Ms. JIANG served as the senior investment
manager of the investment banking department Il of Hwabao Trust Co.,
Ltd. From September 2015 to January 2020, Ms. JIANG acted as the
investment director of the special investment department of CMIG Capital
Management Co., Ltd.*. Ms. JIANG is an executive director and a general
manager of Zhongmin Chuangfu Investment Management Co., Ltd.* since
January 2020, and is an executive director of the investments and mergers
and acquisitions department of CMIG Asia Asset Management Co., Ltd.*
since January 2021. Ms. JIANG is also a non-executive director of Yida
China Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (”Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 3639), since February
2022, and a supervisor of Shanghai DoBe Cultural & Creative Industry
Development Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300947), since March 2021.

LIU Yu Jie (“Ms. LIU", aged 58)

Executive Director
Ms. LIU was appointed as executive Director on 9 June 2015. She is a
member of the executive committee of the Board.

Ms. LIU obtained a Bachelor of Economics degree in Foreign Trade from
the Dongbei University of Finance and Economics, China in July 1987
and a Postgraduate Diploma in International Trade from the University of
International Business and Economics, China in June 1990. Ms. LIU was
the former executive director of SIIC Environment Holdings Limited (stock
code: BHK, a company whose shares are listed on the Singapore Exchange)
from November 2009 to August 2014. Ms. LIU is currently an executive
director of China Water Affairs Group Limited (stock code: 855, a
company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange) since September
2014, an executive director of Kangda International Environmental
Company Limited (stock code: 6136, a company whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange) since April 2019, and an independent
non-executive director of Zhongyu Gas Holdings Limited (stock code:
3633, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange) since
June 2017.
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HON Wa Fai (“Mr. HON", aged 62)

Executive Director, Company Secretary, Financial Controller and
Authorised Representative

Mr. HON was appointed to the Group as financial controller on 6
September 2004. He was appointed as the qualified accountant, company
secretary and authorised representative of the Company on 6 October
2004, and appointed as executive Director on 28 September 2006. He is a
member of the executive committee of the Board.

Mr. HON obtained a Master of Business Administration degree from the
University of Strathclyde, United Kingdom in November 2002, a Master
of Professional Accounting degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in November 2001, and a Master of Applied Finance degree
from the University of Western Sydney, Australia in August 1999. He was
admitted as an Associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (formerly named as Hong Kong Society of Accountants)
in April 1994 and admitted as a Fellow in December 2002, and he is a
registered practising Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong since
November 1996. He was admitted as an Associate of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in May 1994 and admitted as a Fellow
in May 1999. He was admitted as a Senior Associate of the Financial
Services Institute of Australasia in June 1999, and an Associate with
the designations of Chartered Secretary and Chartered Governance
Professional of the Chartered Governance Institute (formerly named as the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators), United Kingdom
and the Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute (formerly named
as the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries), Hong Kong, in
September 2000.

Xl Man Shan Erica (“Ms. Erica XI”, aged 27)

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Erica XI was appointed as executive Director and a member of the
executive committee on 1 October 2020. She has been re-designated
from an executive Director to a non-executive Director and resigned as a
member of the Executive Committee with effect from 30 June 2022.

Ms. Erica Xl is the daughter of Mr. XI. Ms. Erica X| obtained a Bachelor of
Laws degree from the University of Bristol, United Kingdom in June 2017
and a Graduate Diploma in Law from University of Law, United Kingdom in
July 2020. Ms. Erica Xi is a Junior Counsel called to the Bar in Hong Kong
in 2022.
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CHAN Yan Cheong (“Dr. CHAN", aged 69)

Independent Non-Executive Director
Dr. CHAN was appointed as independent non-executive Director on 1
February 2000 and he was appointed as the chairman of audit committee
of the Board. He is a member of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Board.

Dr. CHAN obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering
in August 1977, a Master of Science degree in Materials Science
in December 1978, and a Doctor of Philosophy degree in Electrical
Engineering in July 1983, all from the Imperial College of Science and
Technology, University of London, United Kingdom. He obtained a Master
of Business Administration degree from the University of Hong Kong in
December 1989. He was admitted as a Chartered Electrical Engineer of
the Institution of Engineering & Technology (United Kingdom) in February
1988. Dr. CHAN was admitted as a Fellow of the Institute of Electrical
and Electronic Engineers, INC (USA) in January 2004 and conferred the
status of Life Fellow on 1 January 2020. Dr. CHAN joined City University of
Hong Kong in February 1991 and was awarded Chair Professorship on July
2001. On 20 January 2020, he retired from the City University of Hong
Kong as the Chair Professor of the Department of Electronic Engineering.

YUEN Kim Hung, Michael (“Mr. YUEN", aged 61)

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. YUEN was appointed as independent non-executive Director on 24
April 2002 and was appointed as the chairman of nomination committee
of the Board on 19 March 2012. He is a member of the remuneration
committee and audit committee of the Board.

Mr. YUEN obtained a Professional Diploma in Accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1983. He was admitted
as an Associate Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in September 1988, a Fellow of the
Chartered Association of Certified Accountants in October 1991, and a
chartered professional accountant member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of British Columbia, Canada in June 2015. Mr. YUEN is
currently providing accounting, secretarial and taxation services in Hong
Kong. He was the former independent non-executive director of Prosperity
Minerals Holdings Limited (a company whose shares had previously been
listed in the London Stock Exchange) from May 2006 to September
2014, the former independent non-executive director of Steed Oriental
(Holdings) Company Limited (stock code: 8277, a company whose shares
are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange) from September 2013 to
August 2016, and the former independent non-executive director of
Prosperity International Holdings (H.K.) Ltd (stock code: 803, a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange) from January 2002 to May
2019.
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HO Yau Hong, Alfred (“Mr. HO", aged 65)

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. HO was appointed as independent non-executive Director on 30
September 2004 and was appointed as the chairman of the remuneration
committee of the Board on 19 March 2012. He is a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of the Board.

Mr. HO obtained a Bachelor of Commerce (Honours) degree from
University of Windsor, Windsor, Canada in September 1984. Mr. HO
was admitted as a Canadian Chartered Accountant in December 1988, a
Fellow Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in September 1997, and a Fellow of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong in April 2001. Mr. HO was the former part-time
professor in accounting and auditing at Algonquin College, Ottawa,
Canada from September 1990 to April 1995. He was the former facilitator
for the Qualification Program of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants in taxation from 2001 to 2015. He was the former
part-time tutor in taxation at the Open University of Hong Kong from
March 2006 to September 2007, and was the former part-time lecturer/
senior lecturer in taxation and accounting at the Hong Kong Shue Yan
University from September 2014 to May 2018. Mr. HO was the former
finance director of Sinosoft Technology PLC (a company whose shares
had previously been listed on the London Stock Exchange) from October
2007 to April 2009. Mr. HO is currently practising in Hong Kong with his
own accounting firm and as a director in corporate practice with Christian
Alliance CPA Limited.

YANG Harry (“Mr. YANG", aged 60)

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. YANG was appointed as an independent non-executive Director and
a member of each of the audit committee of the Board, the nomination
committee of the Board and the remuneration committee of the Board
with effect from 1 January 2023.

Mr. YANG obtained a Bachelor’s degree majoring in English from the
Shandong Normal University, China in July 1983 and obtained a Master's
degree majoring in English for Foreign Trading from the University of
International Business and Economics, China in July 1989. Mr. YANG
joined the Sinochem Group as a section officer from August 1989 to
July 1991. Mr. YANG then served as a general manager and a director
of Sinochem (USA) Inc. from July 1991 to August 1998 and as a general
manager and managing director of Sinochem International Oil London
Co., Ltd. from August 1998 to August 2001. From August 2001 to
February 2006, Mr. YANG served as a general manager and the vice
chairman of the board of US Agri-Chemicals Corporation. Mr. YANG
was the former executive director of Sinofert Holdings Limited (stock
code: 297), a company listed on the Stock Exchange from 6 March 2006
to 20 March 2023. Mr. YANG has accumulated extensive experience in
international trade and international fertilizer business.
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Notes:

(@  Dr. CHAN, Ms. Erica XI and Mr. HON shall retire from the office as
Directors by rotation. Ms. JIANG and Mr. YANG shall retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting in accordance with Article 83(3) of the Articles
of Association. Ms. Erica XI and Mr. HON, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting in
accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association.

(b)  Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 9 to the financial
statements on pages 186 to 187 of this annual report.

(c) Save as disclosed therein, there are no other information relating to the
Directors is to be disclosed pursuant to the Rules 13.51(2) of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WONG Lai Wa (“Ms. WONG", aged 52)

Deputy General Manager of the Company

Supervisor of Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-electroplating Development Limited

Supervisor of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company
Limited

Supervisor of Jiangsu New Universe Environmental Engineering
Management Limited*

Supervisor of Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies Company
Limited*

Ms. WONG was appointed as deputy general manager of the Company

in June 2007. She is currently the supervisor of various major subsidiaries

of the Group in China. Ms. WONG obtained a Diploma in Business

Management from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in October 2005.

She was formerly an accountant of NUHL from April 2003 to September

2008.
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LIU Yuan (“Ms. LIU Yuan”, aged 52)

Vice President of the Company

Director & General Manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste
Disposal Company Limited

Director of Jiangsu New Universe Environmental Engineering Management
Limited* (resigned with effect from 10 January 2023)

Director of Yancheng NUHF Environmental Technology Limited*

Director of Xiangshui New Universe Environmental Technology Limited

General Manager of Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies Company
Limited* (resigned with effect from 1 January 2023)

Director of Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste Disposal Limited*

Director of Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Tianyu Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited

Director of Liuzhou Xinyu Rongkai Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited*

Ms. LIU Yuan was appointed as vice president of the Company in August

2018. She is currently the director and/or the general manager of various

major subsidiaries of the Group in China. Ms. LIU Yuan was appointed

as a finance manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal

Company Limited in April 2003 and then promoted to deputy general

manager in September 2005. She was appointed as director and general

manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company

Limited in January 2009. Ms. LIU Yuan graduated from Nanjing College of

Economics (now renamed as Nanjing University of Finance and Economics)

with a Professional Certificate in Accounting and Statistics in June 1998,

and she was conferred the title of intermediate accountant in China in

May 2001.

GU Lin (“"Mr. GU", aged 53)

Chief Engineer of the Company

Deputy General Manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited

Deputy General Manager of Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies
Company Limited*

Chief Engineer of Jiangsu New Universe Environmental Engineering
Management Limited*

Mr. GU was appointed as chief engineer of the Company and deputy

general manager of the Group’s subsidiary, Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental

Technologies Company Limited* in December 2018. Mr. GU is the

deputy general manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal

Company Limited since October 2007. Mr. GU obtained a Bachelor of

Science degree from the Jilin University, China, in chemical engineering in

1991. He was conferred the professional qualification of senior engineer

(specialised in petrochemical engineering) in China in October 2012.
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HE Ling Yun (“Mr. HE”, aged 51)

Executive director and General Manager of Jiangsu New Universe
Environmental Engineering Management Limited*

Mr. HE was appointed as general manager of the Group’s subsidiary,
Jiangsu New Universe Environmental Engineering Management Limited*
in September 2015, and with effect from 10 January 2023, he was also
appointed as the executive director of that subsidiary. Mr. HE was a
manager in the R&D department of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste
Disposal Company Limited from February 2012 to September 2015.
Mr. HE graduated from the Sichuan Joint University, China (now renamed
as Sichuan University) in the professional study of chemical equipment and
machinery in July 1996. He was conferred the professional qualification of
associate constructor (specialised in electrical and mechanical engineering)
in February 2010 and senior engineer (specialised in petrochemical
engineering) in China in November 2016.

Mr. YANG Jun Rong (“Mr. YANG Junrong”, aged 55)

Deputy General Manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal
Company Limited
Deputy General Manager of Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies
Company Limited*
Director of Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste Disposal Limited*
Mr. YANG Junrong was appointed in September 2020 as deputy general
manager of the Group’s subsidiary, Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental
Technologies Company Limited*. Mr. YANG Junrong is the deputy general
manager of Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company
Limited since January 2009. Mr. YANG Junrong obtained a Bachelor of
Science degree from the Nanjing Institute of Aeronautics (now renamed
Nanjing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics) in materials science of
corrosion and protection. He was conferred the professional qualification
of senior environment engineering project manager (specialised in waste
treatment) in China in March 2015.

* For identification purpose only

EREEZ

MEE([AEELE]  515%)
THFHERIEEEERAGNITEESR
FeF g
AEEEER - E—RENARELALEE
WBAR IHTHBRIRERARATN
@R RR-E-=&#—A+ABEEAZ
WEARMAITESE - AEEEEE —T——
E-RAE-_E-AFNAABRBEIFTHEES
BEYREARDTFRBER  MEERER
—AAREL ARTED)IBAXE(BEE
ZANIAS) L IREREMEN LR
BAUR-_E—EE-_AR-—T—~E+—A
BhBEEEN(KEIR) RSRIRMA (AL
TR)HEEEE -

BERERTE ([HERTE] - 555%)
HTH TR EEH IR 2 7] 5IRAE 52

TR FRIRFLS BB A 75845

HTHEBIEBEER D ERLFIEFE
BERERER - ZE_ZEFANARZERLTEH
M@ AR LA TIRARMIRER AR BIBLE -
—EENF AR BERKEEETEIH
TFTEREVEERRAABGKRE -HEKE
AESARMERR REXE /B RMEM
ARE)MHNBRMEEEXTREE+
B BR-ZT-LF=AERTESHRR
Ti2RE EEAN (RFIEIEEY) EXER -

“ECCFFHR FFERREEERAF 43



PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
=SSk RETEEERN

Notes: Biat -
(@) The emoluments of the above-mentioned members of senior (a) FiiERETEEKE (BRI 2B
management, other than Directors, fell within the following bands: THIAR :
2022 2021
—=E_-— —E-—F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A" AH
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) B8R (LAITTE)
Nil to HK$500,000 T 7L E500,00078 7T - -
HK$500,001 to HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 L2 1,000,000/ 7T 3 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 T2 1,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T = 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 722,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 T %E3,000,000%8 7T = 1
5 5

(b)  Mr. DAO Lu (“Mr. DAO") resigned as general manager of the Group’s (b) BEE LA ((BEE]) R T - N\ A

subsidiary, Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-electroplating Development Limited =+ —HBEREENB AR EIIER4
with effect from 31 August 2022, and he was then appointed as the REEMBRERAERAR ZELIREE
deputy general manager of another subsidiary of the Group, Jiangsu Xin HEREZAAREE RS —WBARLEHN
Yu Environmental Technologies Company Limited*. The emoluments of FRENMBZERARZBIALIE - BAAE
Mr. DAO were within the band of HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 in RZZEZ_FHH&EMN1,000,0018TE
2022 (2021: within the band of HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000). 1,500,000 T#HE A (Z = —F : BR

1,000,001 70 % 1,500,000/8 st #[&E A) °

() The equity-settled share-based compensations of the above-mentioned  (¢)  Lili5f (FEIEELE) SHERERS (&

5 members (excluding Mr. DAO) of senior management, other than EBRIN) AR AR E RO EER S
Directors, were set out as follows: ZHEE T

Granted on Granted on Granted on

18 January 2022 15 January 2021 15 January 2020

but not yet and vested on and vested on

vested 26 August 2022 7 May 2021

MN-ZT——%F RZTZZF

R=-=2== —A+HRAET —ATHEAEERT

—A+NBERF ERR-T__ ER-ZT——

BEEARSEE NA-+ BHE AAtHREBE

The share options (the “Options”) _bilisfim A& EIEERK 8

granted BER BRE
to the above-mentioned ([HERRHE])
5 members of senior management 10,920,000 5,551,000 9,640,000
(i) The Options granted represent the number of shares to be issued 0) EETHEREERER TERER
upon exercise in full of the Options granted which is subject to PHETERBSRTHORDEE » AJR
adjustment according to the vesting conditions specified in each EEETELKIAZEBEE T A
particular offer letters. FEE o
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The Options granted on 15 January 2020 are exercisable at an
exercise price of HK$0.25 per share from the date of vesting to
the earlier of (i) the date on which the Options lapse in accordance
with the terms of the share option scheme; or (ii) the 30th
business day after the date of publication of the annual results of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The Options granted on 15 January 2021 are exercisable at an
exercise price of HK$0.272 per share. The Options vested are
exercisable from the date of publication of the annual results of
the Company for the year ending 31 December 2023 (the “2023
Results Date”) to the earlier of (i) the date on which such Options
lapses in accordance with the terms of the share option scheme; or
(i) the 90th business day after the 2023 Results Date.

The Options granted on 18 January 2022 are exercisable at an
exercise price of HK$0.308 per share. Subject to the Options
having been vested, the Options vested are exercisable from the
date of publication of the annual results of the Company for the
year ending 31 December 2024 (the “2024 Results Date”) to the
earlier of (i) the date on which such Options lapses in accordance
with the terms of the share option scheme; or (ii) the 90th
business day after the 2024 Results Date.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director(s)”) of New Universe
Environmental Group Limited (the “Company” together with its
subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”) are pleased to present
the corporate governance report for the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(@) The Board of Directors of the Company and the management are
committed to upholding good corporate governance practices
and business ethics. The Company believes that maintenance of
high standard of business ethics and good corporate governance
is essential for effective management, healthy business growth
and fostering a contemporary corporate culture, which drives the
Group to growing sustainably and safeguarding the interests of the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”).

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
applied the principles of and complied with the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code set out in Part 2 of Appendix 14
("CG Code") to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”), but save for the code provision
C.2.1, the Directors confirmed that they were not aware of any
other deviation from the CG Code for the year then ended.

(c)  Code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. With effect from
16 October 2018, Mr. XI Yu (“Mr. XI”, chairman of the Board
(“Chairman”)) has assumed the role of both Chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company (“CEQ"). As such, starting from
16 October 2018, the assumption of the dual role of both Chairman
and CEO by Mr. XI constitutes a deviation from code provision C.2.1
of the CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

(a)

Composition of the Board

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises ten members,
consisting of five executive Directors, one non-executive Director
and four independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. XI Yu (Chairman and CEO)

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling

Ms. JIANG Qian (Note

Ms. LIU Yu Jie

Mr. HON Wa Fai (Financial Controller and Company Secretary)

Non-executive Director
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica Mote)

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong

Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred

Mr. YANG Harry (Mote)

Note:

Ms. JIANG Qian was appointed as an executive Director with effect from
30 June 2022.

Ms. XI Man Shan Erica was re-designated from an executive Director to
a non-executive Director with effect from 30 June 2022.

Mr. YANG Harry was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2023.

Operation of the Board

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for the day-to-day management and operations of
the Group to the senior management of the Group. To oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs, the Board has
established four Board committees including the audit committee
(the "Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the executive committee (the
“Executive Committee”) (collectively referred to as the “Board
Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board Committees
responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of reference.
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Composition of the Board Committees

The Company established four Board Committees. The table below
provides membership information of these committees on which
each Board member served for the year ended 31 December 2022 as
follows:

()

ESZBEMAK
AARREMBEEEEAR - TRIH
BE-T-—F+-A=+—ALFE
EEFEREFBBOLEEARNE
BENMT

Audit Nomination Remuneration Executive

Committee Committee Committee Committee

BEREEE REZEEE FMEESE BITEES

Mr. XI Yu EEEAE C

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling RNB L M

Ms. XI Man Shan Erica et 2 2 A o) XM

Mr. ZHENG Zhen (Mote) Bl B2 o e (Wit xM

Ms. JIANG Qian Mote BE e M

Ms. LIU Yu Jie BIEAL+L M

Mr. HON Wa Fai BRI A M
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong BRREE T M M
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael B & #T % 4 M C M
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred G ER e M C

Notes: it -

C: Chairman of the relevant Board committee
M: Member of the relevant Board committee
xM: Ex-member of the relevant Board committee

Ms. XI Man Shan Erica resigned as member of the Executive
Committee with effect from 30 June 2022 at the same time when
she was re-designated from an executive Director to a non-executive
Director.

Mr. ZHENG Zhen resigned as member of the Executive Committee
with effect from 30 June 2022 at the same time when he resigned
as executive Director.

Ms. JIANG Qian was appointed as member of the Executive
Committee at the same time she was appointed an executive
Director with effect from 30 June 2022.

The table above does not include Mr. YANG Harry, who has been
newly appointed as a new member of the Audit Committee when he
was appointed an independent non-executive Director with effect
from 1 January 2023.
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Directors’ attendance to board meetings and

shareholders’ meeting(s)

The following table shows the attendance record of each Board
member for the board meetings and Shareholders’ meetings of the
Company held during the year ended 31 December 2022:

(d)

X ERA®RS

EEREETTLIARERD
B HEE R
TRERNSEEEHNENARREE S
- F+_A=+—BILEFERET
JEEEERRRREARE 2 HELE

Number of meetings attended/held

HEBIT2EEBRE
Directors’
meeting
Regular Non-regular pursuant to Annual
Board Board CG Code general
meeting meeting C.2.7 meeting
BB
ERTA
FC.2.71%
EHESS FEEH B2 REBF
Board member EEE|RE BE EZggE EZgg3 AE
Executive Director HITES
Mr. XI'Yu EZREAE 4/4 717 1/1 1/1
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling RNR L 4/4 7/7 - 1/1
Ms. JIANG Qian ®ote BlEr L wan 2/2 3/4 - 0/0
Mr. ZHENG Zhen (Note 2 B ey 1/2 3/3 - 0/1
Ms. LIU Yu Jie BIENL L 4/4 717 - 0/1
Mr. HON Wa Fai FRIEB A 4/4 717 - 171
Non-executive Director FHITESE
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica ES§ilip-n 4/4 717 - 0/1
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
Director
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong fRAEH T 4/4 7/7 1/1 1/1
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael BT &I 4T S 4 4/4 7/7 1/1 1/1
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred IRk & 4/4 7/7 1/1 1/1
Notes: Htiz
1. Ms. JJANG Qian was appointed as executive Director with effect 1. EBEZEtR-_ZT-_—_FXA=1+HE

from 30 June 2022.

2. Mr. ZHENG Zhen resigned as an executive Director with effect

from 30 June 2022.

ZERBITES -
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(e) Directors’ attendance to the meetings of Board

Yarax \A

B /A #& ]

Committees

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Meetings of Audit Committee

The following was an attendance record of the Audit
Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December

2022:

Committee member

EZEERE

() EFENEFRESERNLE

@uﬁmﬂjﬁuaﬁ

Number of meetings
attended/held
HiE BT 2 ERRE

Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong
(chairman of committee)
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred

Meetings of Nomination Committee

RREBL (ZRELE)

B &I4L 5E A4
A

(1)

The following was an attendance record of the Nomination
Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December

2022:

Committee member

@ukmﬂjﬁuaﬁ

Number of meetings
attended/held

ZEE8NE HRE BT ZERRE
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael iRl e s (ZEE2FE)

(chairman of committee) 3/3
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong PRRE™ L 3/3
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred AR RS A& 3/3

Meetings of Remuneration Committee

(iif)

The following was an attendance record of the Remuneration
Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December

2022:

Committee member

LA

MTREBE_Z — A
E+*E¢¢x$ﬁ%%wéég
%mﬁ']ﬂ:'f.:ﬂ

W‘rﬂll

Number of meetings
attended/held

ZEE8NE HiE BT ERRE
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred MREE (ZEESFE)

(chairman of committee) 5/5
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong BRREE L 5/5
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael e & 4T 5 A4 5/5
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Meetings of Executive Committee (iv)
The following was an attendance record of the Executive

Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 December

2022:

Committee member

X ERA®RS

HITZELEE

LWTAEBE-_Z-__F+=
=+ HALFERTHORTEES
SR E R

Number of meetings
attended/held

ZEERE HEBIT28BRE
Mr. XI Yu (chairman of committee) EXh4E (ZE2FFE) 2/2
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling RNBZLE 2/2
Ms. JIANG Qian Mete 7 BB mar 171
Ms. LIU Yu Jie B ERZT 1/2
Mr. HON Wa Fai BEBLA 2/2
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica Mete2 E Lt w2 0/0
Mr. ZHENG Zhen (ote3) B S (i) 0/0

Notes Btz -

1. Ms. JIANG Qian was appointed as executive director with 1. BFELZIRZZE-__FX

effect from 30 June 2022.

2. Ms. XI Man Shan Erica was re-designated from executive
director to non-executive director with effect from 30 June
2022.

3. Mr. ZHENG Zhen resigned as an executive director effective

from 30 June 2022.
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(f)

&

Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of
Board and management

Every Director on Board knows his/her responsibilities as a Director
and its conduct, business activities and development. Independent
non-executive Directors have the same duties of care and skill and
fiduciary duties as executive Directors.

The Directors, collectively and individually, are aware of their
responsibilities to shareholders of the Company, for the manner
in which the affairs of the Company and the Group are managed
and operated. In the appropriate circumstances and as and when
necessary, Directors will seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expense, ensuring the board procedures, all applicable
rules and regulations, are followed.

The Board has overall responsibility for the stewardship of the
Group and gives clear directions as to the power delegated to
the management of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
management and administration functions of the Group, in
particular, with respect to the circumstances where management
of the Company and its subsidiaries should report back in a timely
manner to the Board and obtain prior approval from the Board
before making decisions or entering into any commitments on
behalf of the Group or in the name of any member of the Group.
The Board will review those arrangements on a periodic basis to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Matters requiring the Board’s approval include, among others,
(i) review of overall policies and objectives for corporate capital
contributions, (ii) corporate budgets, (iii) corporate plans of the
Company and its subsidiaries, and any significant changes thereto,
(iv) investment plans involving significant commitments of financial,
technological and human resources, or involving significant risks
for the Company, (v) major sales, transfers, or other dispositions
of properties or assets of the Group, (vi) significant changes in the
Board’s policies, (vii) major organisational changes, (viii) financial
statements of the Group, including annual report, semi-annual
and quarterly financial reports and monthly operating results, (ix)
borrowing and financial arrangement, and (x) other matters relating
to the Group’s business which in the judgement of the Chairman
and/or the CEO of the Company are of such significance to merit
the Board’s consideration, and adoption of such policies or such
actions taken as the Board considers to be in the best interests of the
Company.
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In order to ensure that the Board can obtain effective, diversified
and independent views and opinions, the Company has established
an evaluation and review mechanism to enhance the accountability
of Directors and provide valuable feedback information that can
help improve the effectiveness of the Board, give full play to its
advantages, and point out areas for further development.

The operation of such mechanism is summarised as follows:

(@) the Board may conduct internal evaluations (led by
independent non-executive directors) and solicit opinions from
Directors on the performance of the Board in the form of
guestionnaires and/or interviews;

(b) the Board may also invite senior executives and key
stakeholders to provide useful opinions. Appropriate
improvements can be made in each assessment, focusing on
the progress in solving the main issues raised in the previous
assessment. The evaluation report will be submitted to the
Board to discuss the results and action plans for improvement;

(c)  after the Board's evaluation, the Company will disclose the
results of the Board's evaluation in the corporate governance
report to achieve accountability and transparency. In addition
to disclosing the results of the Board" evaluation, the Company
will also set out (i) the purpose and scope of the Board’s
evaluation; (ii) the method of evaluation; (iii) the criteria used
for the evaluation; and (iv) the action plan to be taken (such as
Directors’ training); and

(d) the Board may also hire independent professional companies
or persons to evaluate the Board, as an auxiliary method in
addition to the evaluation of the Board by internal leaders.
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All executive Directors and non-executive Directors bring in a variety FTERITEENIERNTEETAELALNGS
of experience and expertise to the Company with their respective REZEBLEER FESAZBE
responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions set out as follows: BMEREEHIOT
(i) Function of Executive Directors ()  BITEFEMBEE

Name Position Current Function

#A B RRHEA

Mr. XI Yu Chairman, CEO and - Leading the Board

executive Director - Developing vision and strategies of the Group

- Developing long term mission of the Group

- Ensuring good corporate governance functions and practices

- Formulating strategic planning and direction

- Developing corporate goals, targets and objectives of the Group
- Investors relations

EE i IR THERR - f853¢
HiTEE - HAREEMER LR

- HAREENREBRS

- BERRULEERBELER

- BERERILIM

- HEIAKELEER  BHRRE
- RAEME

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling Executive Director - Implementing corporate governance practices
- Implementing procedures to ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations
- Administration of head office
- Human resources management of the Group
- Overseeing daily operations of the Group through delegations
FNRL HiTES - BOREEREAR
- HOTREFIBRRARERER  RERAD
- BRERNTHER
- FREBWANERER
- BBRZRERASEAREE

Ms. JJANG Qian Executive Director - Advising on PRC compliance and corporate finance of the Company
- Advising on merger and acquisition and investment opportunities for the Group
Bnt Hi7E% - BRARAETREERRCERARMER
- BARENGBRREMERMESR
Ms. LIU Yu Jie Executive Director - Advising on PRC compliance and corporate finance of the Company
- Advising on merger and acquisition and investment opportunities for the Group
#EAL HiTES - BARTETHEEARARRARMER
- BARENHERREMERMAESR
Mr. HON Wa Fai Executive Director, financial - Overseeing financial reporting, accounting, treasury, financial control, and compliance
controller, and company functions of the Company
secretary - Formulating merger and acquisition exercises
- Investors relations
BEERE B8 MBBER - ERADANIHRE g BE - UHEERS RN
DAWE - RENEED
- RELEH%
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(i) Function of non-executive Directors (i)  FEBTTEFER B EE
Name Independence Current Function
®E ByH B0 O B Y

Ms. XI Man Shan Erica

eS¢ e

Dr. CHAN Yan
Cheong

Mr. YUEN Kim Hung,
Michael

Al % &

Mr. HO Yau Hong,
Alfred

fIRELE

Mr. YANG Harry

BREEE

Advising on corporate governance practices

Advising on procedures to ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations
SEEERERARMER

ARREFALRAAE  AERANRRER

Relationship with academic and industrial expertise

Monitoring risk management and internal control functions of the Group

Bringing in independent judgement on issues of corporate strategies, policy, performances, accountancy,
key appointments, standards of conduct and environmental protection

Scrutinising the Company's performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives
Serving on audit, remuneration and nomination committees
HEMARIXREXZBG

ERASEMEREERAPEAD

SRRRE BX - RR 85t TEZRA TARARBRERHE AR
EERRAERLAARRTENRS

TRREY FWRELZ58

Advising on auditing, taxation, compliance and financial matters

Monitoring risk management and internal control functions of the Group

Bringing in independent judgement on issues of policy, performances, accountancy, taxation, key
appointments and standards of conduct

Serving on audit, remuneration and nomination committees

Scrutinising the Company's performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives
Possessing with professional accounting qualification and financial experience
HER TR ARRIBRARMER

ERAEENARER RNBEANY

SRR KB g WA FERAROAENFEELBUAE

ERNEL FWRREZEE

FEEARFERLAARRTENRE

FREXEHERRIBIER

Advising on auditing, taxation, compliance and financial matters

Monitoring risk management and internal control functions of the Group

Bringing in independent judgement on issues of policy, performances, accountancy, taxation, key
appointments and standards of conduct

Serving on audit, remuneration and nomination committees

Scrutinising the Company's performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives
Possessing with professional accounting qualification and financial experience
HENR WA ARNMBEERMER

ERREENARERRABERDE

SR KB B WA FERAROARIFEIELBUAE

TRNEYR FWREEZEE

BEARAERDARBRRENER

FREZEHERRYKER

Monitoring corporate government practices, risk management and internal control functions of the Group
Bringing in independent judgement on issues of corporate strategies, policy, performances, key
appointments, standards of conduct, and ESG commitment

Serving on audit, remuneration and nomination committees

Scrutinising the Company's performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives
ERARENCREREREE  AREERASEADH

SOERE BE KB FERE TREN RRE HeRERNEGRELBAE

ERREY,  FWRREZEE

BEARFERLAARRRENRE
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(g) Board meetings and procedures

The Board conducts regular board meetings at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Regular board meetings
of the Company shall involve active participation and presence of
a majority of Directors entitled to be present, in person or through
interactive electronic meeting or hybrid meeting. Ad-hoc Board
meetings are convened when a board-level decision on a particular
matter is required which include obtaining Board consent through
circulating written resolutions or through interactive electronic
meeting or hybrid meeting. Board meetings are structured to
allow open discussion. All Directors have participated in discussing
the strategy, operational and financial performance, and risk

management and internal control of the Group.

The Chairman of the Board is primarily responsible for drawing up
and approving the agenda for each Board meeting. He takes into
account, where appropriate to ensure, any matter proposed by
the other Directors for inclusion in the agenda for regular Board
meetings. The Chairman delegates this responsibility to the company
secretary of the Company appointed under Rule 3.28 of the Listing

Rules (the “Company Secretary”).

Notice of at least 14 days has been given for all regular Board
meetings of the Company. For all other Board meetings, reasonable

notices have been given.

The Company Secretary shall be the secretary to all Board meetings
who is responsible for keeping minutes of all Board meetings and
meetings of Board Committees. Minutes of all meetings are open for
inspection at reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Minutes of all Board meetings and meetings of Board Committees
have recorded in sufficient details the matters considered and
decisions reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or
dissenting views expressed. Draft and final versions of the Board
minutes have been sent to all Directors for their comments and
records respectively, within a reasonable time after the board

meeting is held.

Any Director may request the Board in writing to seek for
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
expense of the Company. The Board shall resolve to provide separate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist them to

discharge their duties to the Company.
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If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interests
in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board has
determined to be material, the matter shall be dealt with by a
Board meeting with all Directors be present in person rather than a
written resolution. The independent non-executive Directors, who
and whose associates have no material interest in the transaction
shall be present at the Board meeting to deal with the matter. Other
than the exceptional situation under the Listing Rules, any Director
who or whose associates have any material interest in any proposed
Board resolutions shall not be counted as a quorum in the relevant
Board meeting or shall be abstained from voting for the Board
resolutions. All Board Committees adopted the same principles and
procedures used in the Board meetings.

Supply of and access to information

For regular board meetings, and as far as practicable in all other
cases, an agenda and accompanying board papers will be sent, in
full, to all Directors in a timely manner and at least 3 days before the
intended date of a Board or Board committee meeting, and for other
ad hoc or urgency meetings at other agreed period.

The senior management of the Group is obliged to supply the Board
and its committees of the Company with appropriate and adequate
information through financial reports, business and operational
reports and budget statements in a timely manner to keep the Board
members informed of the latest development of the Group. The
Board members have the right to access to the Group’s information,
board papers and related materials from either the Chairman or the
Company Secretary. Where any Director requires more information
than is volunteered by the senior management, he/she makes further
enquiries where necessary and shall separate and independent
access to the senior management of the Company.

Independence of independent non-executive
Directors

The Listing Rules stipulates that every listed issuer to have at least
three independent non-executive directors representing at least
one-third of the Board, and at least one of whom must have the
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. For the year ended 31 December
2022, two of the independent non-executive Directors have the
appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors have been expressly
identified as such in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of the Directors.
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Each of the three independent non-executive Directors has given an RAR=ZZBIYIHTESEEE AR
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company, and the AAFEHEBYIMENFERR MAR
Company considers them to be independent under Rule 3.13 of the ARBEEREMARBIEINZGAIED
Listing Rules. BIAL -

Based on the annual written confirmation given by each of Dr. BERZEE T - Bl k4 Rl thE
CHAN Yan Cheong, Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO SAEZBRE ETRANEIIMEATIEME
Yau Hong, Alfred to meet the criteria set out in the independence LEEEEBATEELIMEESINHRTE
quideline in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the LEESAEBREL ZHER Y AE
undertaking in writing given by each of them as to their continuing EXZ2HEMRRAERELT el itER
independence, the Board believes that each of Dr. CHAN Yan MEREESBRBELAL -

Cheong, Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO Yau Hong,
Alfred is independent.

In order to achieve a diversity of perspectives among members of RTEESeNEZHEERKZTILOE
the Board, it is the policy of the Company to consider a wide range AR BRRERTEETENER
of criteria when deciding on appointments to the Board and the EREERZEREEIZNEE -EEeE
continuation of those appointments. The Board considers gender, BUR - Fit - XERHBEES - Eik -
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional EANAEBEBENORELRS g
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service to be relevant NBELREFE RAEBF L NEFTS
to the Company’s business. Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong is a chartered RIEA R EERABRLEER
electrical engineer. Both Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO BAEAFMETM - MHEREENAEE S
Yau Hong, Alfred are certified public accountants in Hong Kong. HE2gdre8 -BASEFEL Wy
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred is also a fellow of the Taxation Institution WEERMAERAESBAEENKE
of Hong Kong. Each of Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong, Mr. YUEN Kim E BERELEMEM AT EMEEE
Hung, Michael and Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred brings to the Board KB hEREAEES - RAEE
via their professional qualifications, experience and expertise in TR EERAEREESTENE
financial matters, management vision and other technical skill set. AN FEL - N KR EREFE A
The professional qualification, skills, knowledge, experience as well EESRHEEENEHN - BB RkE
as length of service of each of Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong, Mr. YUEN LEZERNERBETERERER
Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred provides the Board STRERANEEMZOER KRB MIE
with a range of perspectives, insights and challenge that enable the HEREAE WX HEZGNETRI
Board to discharge its duties and responsibilities effectively, support MER

good decision making in view of the core businesses and strategy of
the Group, and support succession planning and development of the

Board.

Mr. YANG Harry was appointed as an independent non-executive BREREBZERBIIENTES
Director with effect from 1 January 2023 and he has submitted his “E-=F-—A—HERBAEW IRFT
confirmation of independence under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules BREEMARRIRZEE LMREIE33
to the Company upon his appointment. 1 E AR A S R FESR PR o

() Relationship between Board members () EFEKE 2HEMNBEE

Each of Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling, being executive EFEARENEB LT (BAEBTES)
Directors, is also a director and shareholder of the Company's ZBINANAREERENew Universe
substantial shareholder, New Universe Enterprises Limited (“NUEL"), Enterprises Limited ([NUEL] - R=ZF ==
which holds approximately 36.54% (2021: 36.54%) of the issued FT-_A=T—HBREEARFH36.54%
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2022. (ZEZ—F :3654% ) 2B BHITIRAN)

ZEERBRRE -
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Both Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are directors of Sun Ngai
International Investment Limited (“Sun Ngai”), which is the landlord
of the office premises leased by the Group as head office in Hong
Kong for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Both Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are directors of China (HK)
Chemical and Plastics Company Limited (“China (HK) Chemical”)
which is principally engaged in trading of plastic resins in Hong Kong
and China.

Both Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are directors of New
Universe Holdings Limited (“NUHL"). NUHL is an investment holding
company that interested in 97% of the issued share capital of China
(HK) Chemical and 100% of the issued share capital of Sun Ngai.

Ms. XI Man Shan Erica is the daughter of Mr. XI Yu.

To the best knowledge of the Company, save as disclosed herein,
there is no other financial, business and family relationship among
members of the Board and/or between the Chairman and the CEO
of the Company. All of the Board members are free to exercise their
independent judgment.

Continuous professional development of Directors

Code provision C.1.4 stipulates that all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company should be
responsible for arranging and funding suitable training, placing an
appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director.

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the shareholders
and have exercised their duties with care, skill and diligence, in
pursuit of the development of the Group. Every newly appointed
Director shall receive a formal, comprehensive and tailored induction
to ensure that he or she has a proper understanding of the business
and operations of the Group and that he or she is fully aware of
his or her duties and responsibilities as a director under applicable
statutory and regulatory rules and requirements.

The Chairman encourages all Directors and senior executives to
enroll professional development courses and seminars relating to
the Listing Rules, Companies Ordinance/Companies Law and Act,
corporate governance practices and other laws and regulations
organised by professional bodies or in-house trainings provided
by the Company so that they can continuously update and further
improve their relevant knowledge and skills.
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Corporate governance/
updates on laws,
rules and regulations

Accounting/finance/
management or other
professional knowledge

EER EE - RAK a5t B EER
RO E HttE AR
Attend Attend
Reading seminar or Reading seminar or
materials briefing materials briefing
ZmmE Z2mmEE
Board member EEEgRE B SR AR EAGE: I p e EALE:
Executive Director HITES
Mr. XI Yu EEESE v v v -
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling R/NR L v/ v/ v v
Ms. JIANG Qian BEat v v v -
Ms. LIU Yu Jie BIERLL v v v -
Mr. HON Wa Fai FRIEB A v v v v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica ES¢ iz e v v v -
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
Director
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong BRRE®L v/ v v v
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael o & 4T Sc A v/ v v v
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred At RS v v/ v v

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

(a)

The identity of the Chairman and chief executive

Mr. XI Yu was appointed as the Chairman of the Board since 11
April 2016 and he was also appointed as the CEO of the Company
since 16 October 2018.

Deviation from the code provision C.2.1

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the CEO of the Company
should be carried out by different individuals which have been
clearly defined.

Since 16 October 2018, Mr. XI Yu has performed both of the roles as
the Chairman and the CEO of the Company. This deviates from code
provision C.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Part
2 of Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, which requires that the roles
of Chairman and the CEO of the Company should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual.

After evaluation of the current situation of the Group and taking
into account of the experience and past performance of Mr. XI Yu,
the Board is of the opinion that it is appropriate and in the best
interest of the Company at the present stage to vest the roles of the
Chairman and the CEO of the Company on the same person as it
helps to facilitate the execution of the Group’s business strategies
and maximises the effectiveness of its operation.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

EE RATHAER

(a)

ERRITHABED S0

REREB-T-AFNA+—BRE
EERESRER WIFAE-T—N\F
TA+AAREREAFARATHRER -

IR BESFBME X C.2. 11K
ARARERRARARNACREEE
BRRATET W OB RRE -

BE-F-N\Et+tA+ABRE ZEE4E
—HETARREFERITRAENAS -
It 1/ B L 77 A5 B B 8 + PO 55 — AR 40 AT R
B 1 B A ST A H) P AR SCEEC.2.1 1%
ZIGXIRER R B ZE RATRAEE Z A
EEEMES LT EH— ARKRE -

RABMAEENRERBEAREEREZE
TENKRIBERRE EFERA
HE-AREARBIERITREARE
BRI ARENRERE  WHELZE
ERG B HEANRE REAMBEERTS
BE - YFAARRMRERNT -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In addition, the Board also considers that: (i) the Company has
sufficient internal controls to provide checks and balances on the
functions of the Chairman and the CEO of the Company; (ii) Mr. XI
Yu as the Chairman and CEO is fully accountable to the shareholders
of the Company and contributes to the Board and the Group on
all top level and strategic decisions and is responsible for ensuring
that all Directors act in the best interests of the Shareholders; and
(iii) this structure will not impair the balance of power and authority
between the Board and the management of the Company. The
Board believes that vesting of the roles of the Chairman and the CEO
of the Company on the same person has the benefit of ensuring
consistent leadership within the Group and will enable the Company
to make and implement decisions in a timely and efficient manner.
However, the Board will continue to review and consider splitting
the role of chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of
the Company at a time when it is appropriate.

Mr. XI Yu, as the Chairman of the Company, provides leadership
and strategic direction for the Board. The Chairman ensures that the
Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities, and that
all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely
manner.

The Chairman takes primary responsibility for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and procedures are established. He
encourages all Directors to make a full and active contribution to the
Board's affairs and take the lead to ensure that it acts in the best
interests of the Company. The Chairman encourages any Director
with different views to voice their concerns, allow sufficient time
for discussion of issues and ensure that Board decisions fairly reflect
Board consensus.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Chairman has held a
meeting once with the independent non-executive Directors without
presence of all executive Directors to discuss on risk management
and corporate governance functions and sustainable growth of the
Company.

The Chairman ensures appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication with the shareholders of the Company
that their views are communicated to the Board as a whole. The
Chairman promotes a culture of openness and debate by facilitating
the effective contribution of non-executive Directors in particular
and ensuring constructive relations between executive and
non-executive Directors.

Mr. XI Yu, as the CEO of the Company, is responsible for strategic
planning and implementation, sourcing, meeting with potential
business partners, exploring for business opportunities for the
Group, client development, recruiting senior management, staff
development, collaboration across the affiliated company network,
enhancing best practices, and timely reporting to the Board
regarding the Group’s overall progress.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(@) The terms of appointment of non-executive Directors

Each of the two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. YUEN Kim
Hung, Michael and Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred, has signed a renewed
letter of appointment with the Company for a tenure of two years
commenced on 1 February 2023 upon the last letter of appointment

expired on 1 February 2021.

Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong has signed a letter of appointment as an
independent non-executive director for a tenure of two years

commenced on 1 April 2021.

Ms. XI Man Shan Erica has signed a renewed letter of appointment
with the Company for a tenure of two years commenced on 30
June 2022 upon her re-designation from executive director to

non-executive director.

Mr. YANG Harry has signed a letter of appointment as an
independent non-executive director for a tenure of two years

commenced on 1 January 2023.

The letter of appointment signed by each of the non-executive
Directors with the Company is subject to the termination by either
party giving not less than three months prior written notice and
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with

the Company’s constitutional documents.

(b) Further appointment of independent non-executive

Directors

Code provision B.2.3 requires that serving more than 9 years could
be relevant to the determination of a non-executive director’s
independence. Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong, Mr. YUEN Kim Hung,
Michael and Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred have been independent
non-executive Directors since 1 February 2000, 24 April 2002, and
30 September 2004 respectively. Each of Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong,
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred has
served as the Company’s independent non-executive Director for
more than 9 years, further appointment for each of them shall be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the shareholders
of the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company. The
papers to shareholders accompanying that resolution would include
the reasons why the Board believes each of them is still independent

and should be re-elected.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

(a) The Executive Committee

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The Role and function

The Company has established Executive Committee with
written terms of reference, pursuant to which the Board
delegates its powers and authorities to the Board Committee(s)
and management to manage the business of the Group, and to
make investment and business decisions for the Group within its
authority and to take all actions to give effect to such decisions.

The composition
The Executive Committee comprises of all executive Directors:

Mr. XI Yu (chairman of the committee)
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling
Ms. JIANG Qian (appointed on 30 June 2022)

Ms. LIU Yu Jie

Mr. HON Wa Fai

Ms. XI Man Shan Erica (re-designated as non-executive Director
on 30 June 2022)

Mr. ZHENG Zhen (resigned on 30 June 2022)

Summary of works during the year

(1) For the year ended 31 December 2022, the principal
works performed by the Executive Committee were
mainly for the consideration and approval of authorised
transactions within the terms of reference of the
committee, and the execution of resolutions and
directions of the Board. All decisions made by the
Executive Committee during the year have been reviewed,
confirmed and adopted by the Board.

(2) Provided with regular updates on the Company’s
performance and financial position to enable the Board as
a whole and each Director to discharge their duties.

(3) Reported to the Board at the next scheduled regular
meeting of the Board in which discussion would be
carried out for any decision or commitment (made within
its authority for ordinary course of business of the Group)
approved by the Executive Committee and entered into
on behalf of the Group.

(4)  Ensured all the relevant management personnel of the
Group and the Company Secretary would be provided
with all deeds, documents or contracts entered into on
behalf of the Group pursuant to the approval of the
Executive Committee (within its authority) for record
keeping.
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The Nomination Committee

(1)

The Role and function

The Company has established Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference adopted in compliance with
paragraph B.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee assists the Board in making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors under the
Nomination Policy adopted which provides the key selection
criteria and principles of the Nomination Committee in making
any such recommendations.

(1)

Selection Criteria:

When making recommendations regarding the
appointment of any proposed candidate to the Board or
re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall consider a variety of
factors including without limitation to the following in
assessing the suitability of the proposed candidate:

Reputation for integrity;

Relevant skills and experience in the environmental
protection industry and other relevant sectors;

Commitment in respect of sufficient time, interest
and attention to the Company’s business;

Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge;

Compliance with the criteria of independence as
prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for
the appointment of an independent non-executive
Director; and

Any other relevant factors as may be determined
by the Nomination Committee or the Board from
time to time.

The appointment of any proposed candidate to the
Board or re-appointment of any existing member(s)
of the Board shall be made in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association and other applicable
rules and regulations.
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Nomination Procedures:

. The Secretary of the Nomination Committee
shall convene a meeting, and invite nominations
of candidates from Board members (if any), for
consideration by the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee may also nominate
candidates for its consideration.

o In the context of appointment of any proposed
candidate to the Board, the Nomination
Committee shall undertake adequate due
diligence in respect of such individual and make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration
and approval.

o In the context of re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board, the Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations to the
Board for its consideration and recommendation,
for the proposed candidates to stand for
re-election at a general meeting.

The Nomination Committee shall refer to the
“Procedures for shareholders to propose candidates
for election as Directors” of the Company in relation
to the nomination of any shareholder of any proposed
candidate for election as a Director.

The Nomination Committee shall review and monitor
the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board on an annual basis and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters
relating to recommendation of candidates to stand for
election at a general meeting.

Review of the Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination
Policy periodically in line with the Company’s strategy
and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for
approval.
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(8) Review of the Board Diversity Policy (8) WINESZSZIILHE
The Nomination Committee will review the REZECRKREBTFHESS
implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity ZR A BENEEANAE B
Policy on an annual basis. EITRET ©
(i) The composition (i) AL
The Nomination Committee comprises of three (four, with REZEBEHR=- (N - BZZ
effect from 1 January 2023) independent non-executive TZE—A—BRELER BIEH
Directors: TTEEMHEK
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael (chairman of the committee) rgltT e (5= £ /)
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong [P =h
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred I35 BE % &
Mr. YANG Harry (with effect from 1 January 2023) BrEAE(BZZE_=ZF—AF—
EFEESY)
(i)  Summary of works during the year (i) FATLIEBZ
(1) Reviewed the composition of the Board; (1) WIESS2MHEN:
(2) Reviewed and advised on the re-election of the existing (2) BEARARIZREBBUKRF
Directors and the appointment of a new executive EERBESRTITES
Director to the Board in accordance with the Nomination ZiEm WHARHER

Policy of the Company;

(3) Discussed, reviewed and made recommendations 3) WEARAZEEZELZ it
pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy of the Company; BERETF W R RIS
and B

(4) Assessed the independence of independent (4) FFEBAKRRBEFARGLE
non-executive Directors proposed for re-election at the BETNEVIIFRATESY
annual general meeting. WAL o

(c) The Remuneration Committee () FME£E=
(i) The Role and function () ABERkEEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee KRBIERBELEEATAFEE IR

with written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph R HMEES - Wl FEH S I

E.1 of the CG Code. EHE o

The Remuneration Committee assists the Board in making TNEZEemEETQRMEmE B

recommendations to the Board on the determination of policy BTEFENARAERERE &N

for the remuneration of the Directors and senior management BERNESLRHEEZROT :

of the Company as follows:

(1) approval of the remuneration and compensation of the (1) HEEERAEEFESR
Directors and key senior management of the Group and EEENTHEMEE W
assessment of their performance; HERENRR

(2) making recommendations to the Board on the 2) MARANEREZNRSRE
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration BEZHMEBEKR RERE N
of Directors and senior management and on the BT ERMEEREN
implementation of a formal and transparent procedure BFEHGTEBFHMEE M
for developing policy on such remuneration; EEgRHES
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ensuring no director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his/her own remuneration;

advising Shareholders on how to vote with respect
to any service contracts of directors that requires
shareholders’ approval;

making such alterations, additions or vesting
determination in relation to option scheme rules, as do
not require Shareholders’ consent, as the remuneration
committee considers necessary or desirable subject to
the limits set out in such rules; and

consideration and resolving upon all grants of options
under the Company’s share option schemes.

The composition

The Remuneration Committee comprises of three (four, with
effect from 1 January 2023) independent non-executive
Directors:

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred (chairman of the committee)
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong

Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael

Mr. YANG Harry (with effect from 1 January 2023)

Summary of works during the year

(1

Approved and made recommendation to the Board on
the remuneration of the newly appointed executive
Directors;

Reviewed and approved the remunerations of the
Directors and key senior management for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the 6 months ended 30 June
2022, and for the year ended 31 December 2022;

Approved and assessed on the compensation to
all Board members in commensurate with their
responsibility and performance; and

Consideration and determination of vesting rights to
be conferred to the grantees in relation to the options
granted under the Company’s share option scheme.
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(d)

" HwE

The Audit Committee

0] The Role and function

(1)

The Company has established the Audit Committee with
written terms of reference adopted in alignment with
the Rule 3.21 of Listing Rules and the code provision D.3
of CG Code.

The Audit Committee is to serve as a focal point for
communication among other Directors, the external
auditor, and the management in relation to functions
of financial and other reporting, statutory audits, risk
management and internal control systems; and to assist
the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing
an independent review of financial reporting, by
satisfying themselves as to the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and as to the
efficiency of independent audits of the Company.

The Audit Committee has a monitoring function to
work with the executive Board members and to ensure
the whole Board is able to determine the appropriate
corporate governance practices applicable to the
Company's operations and to ensure processes and
procedures are in place to achieve the Company’s
corporate governance objectives and to discharge
the duties of the Board in performing its corporate
governance functions under the CG Code include:

° to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company;

. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance policies applicable to
employees and Directors of the Company;

o to monitor and mitigate any adverse impact arisen
from any deviation from the CG Code to the
Company s policies and practices on corporate
governance; and

o to review the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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(4) The Audit Committee takes the advisory role to ensure
the Board to continuously review and enhance its
corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the CG Code.

(5) The Audit Committee takes the monitoring role to
ensure the Company complies with the Disclosure Policy:

The Company adopted a written Disclosure Policy
with aims to provide a general guide to the Directors,
officers*, senior management and relevant employees*
of the Company in the handling of confidential
information and/or monitoring of information disclosure
pursuant to the applicable laws and regulations
whereas:

# "Officer” as defined in the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO") includes a director, manager
or secretary of, any person involved in the
management of the Company.

* “Relevant employees” includes employees of
the Company and directors/employees of the
Company'’s subsidiary or holding company who,
because of their office or employment, are likely
to possess Inside Information (as referred to in Part
XIVA of the SFO).

(6) The Audit Committee takes the monitoring role to
ensure the Company to purchase adequate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against the Directors
pursuant to code provision C.1.8 of the CG Code.

The composition
The Audit Committee comprises of three (four, with effect
from 1 January 2023) independent non-executive Directors:

Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong (chairman of the committee)
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred

Mr. YANG Harry (with effect from 1 January 2023)
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(iii) ~ Summary of works during the year
(1) Reviewed the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2021;

(2)  Reviewed the Dividend Policy adopted by the Company
pursuant to code provision F.1.1 before the Board
recommending the payment of dividends;

(3) Discussed and reviewed with the independent auditor,
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited on the interim results of
the Company for the 6 months ended 30 June 2022,
of which Crowe (HK) CPA Limited has carried out
independent review;

(4) Discussed and reviewed with the Board on the quarterly
unaudited results for 3 months ended 31 March 2022
and 9 months ended 30 September 2022 respectively;

(5) Reviewed semi-annually on the independent valuation
reports prepared by the independent professional valuer
engaged by the Company in relation to the fair value of
the equity investments, impairment testing on the goodwill
arisen on the business combination of environmental waste
treatment operation acquired in 2007, and the fair value
of the 30% equity investment in of an associate acquired
through a business combination in 2017;

(6) Discussed and reviewed with the independent
professional advisers, SHINEWING Risk Services
Limited, engaged by the Company on the continuous
effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group;

(7) Reviewed the renewal of the directors and officers
liability insurance cover with appropriate indemnity
limits in respect of legal action against the Directors; and

(8) Discussed with the independent auditor the nature
and scope of the audit, reporting obligations, and the
potential impact to audit works in relation to the annual
audit for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

COMPANY SECRETARY

(@ The Company has its current Company Secretary appointed since
6 October 2004. The Company Secretary, Mr. HON Wa Fai is an
executive Director and employed as the financial controller of
the Company, who is a member of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute and a certified public accountant (as defined
in the Professional Accountants Ordinance, Cap. 50, Laws of Hong
Kong).

(b)  Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. HON Wa Fai has taken

no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training for the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

(@) The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in The Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules.

(b)  With specific enquiries having been made of all the Directors, all
Directors have confirmed that they have fully complied with the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee has made recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
directors and senior management, such that the remuneration packages
offered by the Company can be competitive, adequate (but not excessive)
and in line with current market practice to attract, retain, motivate and
reward the Directors and senior management, thereby having sufficient,
experienced and competent manpower to achieve the Company’s
corporate goals and objectives. With the policy, the Company endeavours
to attain internal and external equity and long-term value creation for the
Shareholders. The Directors’ Remuneration Policy has been developed and
adopted by the Board based on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee which is set out as follows:

(@) Applicability
The Directors’ Remuneration Policy is applicable to all executive
directors and non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company.

(b) Remuneration structure

The remuneration package comprises mainly fixed component and
variable component will be considered to ensuring an appropriate
and balanced package that links shareholders’ interests with those
of the directors.

(i) Fixed component
Basic salary and/or director’s fee (as the case may be) is
determined on the basis of factors, including the expectation
of the respective director, job nature of the position,
(including responsibilities and time commitment), the
remuneration package offered by comparable companies and
employment conditions under the existing group structure.
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(@)

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

%f;é #& =]

Variable components, if applicable

o Performance-based remuneration includes a
performance bonus which is awarded on a discretionary
basis to motivate and reward high performers decided
by reference to both the Group’s and individual
performance; and

o Incentive scheme that includes share options as an
incentive to motivate, recognise, reward and retain key
and high performers.

Other benefits for Executive Directors, if applicable
o The contributions made under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme; and

o Fringe benefits include medical insurance, business
travel insurance.

Non-Executive Directors (Including Independent Non-Executive

Directors)

o Non-executive directors receive a fixed director’s fee.
Their remuneration is reviewed annually, with reference
to companies of comparable business and scale, by the
Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board;
and

o Any non-executive directors are eligible to be granted
the share options determined by the Company to reward
for their contributions and continuing efforts.

Benchmarking

The Company endeavours to obtain up-to-date information of the
prevailing market remuneration environment. The remuneration
packages of comparable companies will be used as a benchmark
to ensure that the remuneration packages offered to the Directors
remain appropriate and competitive.

Annual remuneration review

0]

(if)

The Company will conduct a review of its remuneration
structure annually. Using benchmark information prepared
by senior management, the Remuneration Committee
will consider and make informed decisions or make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual directors.

In all cases, no director or any of his/her associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) should be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.
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(e) Review of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy

The Company, through the Remuneration Committee, will review
the Directors’ Remuneration Policy at least annually and, if
necessary, from time to time, as appropriate, to ensure that it is
in line with the current market practices and requirements of the
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. Any amendment to the policy should be submitted to the
Board for approval.

OPTIONS GRANTED DURING THE YEAR

Options were granted on 18 January 2022 to 7 employees based in
Mainland China of the Group, profiles for 4 of them have been disclosed
on pages 41 to 45 as senior management of the Group. For further details
of such Options granted, please refer to pages 98 to 100 of this annual
report.

The Remuneration Committee has reviewed the terms of the grant of
such Options (including (i) the vesting period for such Options, which is
not less than 12 months from the date of grant of the Options; (ii) the
vesting conditions specified in the offer letter of each respective grantee
of the Options, which comprises certain performance targets; and (iii) the
cancellation of unvested Options as specified in the offer letter of each
respective grantee of the Options if certain performance targets are not
achieved).

Taking into account that the grant of such Options was to encourage
the grantees of the Options to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and the Shares for the benefit of the Company and the
Shareholders and to allow such grantees to acquire proprietary interests
in the Company, the Remuneration Committee was of the view that
the grant of the Options aligns with the purpose of the Share Option
Scheme, allowing such grantees to benefit while aligning their interests
with those of the Company. In view of the above, the Remuneration
Committee considered that the grant of such Options was appropriate and
accordingly gave its approval to such grant.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
(@) Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by the auditor

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the remuneration
paid/payable to the independent auditor of the Company in respect
of their audit and non-audit services was as follows:
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(b) Accountability and audit

(1

2)

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited acknowledge their reporting
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report to the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

It is the responsibility of the external auditor to form an
independent opinion, based on their audit, on those financial
statements of the Company and to report their opinion solely
to the Company, as a body, and for no other purpose. The
independent auditor does not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
the independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of the
Company.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility of preparing
the accounts and presenting a balanced, clear and
comprehensive assessment for the Company’s performance,
position and prospects. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the Board on the
Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Management of the Company has provided all members
of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the performance, position and
prospects of the Company and the Group in sufficient detail
to enable the board as a whole and each director to discharge
their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing
Rules.

The Company deviates from the Recommended Best Practices
under code provision D.1.6 of the CG Code not to announce
and publish quarterly financial results within 45 days after the
end of the relevant quarter, because the Board considers the
current half-yearly financial reporting mode would be more
appropriate and relevant to reflect the results performance of
the business model and existing operations of the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, based on the review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
being conducted, the Board considered the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company were effective and
adequate. No significant areas of concern that might affect the
financial, operational, compliance controls, and risk management
functions of the Group were identified. The scope of review covered
the adequacy of resources, qualification/experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training and budget.

It is the responsibility of the Board for the risk management and
internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. The
Board undertakes for evaluating and determining the nature and
extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Company’s
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Company establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. Since January 2019, the Company has
established a project management team in Mainland China
headed by experienced staff of the Group to closely monitoring
the environmental compliance and daily operations of the key
operations of the Group in Mainland China, and report periodically
to the Board. The Board oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems, and the management would provide
confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems.

The senior management of the Group, including but not limited to,
the Directors and executive officers of the Company, the directors
of the subsidiaries, and the general managers and deputy general
managers of the Company and of the Group, maintains, monitors
and implements the risk management and internal control systems
on an ongoing basis.

The risk management and internal control systems of the Group
are designed to meet the Group’s particular needs and risks to
be exposed, and only to provide reasonable, but not absolute,
assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve the Group's business
objectives.
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The Group adopts a risk management system to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks associated with its business and
operations comprised of the following phases:

Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business objectives
and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the
residual risks.

The Company adopts an internal control system with a framework
enabling the Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations comprised of the
following components:

Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should
be managed.

Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried out.

Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present and
functioning.
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The Company adopts and implements an inside information policy
and procedures in order to enhance the Group’s system of handling
inside information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosure. Certain
reasonable measures have been taken from time to time to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

o The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations.

° The executive Directors are designated persons who speak on
behalf of the Company when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

The Company has not established its own internal audit function
pursuant to the code provision D.2.5 of the CG Code, though
the Board has reviewed the need for one on an annual basis.
The Directors consider that it would be more appropriate to set
up a multifunctional project management team delegated with
responsibilities of internal audit on environmental governance,
cash management and financial reporting functions for the existing
operations of the Group.

In order to ensure the existing risk management and internal
control systems work effectively, the Company has engaged with
independent professional party to review on the Group’s compliance
with the CG Code, and review on the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group on an ongoing basis. For the two years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Company has continued
to engage with SHINEWING Risk Services Limited, adopting the
internal control model set down by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organisations of the U.S. Treadway Commission for internal
controls, to carry out independent review on the risk management
and internal control systems of the key operations of the Group and
the corporate governance functions of the Company on revolving
basis. Based on the independent review reports, the Board has
impartial reference on the assessment, the implementation and the
continuous improvement toward more effective risk management
function and internal control system for the key operations of the
Company.
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The Company has established a project controlling team
nominated by the Board comprising the deputy general manager
and vice-presidents of the Company, the project assistants,
and the supervisors nominated by the Company to take up
the responsibilities of monitoring the day-to-day operational
management, risk management function, and internal control
systems of all operating units of Group, especially for the
subsidiaries in the Mainland China, integrating with the systems
of monthly and annual planning and budgeting process,
counter-approval and implementation and control process,
identifying any risk or possible failure of the operating units, and
reporting and making suggestions on how each operating unit to
achieve the objectives and goals set. The project controlling team
meets regularly with the executive Directors and report on matters
to be updated to the Board timely.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information

The Group complies with requirements of and the Listing Rules and
discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable unless the information falls within any of the Safe
Harbours as provided in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap.
571, Laws of Hong Kong). Before the information is fully disclosed
to the public, the Group ensures the information is kept strictly
confidential. If the Group believes that the necessary degree of
confidentiality cannot be maintained or that confidentiality may
have been breached, the Group would immediately disclose the
information to the public. The Group is committed to ensuring that
information contained in announcements is not false or misleading
as to a material fact, nor false or misleading through the omission
of a material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and
balanced way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and
negative facts.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a written board diversity policy and has made

necessary revision according to the CG Code with aims to endorse the

principle that the Board should have a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business.

(a)

Pursuant to the policy, the Board will consider gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, length of service and the legitimate interests of
the Company’s principal Shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of
this report, the Nomination Committee has kept reviewing and
assessing the composition of the Board and made recommendations
to the Board on appointment of new Director and change of board
member, and re-election of Directors having regard to the merit of
candidates in accordance with the board diversity policy.

In reviewing Board composition, the Nomination Committee
considered that the diversity of the existing Board members is
able to maintain an appropriate balance of age and professional
experience and diversity of cultural and educational background on
the Board.

The composition of the Board as at 31 December 2022 has been
reviewed by the Nomination Committee. As at 31 December 2022,
the Board was composed of 4 females and 5 males (2021: 3 females
and 6 males) having an average age of 55.8 (2021: 56.7), 6 out of
9 members possess post-graduate academic background, 5 out of 9
members possess professional qualification(s) recognised in different
countries. The composition is considered able to meet the objective
of the Board Diversity Policy to enable the effective management of
the Board on the key operations of Group currently mainly located in
Mainland China.
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The Board considers that it has achieved gender diversity with the
composition of the Board currently composed of 4 females and 5 males
as at 31 December 2022. In order to maintain the gender diversity of
the Board and in order to ensure compliance with the gender diversity
requirements under the Listing Rules, the Board will seek to maintain its
gender diversity and ensure that the composition of the Board will not be
entirely composed of a single gender. The Board will monitor its gender
composition and diversity on an ongoing basis and identify potential
successors of the appropriate gender should the need arise.

WORKFORCE DIVERSITY

The gender ratio of the Group’s workforce (including senior management)
for the two years ended 31 December 2022 is as follows:
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As at 31 December

R+=BA=+—H
2022 2021
—s=-= —g-—fF
Male: female (ratio) S (e xR) 4:1 4:1

The Company considers that it has achieved gender diversity in the
Group’s workforce (including senior management of the Group) and aims
to continue to maintain a consistent gender ratio in its workforce roughly
in-line with the ratios recorded in its previous financial years. Owing to
the nature of the handling of hazardous waste and in view of the services
provided by the Group, the Company considers that it is not unusual for
the gender ratio of its workforce to be composed of more males than
females. Save as disclosed, the Company is not aware of any mitigating
factors or circumstances which make achieving gender diversity across the
workforce (including senior management of the Group) more challenging
or less relevant and the Company will monitor its workforce’s gender
composition on an ongoing basis in order to maintain a consistent gender
ratio.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

(a)

Communication with Shareholders

The Company has adopted its Shareholders Communication Policy
to promote and facilitate effective communication with shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholders”). The Board encourages the
participation of the Shareholders to the general meetings of the
Company, and the Chairman of the Board shall attend the annual
general meeting of the Company.

The Chairman invites the chairmen of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and any other committees (as appropriate) to attend, or
failing their presence, their duly appointed delegate to attend and
be available to answer questions at annual general meeting. The
chairman of the independent board committee (if any) is available
to answer questions at the general meeting to approve a connected
transaction or any other transaction that requires independent
shareholders’ approval.

The Board ensures the external auditor attend the annual general
meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

For each substantially separate issue at the general meetings, a
separate resolution is to be proposed by the chairman of that
meeting. The Company shall avoid “bundling” resolutions unless
they are interdependent and linked forming one significant
proposal. Where the resolutions are “bundled”, the Company
shall explain the reasons and material implications in the notice of
the general meetings. The chairman of the general meetings shall
ensure that an explanation is provided of the detailed procedures for
conducting a poll and answer any questions from Shareholders on
voting by poll.

The Company shall arrange for the notice to the Shareholders to
be sent in the case of for annual general meeting at least 20 clear
business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear
business days in the case for all other general meetings. Any notice
to be given by the Company shall be in writing. The Company shall
send notices to all Shareholders whether or not their registered
address is in Hong Kong. The Company shall ensure that notice of
the general meetings is published on the websites of the Company
at www.nuigl.com and the Stock Exchange.
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Shareholders who are unable to attend a general meeting may
complete and return to the branch share registrar and transfer office
of the Company (the “Share Registrar”) in Hong Kong the proxy
form enclosed with the notice of meeting to give proxy to their
representatives, another shareholder or chairman of the meetings.

The poll voting procedures are included in the Company’s circular
convening a general meeting. The results of the voting by poll are
declared at the meeting and published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company respectively thereafter the meeting.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company considers
that it has effectively implemented its Shareholders Communication
Policy by, among others, (i) the attendance by the Chairman and the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration and nomination committees
at the annual general meeting of the Company in order to answer
questions at such meeting; and (ii) the timely notices to the
Shareholders clearly outlining the relevant issues and resolutions to
be proposed at each general meeting of the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to convene a general
meeting

According to the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary
general meetings. Any one or more Shareholders holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within 2 months after
the deposit of such requisition.

Upon receipt of the requisition, the Company shall request the
Share Registrar to verify and confirm on the particular of the
requisitionist(s), and arrange the Board to consider the proposal
and convene a general meeting by serving sufficient notice to all
the registered Shareholders. If any particular of the requisitionist(s)
is verified as not in order, the requisitionist(s) will be advised
accordingly, and a general meeting may not be convened as
requested.

If within 21 days of such deposit of the requisition the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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An annual general meeting shall be called by notice of not less than
21 clear days and any extraordinary general meeting at which the
passing of a special resolution is to be considered shall be called
by notice of not less than 21 clear days and not less than 10 clear
business days. All other extraordinary general meetings may be
called by notice of not less than 14 clear days and not less than
10 clear business days but if permitted by the rules of the Stock
Exchange, a general meeting may be called by shorter notice,
subject to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, if it is so
agreed.

Procedures for nominating a person for election as a
director in general meeting

The Company has adopted the Procedures for Shareholders to
Propose a Person for Election as a Director. Save for the procedures
adopted, no person, other than a retiring Director shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election
to the office of Director at any general meeting according to the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, and
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Company. Pursuant
to the procedure adopted, only Shareholder(s) duly qualified to
attend and vote at the general meeting shall propose a person for
election as a director in general meeting.

If a Shareholder who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting wishes to propose a person other than a Director
for election as a director, the following documents shall be lodged
at the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at
Rooms 2110-2112, Telford House, 16 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong for the Board to recommend that person
for election to the office of Director at any general meeting:

(1) a notice signed by the Shareholder of the intention to propose
that person for election as a Director and the notice shall set
out the contact details of the proposing shareholder, including
correspondence address, contact phone number; and

(2) a notice signed by that person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected as a Director; and the duly completed
checklist attach to these procedures.

The minimum length of the period during which the
above-mentioned notices are given shall be at least 10 business days
and that the period for lodgment of such notices shall commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end not later than 14
business days prior to the date of such general meeting.
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If the Company receives the notice as required after publication of
the notice of meeting, the Company shall publish an announcement
or issue a supplementary circular upon receipt of such a notice.
Full particulars of the proposed director as required under Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules must be included in the announcement
or supplementary circular. However, if the Company receives
insufficient information for the purposes of publishing an
announcement or issuing a supplementary circular, the Company
shall contact the proposing shareholder and/or the proposed
director for further information.

In the event that the Company is not able to publish an
announcement or issue a supplementary circular on a day, which
is at least 10 business days prior to the general meeting of the
Company, the said nomination of shareholder will be presented at
the next following general meeting.

Dividend policy

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board recommended
the payment of final dividend on 24 March 2023, and the
recommendation of dividend is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders.

Pursuant to the code provision F.1.1 of the CG Code, the Company
adopted a policy on payment of dividends (the “Dividend Policy”)
which is to allow Shareholders to participate in the Company’s
profits and performance results whilst retaining adequate reserves
for the Company’s future growth. The Board shall consider the
following factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

° the Company’s actual and expected financial performance;

o the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;

° the Group’s liquidity and debt gearing position, and the
relevant financial covenants;

o the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the member companies of the Group;

° general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group's
operation and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business, financial performance and position
of the Company; and

3 other factors that the Board deems relevant and appropriate.
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Any distribution of dividends shall be in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company and the distribution shall achieve continuity,
stability and sustainability. The recommendation of the payment of
any dividend is subject to the absolute discretion of the Board, and
any declaration of final dividend will be subject to the approval of the

Shareholders. The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and
there is no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
specific periods.

(e)

Procedures for directing Shareholders’ enquiries to
the Board

Shareholders shall direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Share Registrar. Shareholders and the investment community
may at any time make a request for the Company’s information to
the extent such information is publicly available.

Shareholders or investors could enquire by putting their proposals
with the Company through the following means:

(852) 2435 6811
(852) 2435 3220
comsec@nuegl.com
Rooms 2110-2112, 21/F.,
Telford House, 16 Wang Hoi Road,
Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
The Chairman

Telephone number
Facsimile number

E-mail

Correspondence address

For the attention of

INVESTOR RELATIONS

(a)

There is no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2022.

On 31 March 2022, the board of directors of the Company
announced the proposal to make certain amendments (the
“Proposed Amendments”) to the Memorandum and the Articles
in order to (i) bring the Memorandum and the Articles in line with
the relevant requirements of the applicable laws of the Cayman
Islands and the Listing Rules; (ii) incorporate certain housekeeping
amendments; and (iii) provide flexibility to the Company in relation
to the conduct of general meetings by allowing general meetings of
the Company to be held as electronic meetings or hybrid meetings
(where Shareholders of the Company may attend by electronic
means in addition to as a physical meeting where Shareholders
attend in person or by proxy). The Proposed Amendments and
the proposal to adopt an amended and restated memorandum of
association and articles of association of the Company incorporating
the Proposed Amendments were duly approved by the Shareholders
passing a special resolution at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 27 May 2022.
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The Company is committed to maintaining high degree of
transparency to ensure the investors and the Shareholders are
receiving accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely information
of the Group via the publication of annual reports, interim
reports, public announcements and releases, and update on key
information of the Group are available on the Company’s website at
www.nuigl.com.

The Company has engaged with PRChina Limited as its public
relation consultant to enhance media and investor relations of the
Group. The Board continues to maintain regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them informed the
Group’s strategy, operations, management and plans. Media or
potential investors could make necessary enquiry with the public
relation consultant through the following means:

(852) 2522 1838
(852) 2521 9955
newuniverse@prchina.com.hk
PRChina Limited

Telephone number
Facsimile number

E-mail

Public relation consultant

On behalf of the Board
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Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors (the “Directors”) of New Universe Environmental Group
Limited (the “Company”) are pleased to present their report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated in Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability and has its principal place of business at Rooms
2110-2112, Telford House, 16 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides
corporate management services to the group members.

The activities of the principal subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

(@) provision of environmental treatment and disposal services for
industrial and medical wastes;

(b)  provision of environmental equipment construction and installation
services;

(c)  provision of environmental plating sewage treatment and provision
of related facilities, utilities and management services in an
eco-plating specialised zone; and

(d) investments in plastic materials dyeing business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business and financial review of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the material factors underling its results and financial position
together with the risk and outlook of the Company’s business as required
by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 32
of this annual report, which forms part of this directors’ report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The “Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2022" of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 would be available on the
Company’s website at www.nuigl.com.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s key business
operations has made continuous effort and investment in managing
and monitoring environmental parameters, upgraded existing facilities
to meet regulatory environmental requirements and national standards,
and provided training relevant to the industry that is necessary for the
sustained development of the Group. Save for the disclosure made
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2022 and in this
annual report, there was no other significant environmental exceedances
recorded nor any material non-compliance in relation to environmental,
social or governance aspects. For the current year, engagement with
stakeholders has resulted in raised concerns on key material issues, which
include: occupational health and safety, service quality, air emission, waste
and effluent and anti-corruption. The Group will continue to identify areas
of improvement for the concerned aspects and keep close communication
with its stakeholders for advancing management on environmental, social
and governance.

The Company has engaged with an independent consultant firm, Ascent
Partners Advisory Service Limited, to review the Company’s overall
environmental, social and governance performance of the key business
operations of the Group for the preparation of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022 with reference to the Environmental,
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

Social and Governance

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Information on the principal corporate practices of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2022 and significant subsequent events, if any,
up to the date of this report is set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 46 to 86 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
state of the Group’s affairs as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 119 to 276 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIVIDENDS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The dividend of HK$0.0039 per share totally amounted to approximately
HK$11,839,000 paid on 29 July 2022 was made for the year ended
31 December 2021.

On 24 March 2023, the Directors recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.0038 per share for the year ended 31 December 2022
amounting to approximately HK$11,536,000 which is subject to approval
of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting:

Annual general meeting date Thursday, 18 May 2023

Book close date for final
dividend

Tuesday, 6 June 2023 to
Friday, 9 June 2023

Record date for final dividend Friday, 9 June 2023

Final dividend payment date Monday, 31 July 2023

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December
2022, as extracted from the audited financial statements and restated/
reclassified as appropriate, is set out on pages 33 to 35 of this annual
report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the group’s performance for the year by operating segments
of the Group is set out in note 4 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 34 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold, or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Articles
of Association and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company
was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the securities
of the Company.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 123 of this
annual report.

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Company during the year
are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$645,911,000 (2021: HK$648,673,000) which was
calculated according to Article 134 of the Articles of Association of the
Company that dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of
the Company, realised or unrealised, or from any reserve set aside from
profits which the Directors determine is no longer needed. With the
sanction of an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared and
paid out of share premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorised for this purpose in accordance with the Companies Law
(Chapter 22, Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group and the Company as at 31
December 2022 are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not capitalise any
interest during the year (2021: Nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Information on the Group’s sales and purchases attributable to the major
customers and suppliers during the year is set out as follows:
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Percentage of the Group'’s total

hREEAEZ2ADL
Sales Purchases
SHER REBH
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F —E-— —E-—F
The largest customer S NS 5.9% 5.8%
Five largest customers in aggregate A AR F 458 20.2% 19.9%
The largest supplier BREERE 5.0% 6.7%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate R A ER B 19.8% 25.4%

At no time during the two years ended 31 December 2022 did a Director,
a close associate of a Director or a shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) have an interest in any of the Group's five largest
customers or suppliers.

The percentage of revenue from the five largest customers in aggregate
was less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue respectively for the two
years ended 31 December 2022. The percentage of purchases from the
five largest suppliers in aggregate was less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year ended 31 December 2022.

At no time during the two years ended 31 December 2022 have the
Directors, their respective close associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major customers
and suppliers of the Group.
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DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were as
follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. X1 Yu

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling

Ms. JIANG Qian (appointed on 30 June 2022)

Mr. ZHENG Zhen (appointed on 20 August 2021 and resigned
on 30 June 2022)

Ms. LIU Yu Jie

Mr. HON Wa Fai

Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. XI Man Shan Erica (re-designated from an executive director
to a non-executive director with effect from 30 June 2022)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong

Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael

Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred

Mr. YANG Harry (appointed on 1 January 2023)

In accordance with Article 83(3) of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Ms. JIANG Qian and Mr. YANG Harry, having been appointed to the
Board since the date of the last annual general meeting, will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong, Ms. XI Man Shan Erica and Mr. HON Wa Fai will
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Ms. XI Man
Shan Erica and Mr. HON Wa Fai, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

The directors of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings during the year

and up to the date of this report were as follows:

E g RS
MEBARZES

REAFEARBEARARESBHLEARFAMBER
BlZEEMT

Director(s) of the subsidiary

Name of subsidiary MEARERE MEBARZES
Ever Champ (China) Limited 88 (P E) BRAR A B
Fair International Investment Enterprise FEERBEBRRENEER AR A B
Limited
Fair Industry Waste Recyclables Limited ERTXEYBLENBERAR A B
Fair Time International Limited EREEERA A A B
Jiangsu New Universe Environmental IHTHRAIREESRAR @ I
Engineering Management Limited*
Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental Technologies T # ¥ FRFRIRARE A 7 A
Limited*
New Sinotech Investments Limited MEMBREBRAR* B
New Universe (China) Investment Limited ~ ¥ (R E)HEER QA B
New Universe (China) Limited ¥ (PE)BRAR A B
New Universe Environmental Protection HFRREEFR AR B
Investment Limited
New Universe Environmental Technologies ¥ FRERIE (L&) AR A A A B
(Jiang Su) Limited
New Universe International Ecology Limited 7R Bl 4 22 B[R 2 &) B
New Universe International Group Limited ¥ FEERE % (£E) R AR A B
New Universe International Holdings Limited P BB 32 %A R 2 &) B
New Universe Recyclable Investments HFARBERERERAA B
Limited
New Universe Recyclables Limited HMFERBENABRAA A B
Smartech International Group Limited ERBEREBEER AR B
Smartech Manufacturing Limited EREmARQT A B
Smartech Plastic Moulding Limited ERZRBRRBERAT A B
Smartech Services Limited ERBERARLDA A B
Sugian New Universe Solid Waste Disposal BB FHEREMEEER QA A
Company Limited*
Xiangshui New Universe Environmental BAFFRABEERAT A B C G H
Technology Limited
Yancheng New Universe Solid Waste ERFHEBENEERR LA A
Disposal Company Limited
Yancheng NUHF Environmental Technology B35 #f 1B LB R R B R A 7 A B C H? 2
Limited*
Zhenjiang New Universe Solid Waste EINMFEEENEESRAR A C D E F
Disposal Company Limited
Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-Electroplating ETERARBEMEERERLAA A
Development Limited
Note: Wi -

*

With effect from 10 January 2023, Ms. LIU Yuan resigned as director of
Jiangsu New Universe Environmental Engineering Management Limited
and Mr. HE Ling Yun was appointed as new director of that subsidiary.

With effect from 10 November 2022, Mr. ZHONG Han Gen resigned

as director of Yancheng NUHF Environmental Technology Limited and
Mr. SUN Yong Liang was appointed as new director of that subsidiary.

For identification purpose only

1. BIE-_=F-At+HRE ZEZLHE
IHRTFHERERIEEEERATNESE N
MfZEALEREZMBRARZHES -

2. BZE_—_Ft+-A+BEE fERLE
HTERFTEERAMBRARAFES
2B RBKRAELEEZEZWNBERARZ
HMESE -

* ERHS
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Name of the directors of the Company’s subsidiary undertakings:

Mr. XI Yu

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling
Ms. LIU Yuan

Mr. YIN Yong Xiang

. SUN Jia Qing

Mr. LIU Lai Gen

Mr. ZHONG Han Gen
Mr. JI Zi Hua

Mr. HE Ling Yun

Mr. SUN Yong Liang

ol 2t Gka [nl D) OVaed B
<

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has service contract with the Company that is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in writing his confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent.

Each of Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong, Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO
Yau Hong, Alfred has served as the Company’s independent non-executive
Director for more than 9 years. Pursuant to the code provision B.2.3 set
out in Part 2 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the further appointment
of each of them should be subject to a separate resolution to be approved
by the shareholders at the annual general meeting. The Board considers
each of Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong, Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael and Mr. HO
Yau Hong, Alfred to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set
out on pages 36 to 45 of this annual report.

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report,
there were changes in Directors’ information as follows:

(@) Mr. ZHENG Zhen resigned as executive Director and member of the
executive committee with effect from 30 June 2022;
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(b)  Ms. JIANG Qian was appointed as executive Director and member of
the executive committee with effect from 30 June 2022;

() Ms. XI Man Shan Erica was re-designated from executive Director
to non-executive Director and resigned as member of the executive
committee with effect from 30 June 2022; and

(d) Mr. YANG Harry was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2023.

Save as disclosed therein, there is no other significant change in details of
the Directors’ information since the date of the last annual report of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Save as disclosed therein, there is no other information to be disclosed
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 13.51(2) of Listing Rules.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF
MANAGEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report,
there was changes in the information of the key management team
members of the Company as follows:

(@ Ms. LIU Yuan resigned as the general manager of the Group’s
wholly owned subsidiary in the PRC, Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental
Technologies Limited* with effect from 1 January 2023 and
resigned as the director of the Group’s wholly owned subsidiary
in the PRC, Jiangsu New Universe Environmental Engineering
Management Limited* with effect from 10 January 2023; and

(b)  Mr. DAO Lu resigned as the general manager of the Group’s wholly
owned subsidiary in the PRC, Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco-electroplating
Development Limited with effect from 31 August 2022, and he
was appointed as the deputy general manager of the Group’s
wholly owned subsidiary in the PRC, Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental
Technologies Limited* with effect from 1 September 2022.

Save as disclosed therein, there is no other significant change in details of
the key management team members’ information since the date of the last
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the chief executives and
of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out respectively in
notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Board has adopted an emolument policy for the employees of the
Company which is governed by the remuneration committee of the
Company on the basis the relevant skills, experience, merit, qualifications
and competence of the employees.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the remuneration
committee of the Company, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for all employees
in Hong Kong. Particulars of the retirement benefit plans of the Group are
set out in note 39(b) to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the share option scheme on 5 May 2015 (the
“Share Option Scheme”). The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in
accordance with the provisions set out in Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years ending on 4 May 2025, after which no further options will be
granted.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide participants
(“Participant”, and each a “Participant”) with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage Participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares (the
“Shares”) for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders (the
“Shareholders”) as a whole.

A Participant is any person belonging to any of the following classes:

(@) any eligible employee of or any person who has accepted an offer
of employment from (whether full time or part time employee,
including any executive Directors but not any non-executive
Director) the Company, its subsidiaries and any entity in which the
Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity”);

(b) any non-executive Director (including independent non-executive
Directors), any of its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(c)  any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or any

Invested Entity;

(d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;
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(e) any person or entity acting in their capacities as advisers or
consultants to the Group or any Invested Entity; and

(f)  any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group
or any Invested Entity from time to time determined by the Directors
having contributed or may contribute to the development and
growth of the Group or any Invested Entity.

The total number of Shares which might be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the total number of the Company’s Shares in issue as at the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme by the Shareholders at the
annual general meeting on 5 May 2015 (the “Scheme Mandate Limit")
unless the Company obtains an approval by its Shareholders at its general
meeting to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit. Further, the maximum
number of Shares which might be issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and options which may be granted and yet to be exercised under any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of
the total number of the Company’s Shares in issue from time to time.
Based on the issued share capital of 2,955,697,018 Shares as at 5 May
2015, the Scheme Mandate Limit was 295,569,701 Shares, representing
approximately 9.74% of the total issued Shares as at the date of this
report.

The maximum number of Shares issuable under the share options to each
Participant in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant is limited to 1% of the Shares in issue
at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective associates under
the Share Option Scheme are subject to prior approval of the independent
non-executive Directors. In addition, any share options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive Director, or to
any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of the Shares in issue
at any time and having an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant, are subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days from
the date of offer, upon payment of a remittance of HK$10 in favour of
the Company by the grantee. The exercise period of share options granted
is determinable by the Board, save that such exercise period shall not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant of such share options.
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The exercise price of share options is determinable by the Board, but may
not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant which must be a day
(“Trading Day”) on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of
dealing in securities; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five

BREZTEETHESTSRE  BFFER
MTEBRZERE  (IRNETEHR (BARE
RIFRRAETEFRSZAF(RXRZRB]EFE
BMEXSMARAR (B HELZA®RE
P2 B W8 ¢ (NEER T A HA B AR
5 BB XA E 2 BRI T

Trading Days immediately preceding the date of the grant; or (iii) the

nominal value of a Share.

Details of share options (the “Options”) granted by the Company under

the Share Option Scheme are set out as follows:

Date of grant:
BEBH:

Date of acceptance:

BHEH

Valid grantees:

BUARA

Closing price of the Shares
immediately before the date
of grant

ZERRE A 2RO BRTE

Exercise price of the Options
granted:
PR BB AR I 2 TR (B -

Total number of Shares to be
issued upon exercise in full of
the Options granted:

IR BRT IR AT IR L R A A s
T BT 2 B E

18 January 2022
e i R A=

16 February 2022
ZE-ZFZA+RA

7 employees of the Group,

and none of the grantees is

a Director, chief executive

or substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of their
respective associate(s) (as
defined in the Listing Rules).
AEETEER  BEARAR
RRABESE  THREZRTER
REABEZB2EMHBBEA(E
HR EMRAD o

HK$0.305 per Share

Fh%0.305/8 7T

HK$0.308 per Share

BRI 0.3087% T

13,080,000 Shares

(of which 7,900,000 Shares

are attributable to 2 employees
with highest emoluments in
both 2021 and 2022)
13,080,0004%
(EH7,900,0008% % F201 7t =
ZRIE__FEERES
FHeES)

B+ iy < H1E -

ARRRBEERESIE G 2 BRE ((BR

B 2 FBHEHINMT -

15 January 2021
—ZE_—%—-A+hH

12 February 2021
ZE-—5ZA+=H

6 employees of the Group,

and none of the grantees is

a Director, chief executive

or substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of their
respective associate(s) (as
defined in the Listing Rules).
AEECEES  HEARAR
ADAES  THEHHTER
RABEREE2EMHMEACE
EREMHAA -

HK$0.270 per Share

Fh%0.2705% 7T

HK$0.272 per Share

BRIE70.2728 T

11,380,000 Shares

(of which 6,800,000 Shares

are attributable to 2 employees
with highest emoluments in
both 2021 and 2022)
11,380,000/%

(E H6,800,0008 % F2h1 7t =
TR _FEERRES
FMmES)
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15 January 2020
—Z_ZF-A+hH

12 February 2020
e

4 employees of the Group,

and none of the grantees is

a Director, chief executive

or substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of their
respective associate(s) (as
defined in the Listing Rules).
AEE4LES  BEARAR
ARBESF  THRBEIFER
RABREZE2EMMEAE
EREMHRA -

HK$0.250 per Share

FA%0.2507% 7T

HK$0.250 per Share

BRI 170.2508 7T

11,000,000 Shares

(of which 6,620,000 Shares

are attributable to 2 employees
with highest emoluments in
both 2021 and 2022)
11,000,0000%
(ELF6,620,0008% % F2h1 70 =
TR _FEERERES

FHER)



Options lapsed or cancelled up
to 31 December 2022:

BE-_Z-_—#+-fF=+—H
LFB A E BUR 2 BB HE

Options vested up to
31 December 2022:

HE-_Z-_—_F+=-A=+—H
LLEHB 2 BRE

Not applicable
TEH

Not yet vested

The Options granted shall be
vested upon achievement of
certain vesting conditions (the
"2022 Vesting Conditions”)

as specified in the offer letter
(the "Offer Letter”) of each
respective Grantee. If the 2022
Vesting Conditions applicable
to the relevant Grantee are not
achieved, the unvested Options
granted to such Grantee shall
be cancelled as specified in the
Offer Letter.

The Options shall vest in the
proportions to be determined
according to each particular
Offer letter on the date the
2022 Vesting Conditions
applicable to the relevant
Grantee are achieved.
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5,041,000 Shares (due to
unfulfilled vesting conditions)

5,041,0008% (FB 72 53 1B 16 1 K
ERK)

6,339,000 Shares

(of which 3,763,000 Shares
are attributable to 2 employees
with highest emoluments in
both 2021 and 2022)

6,339,000%
(E 3,763,000/ % F 20 7 =
E--RIECCEERARS
HimEE)

ES=gWRE

1,360,000 Shares (upon
termination of the employment
of a grantee)
1,360,000 (R #& 1E—HA&R A
#1ER)

9,640,000 Shares

(of which 6,620,000 Shares
are attributable to 2 employees
with highest emoluments in
both 2021 and 2022)

9,640,000%
(E 6,620,000 1% F 20 7 =
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Validity period of the Options:

BRENBRS

Subject to the Options having
been vested, the Options
granted are exercisable from
the date of publication of

the annual results of the
Company for the year ending
31 December 2024 (the "2024
Results Date”) to the earlier

of (i) the date on which such
Options lapses in accordance
with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme; or (ii) the 90th
business day after the 2024
Results Date.

ShERkESBE  ARUERE
AfeHBERARRE-_S_MF
TZA=T-HLEFENRE
EEAR( S mFE£ER
)R EZATHISOA
REERE)  (VEABRER
R ET 20 IR R A B
B () E-MEEE A%
FELERA -

The Options vested are
exercisable from the date of
publication of the annual results
of the Company for the year
ending 31 December 2023

(the “2023 Results Date”) to
the earlier of (i) the date on
which such Options lapses in
accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme; or (ii)
the 90th business day after the
2023 Results Date.

EEBERENRTIEARR
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EEUTHHE(UREERE)
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The Options vested are
exercisable from the date of
vesting to the earlier of (i) the
date on which such Options
lapses in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option
Scheme; or (i) the 30th business
day after the date of publication
of the annual results of the
Company for the year ending
31 December 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURE OF THE COMPANY OR

ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY OTHER ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which are required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which are required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 (“Model
Code") of the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

The Company

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

%/\:I:

BEERFIETHRAERAERD
=)t A 4 2 1 9 B 2
EMBEEBE RN > HE
B REEERPZERZR,
B;iRE

RZEZ—F+-_A=+—H EFERAEAQH
ZEBTBABRARGIRE sr,\/jé@(ig‘%
REBEHFRBEED ([EHRBEEG ) EXVEE)
3% $Hﬁﬁﬂx1ﬁ&{ﬂé‘“qﬂ?ﬁ&*ﬁ*ﬂﬂ%ﬁm%&
HH1?1I7K1§IJ%XV*B%7&%8"* BEREARR

B X BT 2 A e %(@%fﬁiﬁ@%m%&%ﬁ
B WUﬁFﬁ%E;E%&.:Jrf’ﬁ‘k%&%ﬁ{’ﬁ%?ﬁﬁz*&

KR WIRBESF LY i"iﬂﬂﬁ‘l%%ﬂ /E.:E)\
ZiERt 2 ERM R RE IRELT

ﬁ%%ﬁ+tm%ﬂA§$Lﬁ%%I%mﬁ
HESPA ([HZ2ESFRI)) MABAME AR R &R AT
ZREZRABT ¢

Vi N/N=]
RA DGR RIAEE R .2 i &

Number of Shares

R4 #E

Approximate
percentage
of total Shares
in issue
Capacity in which Shares Number of HEe BT
Name of Director were held Shares held R EE
BEEgS BEROGNS G FERGEE BHABEDE
Mr. XI Yu (note) Interests of a controlled corporation 1,109,303,201 36.54

EE A& (M) PN AR S
Ms. LIU Yu Jie Beneficial owner 202,400,000 6.67

BlEARLZ+ ExnEAA
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AL H
% = b
Associated corporation BEXE
Long positions in ordinary shares of NUEL RNUEL Z#IR.Z 4B
Number of ordinary shares of US$1.00 each of NUEL
SRMEE1.00E T ZNUELEERE B
Approximate
percentage
of total shares
Capacity in Number of in issue
which ordinary ordinary He &7
Name of Director shares were held shares held BHBEEZ
BEE®E BEZBERNEH S EREE BHBED
Mr. XI Yu (note) Beneficial owner 16,732 83.66
EE & (M) EmEAA
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling (note) Beneficial owner and Interests of
spouse 2,428 12.14
RN B (BT EE) Ema AR EER
Note: New Universe Enterprises Limited (“NUEL") is beneficially interested K17 New Universe Enterprises Limited
in 1,109,303,201 Shares, representing approximately 36.54% of the ([NUELJ) B % E1,109,303,2011%
issued share capital of the Company. NUEL is directly owned as to BEm  HERARARZE BITIRALYD
83.66% by Mr. XI Yu. Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are also 36.54% NUELBHE EF - E5EHEH
directors of NUEL. 83.66% EERFSLAERKNBRLLTNAR
NUELZ £ % -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors B EXFI#EEEIIN RZT=-_—_F+ = A
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positionsin ~ =+—H - Tﬂiﬁ§$ﬁi$ RIZEEZTHAER

any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its R AR Ak EAEMBEEE (E&ERFH LD
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which ~ E & BIEXVEL) Z M th - 18RI {H S &= T
were entered in the register referred to therein as required pursuant to T?Eﬁ*ﬁﬁ% 7 N B R 01 235216 78 50 A\ 3% 1§
section 352 of the SFO or required, to be notified to the Company and the it 2 ER M 2 AKX A - AR ERIR % <r A
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code. MAMEARNAE B2 ESmIORE ©
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INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

AND OTHER PERSONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of those persons,
other than the Directors or the chief executives of the Company whose
interests has been disclosed therein above, in the Shares which has to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO and or underlying shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO are as
follows:

=]

FEREREMATRAEAL
AR RERABRDRZES
BB EE

I

RTZE-—F+-"FA=+—H BARQRAES
REZTRABE (BEZHZR EXHERE) N2
ZEATRBROFEEREBEES NBEKRAE
XVEBE2R3DEAER AR R EENERIAR
K,/ s R B BB (0 R B iR 8RR AN R R R IR 7
HFREEKAEIBCKAEFTEZ LMz R
FABWT :

Long Positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

RERXBRBRAEBERDWEFR
Approximate
percentage
of total shares
in issue
Capacity in which ordinary Number of HEe#1T
Name of shareholder shares were held shares held R EE
IRER A B BEEERERNE G RO EE BHBED
Mr. XI Yu @ Interests of a controlled corporation 1,109,303,201 36.54
EEHEO ZPEHIN E S
NUEL @ Beneficial owner 1,109,303,201 36.54
EmEAA
China Minsheng Investment Group Interests of a controlled corporation 800,000,000 26.35
Corporation Ltd
(FERARERMDBRRQF)
("R ®
FEREREROBRAA ZPEHIN E S
(hE&K]®
AREGDMNEEEEBRAF Interests of a controlled corporation 800,000,000 26.35
(“CMIG-Asia”™) @
PREDNEEEEER QA ek NS b
([PR®ZEM])®
CMI Financial Holding Corporation Interests of a controlled corporation 800,000,000 26.35
(“CMIF-BVI™) @
CMI Financial Holding Corporation REH A B ER
([ R L RFSCMIF]) ®
CMIG International Capital Limited Interests of a controlled corporation 800,000,000 26.35
(“CMIG-Hong Kong™) @
FREBERERBRAA ek NS b
(TEBFERKR®
CM International Capital Limited Beneficial owner 800,000,000 26.35
(“CMIC-Cayman™) @
CM International Capital Limited ExEAA
(IAECMmIC])®
Ms. LIU Yu Jie @ Beneficial owner 202,400,000 6.67
8| % A A £ EmEAA

_— ——

FER FFRREEEERAA
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Notes:

(i) NUEL is directly owned as to 83.66% by Mr. XI Yu. The interest disclosed
by Mr. XI as a Shareholder deemed interested in the 1,109,303,201
Shares is the same interest as disclosed by him being a Director.

(i)  CMIC-Cayman is 100 % directly owned by CMIG-Hong Kong.
CMIG-Hong Kong is 31.5% directly owned by # & #& and 68.5%
directly owned by CMIF-BVI. CMIF-BVI is 100% directly owned by
CMIG-Asia. CMIG-Asia is 100% directly owned by FR#&. CMIG-Hong
Kong, CMIF-BVI, CMIG-Asia and H1 4% are all deemed interested in the
800,000,000 Shares beneficially owned by CMIC-Cayman.

(iii)  The interest disclosed by Ms. LIU Yu Jie as a Shareholder is the same
interest as disclosed by her being a Director.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, so far as is known to
the Directors, the Company has not been notified of any other interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares which had been
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning for the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or subsisted during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and/
or Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares, and Debenture of the
Company or Any Specified Undertaking of the Company or Any Other
Associated Corporation”, at no time during the year were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares granted to any Director
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, or the Company's
subsidiary or holding company of a subsidiary of the Company’s holding
company a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There was no connected transactions (defined under the Listing Rules)
which were discloseable in the reporting period or any time during the
year.
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PROVISION OF GUARANTEES TO AN
AFFILIATED COMPANY

On 25 September 2020, the Company and the joint venturer, as the joint
guarantors, entered into the guarantee agreement with a bank in the PRC
to jointly guarantee the repayment obligations of Liuzhou Xinyu Rongkai
Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited (“Xinyu Rongkai” a 65% indirectly
owned joint venture of the Company) in relation to the bank loan facilities
in a total amount of RMB120,000,000 (approximately HK$135,600,000)
and the guarantee will be effective until 31 December 2027, for the
purpose of financing the construction of the integrated hazardous waste
treatment project undertook by Xinyu Rongkai at Liuzhou, Guangxi
Province, the PRC.

On 7 December 2022, the Company as guarantor, entered into a
guarantee agreement with another bank in the PRC to guarantee the
repayment obligations amounted to RMB5,850,000 (approximately
HK$6,611,000) based on 65% equity interest in Xinyu Rongkai for
a short-term banking facilities in a total amount of RMB9,000,000
(approximately HK$10,170,000) and the guarantee will be effective until 6
December 2026, for general working capital purpose of Xinyu Rongkai.

The banking facilities of Xinyu Rongkai guaranteed by the
Company amounting to 65% of RMB129,000,000, (approximately
HK$145,770,000) (2021: RMB120,000,000, approximately
HK$146,400,000) of which RMB125,100,000 (approximately
HK$141,363,000) (2021: RMB116,100,000, approximately
HK$141,642,000) was utilised, and loans of approximately
RMB93,173,000 (approximately HK$105,285,000) were outstanding as at
31 December 2022 of which approximately RMB84,173,000 is repayable
on 21 June 2025 and bearing interest at 4.55% (2021: 4.75%) per annum
and RMB9,000,000 is repayable on 6 December 2023 and bearing interest
at 3.65% per annum.

=S
DEES ] PASE S L2

RZB-_ZTFAA-+FHR ARFEEES
(TEBERERA) BB —RIBITAILIERT

AHEREERIMN T FERINEEENEE R
Rar ((#FFLE]  ARREEEBES 2
AM@%)W@A%’E%AEMQOoooooomm
135,600,000/ 70) 2 IRITEHRBME ' ZERE

ME_FT_LHF+-A= + B B&ARMH
#F RPN R 145A¢lfﬁé$9UJIIZfLB R %
MiRe RIERERHES

R-ZTZE-_—_F+-_A+tHBH ARAEAER
ANBEFBRS -—RBITRTERDRE AFF
LYt — B4R A ARM9,000,0007T (4
10,170,000/ 70) MR EISRTTMEMERET
1265% % 7 7= 4 (R 88 A R %5,850,000
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The following table summarised the financial information relating to the
Group's joint venture at the end of the reporting period:

TERBINERAEES LN MERARZHY

BERME

For the years ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—-HLEE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHEIT
Gross amounts of the joint venture’s EELECHSE
Non-current assets ERBEE 181,330 180,744
Current assets TENE E 3,848 36,677
Current liabilities mBEE (64,473) (30,955)
Non-current liabilities ERBEGE (62,317) (102,690)
Equity [N 58,388 83,776
The Group’s attributable interest in FEAEERGELEY
the joint venture ERZHE
Gross amount of net assets of the joint venture A& CEXBEFEZELE 58,388 83,776
The Group's share of net assets of the joint AEBESIEEECECEEFE
venture 37,952 54,454
Unrealised profit on inter-company transaction RiR&HEREKEQFIEIFIH
eliminated on consolidation KRE R F (2,739) (2,464)
Carrying amount of net assets of the joint BECEFEERAEE
venture 35,213 51,990

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

LOAN AGREEMENT WITH SPECIFIC
PERFORMANCE COVENANT

On 17 August 2018, the Company accepted a banking facility letter dated
28 June 2018 (the “Facility Letter A") issued by a bank (“Bank A”) in
Hong Kong with commitment not to demand repayment within the first 2
years. Pursuant to the Facility Letter A, Bank A granted an unsecured term
loan facility of up to HK$30,000,000 (the “Facility A”) to the Company.
In accordance with the Facility Letter A, the proceeds of the Facility A
shall be used directly for payment of the capital contribution in respect
of the Group’s interest in Xinyu Rongkai. The unsecured bank loan under
the Facility A was fully repaid on 20 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
outstanding HK$15,000,000).

On 17 August 2018, the Company accepted a banking facility letter dated
8 August 2018 (the “Facility Letter B”) issued by a bank (“Bank B"”) in
Hong Kong. Pursuant to the Facility Letter B, Bank B granted an unsecured
term loan facility of up to HK$15,000,000 (the “Facility B”) to the
Company. The Facility B shall be used to finance the capital expenditure
in relation to the environmental operations of the Group. The unsecured
bank loan under the Facility B was fully repaid on 10 January 2022 (31
December 2021: outstanding HK$6,000,000).

On 12 December 2017, the Company accepted a banking facility letter
(the "Facility Letter C"”) issued by a bank (“Bank C") in Hong Kong with
commitment not to demand repayment with in the first 2 years. Pursuant
to the Facility Letter C, Bank C granted an unsecured term loan facility of
up to HK$50,000,000 (the “Facility C") to the Company. In accordance
with the Facility Letter C, the proceeds of the Facility C shall be used to
finance the capital expenditure of the Group in relation to environmental
industrial treatment, medical waste treatment and/or environmental
sewage treatment project. The unsecured bank loan under the Facility
C was fully repaid on 4 August 2022 (31 December 2021: outstanding
HK$30,000,000).

Pursuant to each of the facility letters A, B, and C, if Mr. XI Yu (being
defined as the “Controlling Shareholder” in the facility letters) (i) ceases
to be directly or indirectly the single largest Shareholder; (ii) ceases to own
directly or indirectly at least 30% of the issued Shares with voting rights
of the Company; or (iii) ceases to have the management control over the
Company, the banks reserve their respective overriding rights at any time
with immediate effect to cancel or vary the terms of the facility letters,
demand immediate repayment of all outstanding amounts and require
provision of immediate cash cover (in the amount notified by the banks)
for any future or contingent liabilities upon the occurrence of any events
of default.

ES=gWRE
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i
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As at 31 December 2022, Mr. XI Yu, through his beneficial interest
in 83.66% of the issued share capital of NUEL, is deemed interested
in 1,109,303,201 Shares (2021: 1,109,303,201 Shares), representing
36.54% (2021: 36.54%) of the total issued share capital of the Company
beneficially owned by NUEL.

As at 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this report, there is no
outstanding loan nor any loan agreement of the Company under Rule
13.18 of the Listing Rules that includes a condition imposing specific
performance obligations on any controlling shareholder of the Company.

In accordance with the requirements under Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules,
disclosure of an obligation arises under Rule 13.18 will be included in the
annual and interim reports of the Company for so long as circumstances
giving rise to the obligation continue to exist.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT
CONTRACTS

As at 31 December 2022 and any time during the year, transactions,
arrangements, or contracts subsisted, of which certain Directors had
interests that were deemed significant to the business of the Group are set
out as follows:

(@  Mr. XI Yu and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling, the executive Directors, are
also the directors of the landlord, Sun Ngai International Investment
Limited (“Sun Ngai”) to the tenancy agreement dated 20 July 2021
that was entered into by Smartech Services Limited (“Smartech
Services”), an indirectly wholly owned subsidiary of the Company)
as tenant to lease three office units at Rooms 2109 to 2111, Telford
House, 16 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong (the “Office
Premises”) for the period from 1 August 2021 to 31 July 2022 at a
monthly rental of HK$80,000.

(b) A renewed tenancy agreement dated 25 July 2022 was entered into
between Sun Ngai as landlord and Smartech Services as tenant for
leasing the Office Premises for the period from 1 August 2022 to 31
July 2023 at a monthly rental of HK$80,000.

() For the year ended 31 December 2022, total rentals paid
by Smartech Services to Sun Ngai were HK$960,000 (2021:
HK$960,000).
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The above transactions were conducted on terms no less favourable
than terms available from independent third parties which were in the
ordinary course of business of the Group. The afore-mentioned tenancy
agreements entered into between the wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, Smartech Services and Sun Ngai were de minimis transactions
exempted under rule 14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed therein, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which the Company, any of its holding company,
subsidiaries, or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the reporting period or any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Ms. LIU Yu Jie was appointed executive Director with effect from 9 June
2015, who has investments in four companies engaging in the operation
of hazardous waste projects in four cities in Mainland China, of which
she has a controlling stake in one of the four said companies. As the
permission licence to operate hazardous wastes in each of the four said
cities is exclusive, and the Group does not have any such operations in
those cities, the Board considers that the said investments of Ms. LIU Yu Jie
do not compete with the interests of the Group.

Save as disclosed therein, during the year and up to the date of this report,
the Directors were not aware of any business or interest of the Directors or
any substantial Shareholder (as defined under the Listing Rules) and their
respective associates that had competed or might compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interests which any such person had or might have with the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong)) for the
benefit of the Directors of the Company is currently in force and has
been in force throughout this year in accordance with Article 164 of the
Company'’s Articles of Association.

Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, losses, damages and
expenses which any of them shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty
or supposed duty in their respective offices. The Company has taken out
insurance against the liability and costs associated with defending any
proceedings which may be brought against Directors.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors during the year and up to the date of
this annual report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Significant subsequent events occurred after the reporting period are set
out in note 46 to the financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group pays high regards to legal and regulatory requirements in
formulating its policies and practices. The Company has engaged with
financial advisers to advice on the compliance with the Listing Rules.
Legal advisers have also been engaged to ensure the Group operates
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations for major corporate
events of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group was not aware of
material non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operations of the Group.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive
Directors, Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong, Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael,
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred and Mr. YANG Harry, has reviewed with the
management the consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2022.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Company and the Group for the three
years ended 31 December 2022 were audited by Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
("Crowe (HK)"). Crowe (HK) retires and, being eligible, offers itself for
re-appointment and a resolution for the re-appointment of Crowe (HK)
as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
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X
Chairman
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Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2B R &

A\ Crowe

To the shareholders of
New Universe Environmental Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New Universe
Environmental Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the
Group”) set out on pages 119 to 276, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
BRERER

(@) Impairment of trade and bills receivables
(including lease receivables)
(refer to notes 22 and 43(d) to the consolidated
financial statements)

As at 31 December 2022, trade and bills receivables
(including lease receivables) of the Group was
approximately HK$106,499,000 (net of provision for
lifetime expected credit losses). Lifetime expected
credit losses of trade and bills receivables (including
lease receivables) are based on management’s estimate
of the lifetime expected credit losses to be incurred,
which is estimated by taking into account the credit
loss experience, ageing of overdue trade receivables,
customers’ repayment history and customers’ financial
position and an assessment of both the current
and forecast of future economic conditions, all of
which involve a significant degree of management
judgement.

(a) EWERIRRER (BEEWHEE) ZHE
(F2HRA BB HmRM 22 243(d))
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B 2 HE RS

FEEZER(E)

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERREE A

Our audit procedures on this area included:

- Assessing and testing the Group’s processes and
key controls relating to the monitoring of trade and
bills receivables (including lease receivables) and the
granting of credit terms and contract terms relating to
billing milestones;

- Tested the accuracy of ageing analyses and obtained
direct confirmations for samples of debtor balances;

- Evaluated the adequacy of the Group’s provision
for lifetime expected credit losses of trade and bills
receivables (including lease receivables) by reference
to the Group’s historical default data, the historical
bad debt loss rates as adjusted based on the current
economic condition during the year ended and as at 31
December 2022 and forward-looking information such
as the published forecast of GDP in the PRC; and

- Reviewed the settlements of the Group’s customers
during the year and up to the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements.

We also considered the adequacy of the disclosures, in

particular those included in notes 22 and 43(d) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2B R &

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

The Key Audit Matter
BHRERER

(b)

(b)

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Impairment assessment of interest in an associate
(refer to notes 3(a)(vi) and 18(c) to the consolidated
financial statements)

At 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of the
Group's 30% equity interest in FR/{LE2TEBEXF
EfERE R B AR A A “Nanjing Chemical Industry
Park Tianyu Solid Waste Disposal Co., Ltd” (“"NCIP")
was approximately HK$125,527,000 and the Group’s
share of loss of NCIP for the year was approximately
HK$9,459,000.

The recoverable amount of the Group’s 30% equity
interest in NCIP is the higher of value-in-use and fair
value less costs of disposal. At 31 December 2022,
impairment assessment on the carrying amount of the
Group’s 30% equity interest in NCIP was performed
by management by reference to the valuation of NCIP,
as an identified cash-generating unit, conducted by an
independent professional valuer with experience and
qualification in valuing similar assets.

The impairment assessment on the carrying value of
the Group's equity interest in NCIP at the reporting
period end involves significant judgements made by
management of the Group and estimation uncertainty.

— RN R ER AR ER L
(F2 B E I MR M E3(a)(vi) % 18(0)
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERREE T

Our audit procedures on this area included:

Performing a review on the financial statements of
NCIP for the two years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021;

Assessing the independent professional valuer’s
independence , competence , capabilities and
objectivity;

Evaluating the appropriateness for the valuation
methodologies used at reporting period end;

Checking the projection of cash flows of NCIP
in the valuation models to the detailed forecasts
prepared by management of NCIP and evaluating the
reasonableness of key assumptions underlying the cash
flow projection;

Assessing the reasonableness of the discount rate and
long-term growth rate in the valuation models not
exceeding the industry data at public domains; and

Challenging and evaluating the key assumptions in the
valuation model made by management of NCIP and the
independent valuer.

We also considered the adequacy of disclosures, in particular
those included in notes 3(a)(vi) and 18(c) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2B R &

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
BIEXE (58 StMSEMERATR
Certified Public Accountants

L E S

Liu Mok Lan, Cliny
B
Practising Certificate Number: P07270

HE MBI - P07270

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
BB T =F=A-1+H@AH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

EEER

nv-_l_\
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE—Z-—F+-F=+—HItFE
2022 2021
—==-= —E-—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FExT FAT
Revenue U 4(a) 588,951 727,167
Cost of sales $HE R A 8 (469,594) (535,502)
Gross profit EF 119,357 191,665
Other revenue H bz 5 4,249 4,637
Other income H A 6 11,416 7,407
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHEA R WS 17(c) 27,303 -
Distribution costs o EH A AN (24,727) (23,916)
Administrative expenses ITHFA X (59,025) (59,718)
Impairment loss on trade receivables, net EWERF Z MEEIE - F58 22(b) (3,388) (28,685)
Other operating expenses Hih e &5 8 (30,747) (17,826)
Operating profit geEnRA 44,438 73,564
Finance income A U A 7 5,652 4,140
Finance costs Bh & AR 7 (5,693) (6,521)
Finance costs — net BER A —F58 7 (41) (2,381)
Share of results of associates DIEBERNR 2 ¥4 18 (7,250) (6,389)
Share of results of a joint venture DME—REEEZER 19 (13,044) (4,440)
Profit before taxation R i A& R 8 24,103 60,354
Income tax Fri5fi 11 (19,539) (7,436)
Profit for the year FERF 4,564 52,918
Attributable to: DT ALTHERN:
Owners of the Company KABEAA 7,273 40,419
Non-controlling interests FEVE RS M 2 (2,709) 12,499
4,564 52,918
HK cents HK cents
A Al
Earnings per share SREF 13
Basic HR 0.24 1.33
Diluted s 0.24 1.33

F126EE2F276 A ZMETIBR AT B RER T
AR Z BB D o

The notes on pages 126 to 276 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

= N 7

N

S R 2 E R ER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T-—F+-A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E__ T —4F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5E TExT T
Profit for the year FERA 4,564 52,918
Other comprehensive income: Hih2mElaE
Items that may be reclassified R wWEF S EE B2
subsequently to profit or loss: b=
Exchange differences MEH =R
— on translation of financial statements —MEBINNBATZ
of overseas subsidiaries B 5 & (67,024) 30,186
— on translation of financial statements —MREBINEERTZ
of overseas associates p T E 18 (12,597) 5,938
- on translation of financial statements —-BRE-FBINGEREL
of an overseas joint venture R 19 (3,316) 1,759
— release of translation reserve upon —BEHRE—REIINHBAF
disposal of an overseas subsidiary i R BR R E 17(c) (2,591) -
Items that will not be reclassified BT WET T EE B2
subsequently to profit or loss: HH -
Fair value changes on equity investments #Ei@H M2 E Kk z=IE A FE
at fair value through other ABRZBRAEE 2 R FE
comprehensive BE) (T 8E)
income (non-recycling) 20 (10,500) (37,300)
Deferred tax effect relating to changes B RIEE QT EE
in fair value of equity investments BB EER G2 33(b) (580) 3,410
Other comprehensive income for the year, & H 2 @iz
net of income tax HBRFTS R (96,608) 3,993
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for FEZMH (Fi8) Kk#H
the year e (92,044) 56,911
Attributable to: THALEAS:
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIE ZEDN (79,738) 39,904
Non-controlling interests FEEAR = (12,306) 17,007
(92,044) 56,911

The notes on pages 126 to 276 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
E IR R

RZT——F+=-A=+—H

As at 31 December 2022

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 F#E T FAT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 14 651,164 755,547
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 103,159 111,053
Goodwill EES 16 33,000 33,000
Interests in associates iR/ ol v 18 153,450 175,835
Interest in a joint venture R—REELEZER 19 35,213 51,990
Equity investments at fair value through  #FBEM 2 E W HIE A FEAR
other comprehensive income ZRAEIEE 20 70,300 80,800
Deferred tax assets RIETHIBE = 33(b) 10,229 10,154
1,056,515 1,218,379
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 7,037 6,718
Trade and bills receivables FEURBR 7k S ZE IR 22 106,499 150,022
Prepayments, deposits and BRRIE - Ze Rk
other receivables H th JiE SRR 23 21,081 36,456
Contract assets BHEE 24 32,652 22,591
Restricted bank deposits SRE A IRITER 25 5,225 8,191
Cash and cash equivalents BeLERIBEEIER 25 270,279 302,074
442,773 526,052
Assets classified as held for sale DEAFEHEZEAE 26 14,758 39,580
457,531 565,632
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 27 97,959 198,970
Trade and bills payables FENERRER 28 69,739 78,607
Accrued liabilities and other payables EstaE R B E KA 29 218,612 228,986
Lease liabilities HEA®E 30 326 750
Contract liabilities oM=K} 31 3,190 38,507
Deferred government grants i 3E R AT 48 B 32 1,935 2,057
Income tax payable FERT TS TL 33(a) 5,575 6,094
397,336 553,971
Net current assets REBEEFRE 60,195 11,661
Total assets BWEE 1,514,046 1,784,011
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBERE 1,116,710 1,230,040

“ECCEER FFRREBBRAF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e RS R

As at 31 December 2022 HR-_Z-_—#+_-H=+—H

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FAET
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 30 341 720
Deferred government grants 3R SE T8 #60 Bb 32 10,462 13,431
Deferred tax liabilities REBIE&E 33(b) 30,400 33,079
41,203 47,230
Total liabilities e B 438,539 601,201
Net assets EEFE 1,075,507 1,182,810
Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital A% AR 34 30,357 30,357
Reserves e 35 931,320 1,022,422
Equity attributable to owners of the RAFER AEMLRAR
Company 961,677 1,052,779
Non-controlling interests SRR R 17(b) 113,830 130,031
Total equity R4 5 1,075,507 1,182,810

The notes on pages 126 to 276 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
SREBBE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 @E_Z:ZE‘?‘_H_‘F HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAAREARERS
Investment Share Non-
Share Share Tranlation revaluation ~ Capital ~option  Statutory  Retained controlling
apital  premium  reseve  reseve  reseve  reseve  reseve  profits Total ~interests  Total equity
RREH

RE  BEEE EiRE B EABE BREBE iRBE  RERA Bt FEREE  RAEE

HSO00 RSO0 HKFOO0  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS0D  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00 RSO0 HK§O00

Thn  TEm TEn  TAr TEr TEr T T TEm TAn T
note (note (note (note (note (note (note

(oe3d QN B B Bh) B Bw) 3B

‘ (st (st li: li: li: li: (

T 11 N 1) O 1) N 1)

Ev

At1 January 2021 NE--£-F-H 30357 456,46 13,048 9119 517 601 9245 B3 103440 128910 1,163,337
Profit for the year EEEH S = = = - - - 40419 4049 1249 5918
Other compr hensive income 2p2Eks
Bichange differences E R§§
- on tranlaton f fnancil satements of BERNRELT HERR
overseas subsidiaries - - 1,678 - - - - - 15,678 4508 30,186
- on tandlton offnancil statements of -BERNBENTHRER
OVerseas associates - - 5938 - - - - - 5938 - 5938
- on translation of financia statements of an -~ -BE-FENAERE2HHRR
OVerseas joint venture - - 1,759 - - - - - 1759 - 1,759
Fair vlue changes on equity investments, netof ~ FARE 2 AT EEE (MR ELHA
Gefered tax k5E) - - - [ - - - -3 - (B8

Total comprehensive income for the year - - B3I (389 - - - 40419 39,904 17,007 56,911

Transter to Statutory resene
Equity-<ettled share-based transactions

(note 39(a) - - - - - 305 - 305 - 305
Dividend relating to 2020 - - - - - - - s g - )
Dividend paic and payable to non-controlling

Interests of subsiciares - - - - - - - - - (15880 (1588
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 WoE-EtZf=t-BR

“E2TE-R-H 0317 456465 14643 15,209 511 906 9094 39823 1052779 130031 1182810
Profit forthe year EEEH - - - - - - 1 Y T TR I
Other comprehensiv incoe 2p2Eks
Bichange diferences Eiiﬁﬁ
- on ranslaton of financia statements of BERINBLAT IRER
Overseas subsidaries - - ) - - - - - ) (9597 (6704
- on ranslaton of financial tatements of -BERNBENT R RR
OVerseas associates - - (59) - - - - - (159) - (159
- ontranslfion of financil statementsof an -~ -RE-FENALE2EEER
OVerseas Jointventure - - (3.316) - - - - - (3316) - (3316)
- release of tanslaton reserve wpon disposal of - EHE-FENHEATTER
an overseas subsidary note 171 #82E () - A - - - - A A
Fairvalue changes on equity investments, netof -~ {3582 A FBEE (MBETRE

defered tax 5% - - SN (111 - - - - o) - (1)

Total comprehensiv loss for the year - - (5931 (11,080) - - - 103 738 (12300 (9204

Transterto Satutory resenve - - - - - - (3,054) 3,054 - - -

Equity-<ettled share-based transactions

(note 39(a) - - - - - R - - IR - I
Dividend relating to 2021 - - - - - - - (189 (189 - (1189
Dividend paid and payable to non-controling

interests of subsiiares - - - - - - - - - B8 (8%
At 31 December 2022 it Jatad:3 juf: 4 ol 037 456465 (29,509) 4199 51 181 %6930 3671 9Em 113830 1075507

The notes on pages 126 to 276 are an integral part of these financial 1268 £ 52768 7 Mt 51 Jh# K KB 7B E T
statements. RISl Bt o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE—T-—F+-A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E_— -5
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
=g FTHET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES S
Profit before taxation & B4 A1 Vi A 24,103 60,354
Adjustments for: AT ZIEELAE
Interest income B U A 7 (3,318) (3,867)
Interest on bank and other borrowings RITREMEREZFE 7 5,641 6,466
Interest on lease liabilities HEABEZME 7 52 55
Dividends from equity investments KEREKKE Z IR E 20 (4,249) (4,637)
Share of results of associates DAEEEE R R 2 A 18 7,250 6,389
Share of results of a joint venture DIE—REEREZER 19 13,044 4,440
Unrealised profit on transaction RIFAHRFEESE —X
with a joint venture eliminated on HENAIRSHIRE T 5 T
consolidation 19 474 425
Depreciation of property, plant M BELERBITE
and equipment 14 75,715 80,332
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAREEERE 15 3,753 4,141
Equity-settled share-based payment VARR AN #E a5 51 H IR AR (0 1B
expenses ERITANRX 39(a) 475 305
Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BEREHBZEE
and equipment FEE 8 308 606
Impairment loss on trade receivables, net  JEBUWIRF 2 EEEIE - F5  22(b) 3,388 28,685
Gain on lease termination BWIFRE 2 W= - (12)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RMEB A A2 17(0) (27,303) -
Release of deferred government grants EIE BT A B R 32 (2,026) (1,808)
Operating cash flows before EEESRHAIZ
movements in working capital REBRERE 97,307 181,874
Increase in inventories FEEN (319) (656)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and bills FEU R M E g
receivables B, (38 hn) 40,135 (49,269)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERREIE - e REMmERK
deposits and other receivables RIER L (35 m) 14,427 (11,089)
Increase in contract assets GHEEEM (10,061) (21,057)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills ENERRERE
payables R ) /1 0 (8,868) 12,292
(Decrease)/increase in accrued liabilities JEET B E R EMmEMFE
and other payables R A) /18 i (3.228) 14,320
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilites &% & & Gi4) /10 (35,317) 13,496
Cash generated from operations REEEZES 94,076 139,911
Income tax paid ERFER 33(a) (19,971) (15,291)
Income tax refunded B E S BRE 33(a) 409 1,804
Dividend withholding tax paid, EREEME - MBRERR
net of refunds 33(b) (3,455) (5,345)
Interest received 2 U HE 7 3,318 3,867

The notes on pages 126 to 276 are an integral part of these financial 1268 %2768 7 W 5T Jh# 5k AN 81 %% 2 = 1T
statements. RISk iR 2 B0 ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GeRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE—ZT-—"F+-A=+—HItFE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt 5 THET FHT
Net cash generated from operating REEBEEZHETFE
activities 74,377 124,946
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXH
Dividends received from an associate BER—FREE QB ZRE 18 2,538 3,889
Dividends received from equity B ARG E 2R B
investments 4,849 4,037
Cash inflow arising on disposal of a HE—RMBARIAMELER
subsidiary RERA 17(c) 48,176 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEDE  BMENMBREZE
and equipment E| 231 1,348
Payment for purchase of property, plant THREEYE  BENMEKE
and equipment (32,397) (47,580)
Capital contribution to a joint venture M—RKa&Eh¥EITE 19 (57) (7,696)
Receipt of government grants U B B A 4 B 32 - 10,500
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEKFEE (A2
investing activities ReFHE 23,340 (35,502)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEETE
Dividends paid to shareholders of the AR B B B A AR B
Company 12 (11,839) (21,857)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests  [@ }ff /& A &) 3F 4% A% 4 25
of subsidiaries AT AR B 17(b) (3,505) (7,215)
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITE B IE 25(b) 139,268 141,410
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE 25(b) (233,425) (134,425)
Repayment of other borrowing EBEEMEES = (25,000)
Interest paid BT F 8 25(b) (5,758) (6,526)
Interest element of lease payments MENRZHEEH 25(b) (52) (55)
Capital element of lease payments HENRZEXREHH 25(b) (722) (590)
Placement of restricted bank deposits FEAZREIRITER (21,748) (12,436)
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits HY B 5 PR #I $R 1715 3K 24,714 16,756
Net cash used in financing activities RMETEFAZRESTE (113,067) (49,938)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH ReEREEAALEBEAZ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CR2) /1&g 5 (15,350) 39,506
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—B—BzZzHER
1 JANUARY £RREER 302,074 257,523
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [Exge) s w& (16,445) 5,045
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RTZA=Z+—BRZEER
31 DECEMBER ZEREER 270,279 302,074

The notes on pages 126 to 276 are an integral part of these financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

1.

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

GENERAL INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

(@]

New Universe Environmental Group Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated on 12 November 1999 as an exempt
company with limited liability under the Companies Act,
Cap. 22 of the Cayman Islands. The registered office of the
Company is at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business of the Company is located at Rooms
2110-2112, 21/F, Telford House, 16 Wang Hoi Road, Kowloon
Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s issued shares have been initially listed on the
GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 18 May 2000. With effect from 1 August
2016, the listing of the shares of the Company was transferred
from the GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$") that is also the functional currency of
the Company while the functional currency of the subsidiaries
in the mainland of The People’s Republic of China (“Mainland
China” or the "PRC") is Renminbi (“"RMB"). As the Company's
shares are listed in Hong Kong where most of its investors are
located, the Directors consider that it is more appropriate to
present the consolidated financial statements in HK$.

These consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2022 were approved for issuance by
the Board on 24 March 2023.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“the Listing Rules”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 2(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current accounting
period reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 comprise the Company, its subsidiaries and
the Group's interests in associates and a joint venture.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
following:

o Equity investments — measured at fair value
o Assets classified as held for sale — measured at the lower
of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods. Judgements made by management in
the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on
the financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA to these financial statements for the
current accounting year:

. Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

. Amendments to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

. Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

. Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

o Amendments to HKFRSs, Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

None of these developments have had a material effect on
how the Group's results and financial position for the current
or prior years have been prepared or presented. The Group has
not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and
in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a
financial liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners of the
Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests
and other contractual obligations towards these holders are
presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the
amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests,
but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset (see note 2(h)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture
(see note 2(e)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(1)), unless the investment is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and
operating policy decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share
control of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets
of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or joint venture is accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under
the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at
cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group’s share of the
acquisition-date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any). The cost of
the investment includes purchase price, other costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the investment, and any
direct investment into the associate or joint venture that
forms part of the Group’s equity investment. Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the
Group's share of the investee’s net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment (see notes 2(g) and 2(l)).
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there
is any objective evidence that the investment is impaired.
Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and
any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Associates and joint ventures (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate or the joint venture, the Group’s interest is reduced
to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of
the investment under the equity method together with any
other long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or the joint venture,
after applying the ECL model to such long-term interests
where applicable.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investee, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not re-measured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant
influence over an associate or joint control over a joint
venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee
at the date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 2(h)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in associates and joint ventures are stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(l)), unless classified as held for
sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration test,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is concentrated
in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable
assets.

The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and cash
equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from
the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test
is met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to be
a business and no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values,
the remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated
to the other identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis
of their relative fair values at the date of purchase. Such a
transaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the
definition of an asset and a liability in the Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced
by the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
October 2010).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and

the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,

except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets and
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employees Benefits
respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to the
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share-based payment arrangements of the
Group entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the
acquisition date;

assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard; and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases for
which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of the
acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is of low
value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities,
adjusted to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of
the lease when compared with market terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any)
over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after
re-assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at
their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at
its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively.
Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that
arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from
the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that does not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
re-measured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group'’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9 Financial Instrument
would be accounted for on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had disposed directly of the previously
held equity interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the purposes
of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored of internal management purposes and
not larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
(or groups of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and then to the
other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of the
cash-generating unit within the Group of cash-generating
units, the attributable amount of goodwill is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation within
the cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating units within
a group of cash-generating units), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative values
of the operation (or the cash-generating unit) disposed of
and the portion of the cash-generating unit (or the group of
cash-generating units) retained.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt and equity
securities, other than investments in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, are as follows.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/
derecognised on the date the Group commits to purchase/
sell the investment. The investments are initially stated at
fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except
for those investments measured at fair value through profit
or loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group
determines fair value of financial instruments, see note 42.
These investments are subsequently accounted as follows,
depending on their classification.

0] Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified
into one of the following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for
the collection of contractual cash flows which
represent solely payments of principle and
interest. Interest income from the investment is
calculated using the effective interest method.

- fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI) — recycling, if the contractual cash flows
of the investment comprise solely payments
of principal and interest and the investment is
held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of contractual
cash flows and sale. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition in profit or loss of
expected credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss.

- fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) if the
investment does not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling).
Changes in the fair value of the investment
(including interest) are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

(continued)
(i) Equity investments

An investment in debt and equity securities is classified
as FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for
trading purposes and on initial recognition of the
investment the Group makes an irrevocable election to
designate the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such
that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Such elections are
made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may
only be made if the investment meets the definition
of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such
an election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of.
At the time of disposal, the amount accumulated in
the fair value reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to
retained earnings. It is not recycled through profit or
loss. Dividends from an investment in equity securities,
irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or FVOCI,
are recognised in profit or loss as other income in
accordance with the policy set out in note 2(v)(iii).

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment
other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

- interests in leasehold land and buildings where the
Group is the registered owner of the property interest;

- right-of-use assets arising from leases over leasehold
properties where the Group is not the registered owner
of the property interest; and

- other items of property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases of underlying
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residue
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Plant and machinery 3 - 10 years
Computers and equipment 3 -5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
in profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2.

FTEEFHEEK(RE)

MR W k& (8)
FETUGE  UHBEDE - B
REHEE ZRAE  LERBER
SHEIRH T 2t 5t 8 A 4 R
st B EE(WA)

¥ 20%F
5 o e 28 3E 104
LSS 3E54F
BRREE 54
a8 54

E-EME BEARREEBEZE
M AEBF AR ZAER SR R
B 2 AN 1R & 12 E AT 5 BB 1) o
DB MEBDEEMNITE B
EZAERFHREFGRER
B)eFETR -

BERABREBESREEREN
ZRX e

Hif& B AN 12 B 5% TR B AR RE BV R 2R
BEMERAEFNANES B
BERI M EZ BB RANER
T A AEHREENREE X
MRASBUMNEE (WMER) - E1F
B EENERAKE D 2 REE
RERR & IERER - FTE A MEIE
Ko e PN B BB A 0 3R o5 B
IR ER -

WERBREEZ REEGNE MG
AEl S MIZBEEEZKREE
BIRHMUBEH AT D & 58 -

WESHENE BERRERE
EEZRBEE /L EMBIAF
HMERAREERZZME  LNRW
BERHEEARBEPER -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings and structures
under construction, which is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 2(l)). Cost comprises direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs (see note 2(w))
during the periods of construction. Capitalisation of these
costs ceases and the construction in progress is transferred
to property, plant and equipment when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the assets for their intended use
are complete.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction in
progress until it is substantially completed and ready for its
intended use.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that use.

(i) As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and
non-lease component(s), the Group has elected not
to separate non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for
short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value assets. When the Group
enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments associated with
these leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k)

Leased assets (continued)

(i)

As a lessee (continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or rate are not included in the measurement of
the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss
in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date,
and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change
in future lease payments arising from a change in
an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under
a residual value guarantee, or there is a change arising
from the reassessment of whether the Group will be
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is
made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset,
or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(k) Leased assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract (“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effect
date of the modification. The only exceptions are any
rent concessions which arose as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and met the conditions
set out in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 Leases. In such
cases, the Group has taken advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions
are lease modifications, and recognised the change
in consideration as negative variable lease payments
in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions occurred.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual payments
that are due to be settled within twelve months after the
reporting period.

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease
if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an underlying assets to
the lessee. If this is not the case, the lease is classified as
an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income from
operating leases is recognised in accordance with note

2(v)(ii).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as an
operating lease with reference to the right-of-use
asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease
is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the
exemption described in note 2(k)(i), then the Group
classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

(continued)

()

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs"”) on the following items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents and trade and
other receivables);

- contract assets an defined in HKFRS 15; and

- lease receivables.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting
is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate; and

- lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the
12 months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, lease receivables
and contract assets are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs.

31 December 2022

2. £F

B FE R AR B

T —F+=-A=1+—H

FI-I- Ei ( o= | )

) EEBREREERE (E)

(1)

EHMTA BHNEERENK
HEZIZEER (&)
BHEEEERNE (&)
EFEEMEREEER A
SEEEAREREEERE
FENEBERAKE N ERF
MER EERBHEEESF
8 ATAR T B R 2R AR A R
AR E L o

50 {2 B B R B0 T 51 o

—EEAE

- NEAEMEEEA:
b A TR H 5 1212
1617 79 B B % 22 40 40
FHTEROBE R

- 2HEHEE®EE:
ﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁ%%g
EREEANIAR EEY
FRAMBRIEELEDN
EBREMMEHAERE -

FEURR  BEEERE D
BEMNBRBEGE —RIES
ARE=HBHEEERNS
HitE - ZFeMEEMNTE
HEEEBRDMBERAE
EREEEBELRNEE
EEETHE XRARE
HEEBANERNRERY
A K TR ORI B R AR B
AHEETTRE -

HREEEMEMIT A K
EENEBBEBELRAER
+ - EAANFEREEEED

CRHRER HRIEBUHER
BZeR I ANEERRK
BN EEEBRAT B

BREMNAREFERNE
HEERBENSESHEIE -

“ECCEER FFRREBBRAF

145



146

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group
to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
(ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due. The Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of principal or interest
on their contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
a financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of a debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have
a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are measured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment
to their carrying amount through a loss allowance
account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
2(v)(iv) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
a financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:
- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

(ii)

Credit losses from financial instruments, contract assets
and lease receivables (continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)
Significant increases in credit risk (continued)
Basis of calculation of interest income (continued)

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environmental that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset, lease
receivable or contract asset is written off (either partially
or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amount subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired
or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets;

- construction in progress;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FE&H K (&)
(continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets (1)

FEEBRAMEERE (&)

(continued)

(i) Impairment of other non-current assets (continued) (i) EMIFE7EEEHE (E)
- goodwill; and - BE R
= investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s —  AARBBARIRAR

MBARZKRE -

statement of financial position.

WEEERNERTR A&
B EENAKOSE -

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where

FHERRE S

BEMNAKRESRAE
B R B AN B
REEzZANRSE -
REFAEREER - &{
FARRBERETIIZEE
[ BRIR B T 5 B B B
BEELREEFERR

an asset does not generate cash inflows largely B RF (5 B9 B AT 3T IR R A7
independent of those from other assets, the RERBE WEEF
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest EXBEERARBLETR

group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units
are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), or value in use, (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of other non-current assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting,
in respect of the first six months of the financial year.
At the end of the interim period, the Group applies
the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (notes

2(D)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(m) Inventories

Inventories are assets in the form of materials or supplies
which are held for consumption in the rendering of services in
the ordinary course of business.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount for inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group recognises
revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the
consideration under the payment terms set out in the contract.
Contract assets are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL)
in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(I)(i) and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the consideration
has become unconditional (see note 2(0)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue. In such case, a corresponding receivable
would also be recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

Contract assets and contract liabilities
(continued)

For a single contract with the customer, either a net contract
asset or a net contract liability is presented. For multiple
contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated
contracts are not presented on a net basis.

When the contract includes a significant component, the
contract balance includes interest accrued under the effective
interest method.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for credit losses (see note

2(1)(@).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash and cash
equivalents are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL) in
accordance with policy set out in note (2)(I).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value,
and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at invoiced amount.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair
value less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy for borrowing
costs.

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds (the
“MPF") as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and other retirement
benefit schemes, are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss and when incurred.

Annual contributions to pension schemes operated by
the government in the PRC are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as and when incurred.

(a)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share option reserve within equity. The
fair value is measured at grant date using the binomial
option pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year under review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires (when
it is released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary difference, provided those differences relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary differences or in periods
into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary differences
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of
the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

° the same taxable entity; or

° different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)

Provisions, contingent liabilities and onerous
contracts

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing and amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, a
separate asset is recognised for any expected reimbursement
that would be virtually certain. The amount recognised for
the reimbursement is limited to the carrying amount of the
provision.

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a contract
under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations
under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to
be received from the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts
are measured at the present value of the lower of the expected
cost of terminating the contract and the net cost of fulfilling
with the contract.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by
others of the Group’s assets under operating leases in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business.

In determining whether the Group acts as a principal or as an
agent, it considers whether it obtains control of the products
or services before they are transferred to the customers.
Control refers to the Group’s ability to direct the use of and
obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from the
products or services.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(V)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to the customer for
more than 12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method. Where the
contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised
under that contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method. The
Group takes advantage of the practical expedient in paragraph
63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if the period of
financing is 12 months or less.

(i) Revenue from provision of services or goods

Revenue from provision of waste and sewage treatment
and related services or goods are recognised when
control of the services or goods are passed to the
customers.

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of
the services or goods is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract, control of the
services or goods may be transferred over time or a point
in time. Control of the services or goods is transferred
over time if the Group's performance:

- provides the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR B

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(V)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(i)

Revenue from provision of services or goods (continued)

If control of the services or goods transfers over time,

revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by

reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction

of that performance obligation, which is measured

based on direct measurements of the value of individual

services or goods transferred by the Group to the

customer. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in

time when the customer obtains control of the services
or goods.

(a)

(@]

Revenue from provision of hazardous waste
treatment and landfill services are recognised at
point in time when the services are rendered to the
customers from whom the Group have collected
and disposed the wastes.

Revenue from provision of industrial sewage
treatment services are recognised over time when
the services are rendered to the customers and
measured by using the meters for recording the
sewage flowing into the central sewage treatment
plant which is operated by the Group inside its
eco-plating industrial zone.

Revenue from provision of utilities (electricity, gas
and water) are recognised over time when the
utilities (electricity, gas and water) are supplied
to the customers inside the Group’s eco-plating
industrial zone and measured by the respective
meter recording devices.

Revenue from provision of management services is
recognised over time and on a straight-line basis
over the period of the relevant contract when
the management services are rendered to the
customer inside the eco-plating industrial zone of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(v) Revenue and other income (continued)

(i)

(i)

Revenue from provision of services or goods (continued)

(e)

Equipment construction and installation services:
Revenue from the provision of equipment
construction and installation services is recognised
over time, by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of performance obligation.

The progress towards complete transaction of the
performance obligation in respect of equipment
construction and installation services is measured
based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of the performance obligation, by
reference to the contract costs incurred up to
the end of the reporting period as a percentage
of total estimated costs for each contract. The
likelihood of the Group earning contractual
bonuses for early completion or suffering
contractual penalties for late completion are taken
into account in making these estimates, such that
revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur. When the outcome of the contract cannot
be reasonably measured, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are expected to be recovered. If at any time the
costs to complete the contract are estimated to
exceed the remaining amount of the consideration
under the contract, then a provision is recognised
in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(u).

Lease income from operating leases

Lease income receivable under operating lease is

recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the period covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments

receivable. Variable lease payments that do not depend

on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(V)

Revenue and other income (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted equity investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues under the
effective interest method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that
are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest
rate is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the asset.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the conditions attached to
them. Government grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in
which the expenses are incurred. Government grants
that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred; borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all
the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its
intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

Translation of foreign currencies
(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each entity
in the Group are measured using the currency that best
reflects the economic substance of the underlying events
and circumstances relevant to that entity (“functional
currency”). The functional currency of the Company and
its subsidiaries outside Mainland China is Hong Kong
dollar and the functional currency of the subsidiaries in
Mainland China is Renminbi. The financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollar (“presentation
currency”).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

(continued)

(x)

(y)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(if)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in

profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the date on
which the entity initially recognised such non-monetary
assets and liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates

ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated

separately in equity in the translation reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating
to that operation is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the year in which it is incurred. Expenditure on development
activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient
resources and the intention to complete development. The
expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Other
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the

year in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(2)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A disposal group is a group
of assets to be disposed of together as a group in a single
transaction, and liabilities directly associated with those assets
that will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss
of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the above
criteria of classification as held for sale are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of non-current assets (and all individual assets
and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-date
in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale
and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for certain
assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. The principal exceptions to this measurement policy so
far as the financial statements of the Group and the Company
are concerned are deferred tax assets, assets arising from
employee benefits, financial assets (other than investments
in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) and investment
properties. These assets, even if held for sale, would continue
to be measured in accordance with the policies set out
elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for sale,
and on subsequent remeasurement while held for sale, are
recognised in profit or loss. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale, the non-current asset is not
depreciated or amortised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(aa) Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control over the Group;
(2)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent.

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(1) The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(2)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(3)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(4)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. TESFHER(E)
(continued)
(aa) Related parties (continued) (aa) BEE AT (&)
(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following iy fWBEBLTEMGEEER - J
conditions applies: (continued) ERDEANEEEHE
(%)

(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for (5) BRI AKREERHE
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an AEBEBHBEZER
entity related to the Group. BBz M & 2R

K& t& FEH 3l -

(6)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (6) 7% H BB BT iE2(aa)(FT

person identified in note 2(aa)(i). *ﬁiﬂ ZEBANTRES
RS

(7) A person identified in note 2 (aa)(i)(1) has (7)  MtzE2@a)()(NFTE R 2
significant influence over the entity or is a member KEANTHZERBESR
of the key management personnel of the entity (or BATENNEBZESR
of a parent of the entity). (KZEBZBERADZ

FEEBABZKE °

(8) The entity, or any member of a group of which (8) MAEEFAANERL
it is a part, provides key management personnel RARBEEETEAER
services to the Group or the Group’s parent. Rz EREMBS

BRI E AR -
Close members of the family of a person are those family EE2ALZE®E %)jxﬁ,z,\ﬁm B 5%
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced ERETRSFOEERHFEZA
by, that person in their dealings with the entity. ATSHKAEWZBALTHEZZE
KGR E o
(bb) Segment reporting (bb) 7 ZB &

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item REBBRERAMINE ZEED B R
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the BZOHMIEER 22 - TIRRT HR
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most HPAREBETZELERKATE
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating AREBTRESMNMBAEERE
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's TR BE Mo 2= 3R ATk 2 B 7% A& K T B
various lines of business and geographical locations. Bl o

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated MU BHREME  @EHERZEE
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have PHIEEUHTE  BRIEZTH I
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of B z&ESBREUZER R
the nature of products and services, the nature of production REES £EIFME BFHE
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to Al DHEERKIRERBAEAZ
distribute the products or provide the services and the nature FE - ARBRERE - W5 IEM@ R
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments that are BEAZEEDHEBZEZERY
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a REBm - BIZSEEERERZ EE
majority of these criteria. DEAEHEHE o

SR EER HFRREEFARAT 167



168

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(a)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the

Group's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

(i)

(ii)

Fair value of equity investments

The Company has engaged an independent professional
valuer to assess the fair market value of those equity
investments as disclosed in note 20 to the financial
statements. The Directors of the Company made
a review on the judgement of the independent
professional valuer in selecting an appropriate valuation
technique for the financial instruments not quoted in
an active market. Valuation techniques applied by the
independent professional valuer are commonly used by
other market practitioners. The estimation of fair value
of the equity investments which are unlisted equity
instruments includes the adoption of a market approach
with some assumptions supported by observable
market data or parameters deemed compatible to the
operations of those investments.

Classification of Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New
Huamei as equity investments

Note 20 to the financial statements described that
Qingdao Zhongxin Huamei Plastics Co., Limited
("Qingdao Huamei”) and Danyang New Huamei
Plastics Co., Limited (“Danyang New Huamei”) are
categorised as equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income of the Group although
the Group owns 28.67% and 24.50% equity interest
in Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New Huamei,
respectively. The Group has no significant influence over
Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New Huamei by virtue of
the contractual rights to appoint only one out of the six
directors and one of the seven directors to the board of
directors of Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New Huamei,
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(@) Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies (continued)

(iir)

(iv)

(v)

Functional currency of the Company

The Company is carrying out its operating activities and
making management decisions in Hong Kong dollar,
amongst others, on raising finance in Hong Kong
dollars and has a significant degree of autonomy from
its subsidiaries in the Mainland China in the way its
business is managed. Hong Kong dollar is the currency
of the transactions and events of the Company for which
the Company primarily receives and expends. In the
opinion of the Directors of the Company, its functional
currency is Hong Kong dollar.

Leased assets under operating leases

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group's
property, plant and equipment were certain buildings
ancillary to sewage treatment and the leasehold land
of the eco-plating specialised zone with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$113,960,000
(2021 : HK$133,280,000) that are leased to the
customers under operating leases for use in accordance
with the arrangement of the master agreements made
between the Group and these customers. As the
industrial sewage services provided to these customers
are significant to the arrangement as a whole inside the
eco-plating specialised zone which is owned, operated
and managed by the Group, these relevant buildings
and equipment facilities are accounted for and classified
under property, plant and equipment, respectively,
instead of investment property, in the consolidated
financial statements.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value-in-use of the cash-generating unit to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value-in-use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. The carrying
amount of goodwill at 31 December 2022 and 2021
was HK$33,000,000. Further details are set out in note
16 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(@) Critical accounting judgements in applying the

Group’s accounting policies (continued)

(vi)

Impairment assessment on interest in an associate

The Group assesses whether or not there are any
indicators of impairment for interest in an associate at
the end of each reporting period. Interest in an associate
is tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of interest
in an associate exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, the Group estimates the present values of
cash flows expected to arise from continuing to hold
the investment and choose suitable discount rates in
order to calculate the present values of those cash
flows. The most significant judgements shall refer to
the impairment assessment of the Group’s 30% equity
interest in Nanjing Chemical Industry Park Tianyu Solid
Waste Disposal Co., Ltd. (“NCIP"”). As disclosed in note
18, during the year ended 31 December 2022, NCIP
experienced a year-on-year over 18% decline in average
unit prices per metric tonnes on collection of industrial
hazardous waste for environmental incineration
under the impact of changing market demand of the
upstream industrial supply chains, and as a result,
incurred a loss of approximately HK$31,528,000 (2021:
HK$41,844,000) of which the Group shared its loss of
approximately HK$9,459,000 (2021: HK$12,553,000).
As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s interest in
NCIP in the carrying amount was approximately
HK$125,527,000 (2021: HK$145,346,000). The value
in use of the Group’s 30% equity interest in NCIP
being determined and based on the discounted cash
flow projections of NCIP has been prepared by the
management of the Group. The key assumptions used
include the discounted rate, growth rate, budget sales
and gross margin of NCIP. The discounted rate applied
is determined by using the Capital Assets Pricing Model
which reflects specific risk of the business of NCIP,
taking into account the applicable borrowing interest
rates immediately before the projection period and
the growth rate applied is determined based on the
expected long-term inflation in the PRC, while other
key assumptions relating to the estimation of cash
inflows/outflows are determined by taking into account
the financial budgets approved by NCIP’s directors,
past performance of NCIP and expectations of NCIP’s
management on the market development.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the

Group’s accounting policies (continued)

(vi)

Impairment assessment on interest in an associate
(continued)

Determining whether the interest in NCIP is impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use on the basis of
data available to the Group.

Based on the impairment assessment, the value in use
of the Group’s 30% equity interest in NCIP exceeds its
carrying amount at 31 December 2022 and accordingly,
the Directors of the Company considered that there was
no impairment on the Group’s 30% equity interest in
NCIP.

Should the parameters adopted in the calculations of
the value in use of the interest in NCIP differ materially,
impairment loss may be required to be recognised.

Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing

a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.

(i)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The Group’s major operating assets represent property,
plant and equipment. Management performs review
for impairment of the property, plant and equipment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts of these assets may not be
recoverable. Management considered there was no
impairment indicator of property, plant and equipment
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b)

Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (continued)

Management determines the estimated useful lives of
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the actual
useful lives of assets of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of significant
technical innovations and competitor actions in
response to industry cycles. Management will increase
the depreciation charges where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives, or will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.

Impairment of contract assets, trade and bills receivables
and other receivables

The Group determines the provision for impairment
of contract assets, trade and bills receivable and other
receivable on a forward looking basis. Lifetime ECLs on
contract assets, and trade and bills receivables (including
lease receivables) are recognised from initial recognition
of the assets. The provision matrix is determined
based on the Group’s historical observed bad debt
loss rates of the contract assets, and trade and bills
receivables (including lease receivables), at the reporting
period end, with similar credit risk characteristics
and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. Other
receivables are considered for 12-month ECLs unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instruments, in which case the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. In
making the judgement, management considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information,
at the reporting period, such as actual or expected
significant changes in operating results and financial
positions of the customers, past payment history of
the customers, and actual or expected adverse changes
in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change in the customers’
ability to settle their trade debts. At the end of each
reporting period, the historical observed bad debt loss
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
economic conditions and estimates are analysed by the
Group’s management.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of contract assets, trade and bills receivables
and other receivables (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of trade
and bills receivables was HK$106,499,000 (2021:
HK$150,022,000) which approximated to the present
value of their respective estimated future cash flows.

The appraisals on allowance for expected credit loss
which resulted in an impairment of trade and bills
receivables of HK$41,388,000 (2021: HK$41,166,000)
was recognised in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for potential
tax exposures based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will affect the current and
deferred taxation provisions in the financial period in
which such determination is made. Deferred tax assets
relating to certain temporary differences and certain
tax losses are recognised as management considers it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences will affect the
recognition of deferred tax and tax in the periods in
which such estimate is changed.

As at 31 December 2022, the undistributed profits of
the profitable PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounted
to RMB144,690,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$163,499,000) (2021: RMB162,629,000 (and
equivalent to approximately HK$198,408,000)), which
the Group can control the dividend policies in respect
of the amount and timing of future distributions by
the PRC subsidiaries and accordingly, at 31 December
2022, the Group has made a provision of approximately
HK$10,376,000 (2021: HK$12,427,000) for deferred tax
liabilities in respect of the expected withholding tax on
distributions out of the distributable profits of the PRC
subsidiaries.

31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

3. ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
(iv)  Going concern basis assessment

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was
drop in the Group’s operating performance, which
was resulted from unfavourable fluctuation of prices in
the hazardous waste disposal service industry and the
expected credit loss of debtors.

Upon the gradual recovery of economic situation in the
PRC, management has benchmarked to latest price level
in the industry, together with rigorous cost measures
over its operations, to formulate a forecast which will
generate enhanced positive operating cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WHm R mT M &

(a) Revenue (a) Wz
()  Disaggregation of revenue () Wz
Revenue represents the revenue from hazardous WHIERE CREMREER
waste incineration and landfill services, environmental HERBE RRIBEREER
equipment construction and installation services, TERRS TESKEER
industrial sewage treatment services and providing BKRIEHBEEREELREER
related utilities and management services, and from B UARKEREIRKE
providing factory facilities. 2 WEs o
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with EPRPAHNKEZRKREERMA
customers by service lines is as follows: oW
2022 2021
—E=-= —ETE-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Revenue from contracts with EESHWE
customers
Disaggregation by service lines LRI IEA A D
— Revenue from hazardous waste — KA B EYIEE R
incineration and landfill services HEIERGE W% 373,494 456,400
— Revenue from environmental —REARRREEENR
equipment construction THE RS Y W
and installation services 72,810 124,496
— Revenue from industrial sewage —REATESKEERBEL
treatment services and providing SRR E & B IR AR
related utilities and management > gz
services 108,323 114,257
554,627 695,153
Revenue from other sources Ht R 2 W
— Leasing income from providing —RBERHIEEE
factory facilities S U A 34,324 32,014
588,951 727,167
Timing of revenue recognition in FEEZF S AN E 2 5/
respect of contracts
with customers
— Ata point in time — R E (B B 373,494 456,400
— Over time - —EREBA 181,133 238,753
554,627 695,153
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

(continued)
(a) Revenue (continued)
(i) Performance obligations

The amounts of transaction prices allocation to the
remaining performance obligations as at 31 December
2022 are as follows:

W 5 B 47 AR (48)

(a)

Wat (%)

(1)

JBAVEAT
Hz_ZTZ-_—_+=-A
—t— B FHBBOEBED
RBEEHREENT ¢

2022 2021
B8 —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Amounts expected to be TEHRER RN EN S5
recognised as revenue
Within one year —FR 54,802 135,105

The amounts of transactions prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations which are expected
to be recognised as revenue after one year relate to
equipment construction and installation services, of
which the performance obligations are to be satisfied
within 2 years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by segments, which are
organised by business lines. In a manner consistent with
the way in which information is reported internally to the
Company'’s executive Directors, being the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following four reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments:

(i) provision of environmental treatment and disposal
services for industrial and medical wastes;

(i) provision of environmental equipment construction and
installation services;

(iii)  provision of environmental plating sewage treatment,
management services and provision of related facilities
and utilities in an eco-plating specialised zone; and

(iv)  investments in plastic materials dyeing business.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purpose of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s most
senior executive management monitors the results, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

(i) Segment assets include all tangible assets, goodwill,
interests in associates and a joint venture, and current
assets with the exception of intercompany receivables
and other unallocated head office and corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include current taxation, deferred tax
liabilities, trade payables, lease liabilities, other payables
and accrued expenses attributable to the activities of the
individual segments and borrowings managed directly
by the segments, with the exception of intercompany
payables and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities.

31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(©)

Segment results,

assets and liabilities

(continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to revenue generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“reportable
the Group’s earnings are further

“reportable segment results”. To arrive at
segment results”,
adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as head office or corporate
administration costs. Taxation charge is not allocated to

reportable segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
“reportable segment results”, management is provided
with segment information including revenue, interest
income and expense from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and additions to
non-current segment assets used by the segments in
their operations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WE RO EHHME (&

(continued)
(c) Segment results, assets and liabilities (00 PEFEE - EERBEE)
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-—EZ-_—_Ff+=-HA=+—AHL
FE
Operating segments
g5y
Environmental
sewage
Environmental treatment,
Environmental equipment  management
waste  construction services, Unallocated
treatment and and  utilitiesand  Plastic dyeing Segment head office
disposal installation facilities  investments sub-total  and corporate Total
FAEREE
EERE
BURREE RRZRERER AREE RIRES
REE %% kit ERfeRE AWM kt# Eh
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TR TR TiEn TEn TER TR TERL
Revenue from external customers ~ SNFEF A 373,494 72,810 142,647 - 588,951 - 588,951
Other revenue At - - - 4,49 4,49 - 4,209
Reportable segment revenue ~ THEA TN 373,494 72,810 142,647 4,249 593,200 - 593,200
Reportable segment results ~ THEAPEE 20,629 (13,167) 30,762 3385 41,569 - 41,569
Other income EfglA 9,540 yif] 1,663 - 1416 - 1416
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary ~ HER-FHEAT
g 271,303 - - - 27,303 - 27,303
Finance income HESA 3,485 3 2,269 (474) 5,512 140 5,652
Finance costs EE (3,257) (10) (931) - (4,198) (1495) (5,693)
Depreciation and amortisation ~ TEREH (56,369) (513) (22,231) - (19,113) (355) (79,468)
Impairment loss on trade EREZ
receivables, net HEFR 58 (2,064) (1,203) (121) - (3,389) - (3,389)
Reportable segment assets EEEF RN 1,019,802 78,681 315,499 70,797 1,484,779 29,267 1,514,046
Additions to non-curent segment  REFFHHNEE
assets 21,954 61 2,959 - 2,974 1 24,981
Reportable segment liabilities ~ THEAFEE 274,007 63,464 69,308 4,151 410,930 27,609 438,539
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

= 4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. W3R 4 4R & (M)

. (continued)
(c) Segment results, assets and liabilities (0 »HFHE BEERARGE
(continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bz—_ZTZ-—4+-_A=+—81t
FE
Operating segments
k]
Environmental
sewage
Environmental treatment,
Environmental equipment  management
waste construction services, Unallocated
treatment and and utiitiesand ~ Plastic dyeing Segment head office
disposal installation facllities investments sub-total  and corporate Total
BKRREE
EERE
BNBREE REREEER NG Koligd
k&g gk R EHEERE ARt k% a3t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR Thn Fhn Fhn TR
Revenue from exteral customers — JMIE B 456,400 124,49 146,271 - 721,167 - 721,167
Other revenue s - - - 4,637 4,637 - 4,637
Reportable segment revenue  TH&A B 456,400 124,49 146,271 4637 731,804 - 731,804
Reportable segment results ~ THEAPEE 46,386 3,158 24,148 4,266 77,958 - 71,958
Other income HHBA 4,745 406 2,256 - 7407 - 1407
Finance income BEUA 3716 358 9% 9% 461 (121) 4140
Finance costs HERK (3.29) (29 (1.017) - (4.338) (2,183) (6,521)
Depreciation and amartisation ~ FTER&H (60,631) (523) (23,049) - (84,199) (274 (84473)
(Impairment loss)/reversal of EWER 7 (HE
impairment loss on trade BB HEE
receivables, net BN FE (28906) 2 13 - (28,685) - (28,685)
Reportable segment assets TREANEE 1,152,027 115,301 385,865 81,952 1,735,145 48,866 1,784,011
Additions to non-current segment  REFAHATEE
assets 24,84 1,235 1,684 - 21,743 1,730 29473
Reportable segment liabilities ~ TH&EADERE 366,606 90,431 102,447 3571 563,055 38,146 601,201
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

—E-—F+=-A=+—8
4. WHERTHHE (B

31 December 2022

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)
(d) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, (d) AImREDH W= - Bm - &
profit or loss, assets and liabilities ENBEZHE
2022 2021
—E—-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Revenue Wz
Consolidated revenue A W 588,951 727,167
Elimination of inter-segment revenue %> &B & Yz 2 %1 4 = -
Other revenue H e 4,249 4,637
Reportable segment revenue AR E D Ef M R 593,200 731,804
Profit or loss B
Reportable segment profit A] #5265 41,569 77,958
Unallocated head office and AOBMBERTERT - F58
corporate expenses, net (17,466) (17,604)
Consolidated profit before taxation 454 B &4 % £l 24,103 60,354
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets A E D EEE 1,484,779 1,735,145
Unallocated head office and corporate RO EC 4280 (¥ & E
assets 29,267 48,866
Consolidated total assets REBEE 1,514,046 1,784,011
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities AlRE D EaE 410,930 563,055
Unallocated head office and corporate RO EL4AE K> ¥ & &
liabilities 27,609 38,146
Consolidated total liabilities FEHAar 438,539 601,201
ZEZCEFER FFEREEARAF 181
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

£vS =n & 2=
4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4. WHZ ko P& (&)
(continued)
(e) Geographic information (e) HIZE R
All revenue and non-current assets of the Group are generated AEBZHAEWRERIEREBEETY
from and located in the PRC, respectively. Accordingly, no DREEBRURFE - Bt - I
analysis by geographical basis is presented. EmEJ|IEMEE D 2D °
(f) Major customers f)y TEBEEF
Revenue of approximately HK$35,007,000 (2021: BE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=+—81t
HK$42,136,000) representing 5.9% (2021: 5.8%) was FE o WEEF5.9% (ZF=_—F:
derived from a single external customer for the year ended 5.8% ) B14935,007,000/8 7T (=&
31 December 2022, which was attributed to the segment of —— 1% 142,136,000 ) K 5 &
environmental equipment construction and installation (2021: —HNHEE  BERIRREHEEE
the segment of environmental equipment construction and RERIL(ZEZ—F  RRK
installation). HRERTEDE) -
Save as disclosed herein, there was no other major customer BRAXWEIN BHE_ZE-_—_FK
accounted for more than 10% of the total revenue of the T4+ -_A=+—8B1ItHF
Group for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. B UEHGMTIFERFHASEER
WKz£10% A £ o
—r
5. OTHER REVENUE 5. Hitd 5=
2022 2021
—E__ —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Dividend income from equity investments at 7 5 i & H b & B I &5 1%
fair value through other comprehensive NEBEARZBRAEEZ
income iz B A 4,249 4,637
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

6. OTHER INCOME 6. Hilx A
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Refund of Value-added tax (note (i) BERBRB (T Z0) 3,122 2,846
Government grants (note (i) T 48 B (B 22 17)) 3,345 1,331
Release of deferred government grants R SE TR S R B R 2,026 1,808
Sundry income MBI A 2,923 1,422
11,416 7,407

Notes: Wi -

(i) Pursuant to the tax rules and regulations in the PRC, subsidiaries () WERBEWBERNERENR LRER
of the Group that engage in the environmental operations, comply RER - BTFPEABEHRTIL AR
with the requirements in the PRC and pay Value-added Tax ZWA6% (ZE=Z—F : 6%) S Ti%
("VAT") at 6% (2021: 6%) on invoiced income are entitled to a EF(EEH]D 2 AEBHMBERRY
refund up to 70% of the net VAT paid. There were no unfulfilled AIEEN  RZECHRERFEN
conditions and other contingencies attached to such tax refunds. 70% © ZERBW B HREIT 215
There is no assurance that the Group will continue to receive such R EMSAEIE EERBANEEFH
tax refunds in the future. AEBEBERESBRER -

(i)~ There were no unfulfilled conditions and other contingencies (i) WHZEWYHLBEMNERBITZIGMHE
attached to the receipt of these grants. HHEMLIAEIE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

7. FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

il B UL\ B B

2022 2021
—E-= —E-_—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Finance income from: KA T z@ERA -
Interest income on bank deposits RITHFERZFEHA 3,318 3,867
Net foreign exchange gain SNE UK 75 R 2,334 273
Total finance income EE=ON L 5,652 4,140
Interest expenses on: BT ZHERE -
Bank borrowings RITEE 5,641 5,627
Other borrowing HMEE = 839
Lease liabilities HESE 52 55
Total finance costs il & R A4 KR 5,693 6,521
Net finance costs & B A R R 41 2,381
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

B FE R AR B

—E-=F+=-A=+—H

8. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 8. B&HianiEF
Profit before taxation was arrived at after charging: R B R i A T A8 H0BR T 51 %08
2022 2021
—E—_— - —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Auditor’s remuneration: ZERMB S
— audit service — BB 1,350 1,350
- non-audit services — LR 210 180
1,560 1,530
Depreciation of property, plant and YME BERREBITE
equipment 75,715 80,332
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TRAREERE 3,753 4,141
Operating lease charges: minimum lease LEHERS  RIEHEENR
payments
- land and buildings in Hong Kong —BRAZ LM REF 1,080 1,080
- landfill in the PRC —hEZEIES 118 120
1,198 1,200
Other operating expenses: Hih &%
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEIEREBZ
plant and equipment BB 308 606
Costs on litigations and FRAREHREN 2
non-compliance incidents &M 11,975 1,348
Legal and professional expenses FERREERY 7,422 4,290
Research and development expenses e 5 2 7,351 7,775
Written off of other receivables H b 8 U SR I8 2 i 8 234 -
Other miscellaneous expenses H i FIBERAX 3,457 3,807
30,747 17,826
Staff costs: BIAA :
- Directors’ emoluments —EEM 4,043 4,091
- salaries, wages and other benefits of —-EBE(BEERMN) 2% < -
employees other than directors TEREAMMEFR 91,182 91,852
— contributions to retirement benefits —RIRE R ET 23k
schemes 14,531 12,738
— equity-settled share-based payment — AR EZER O
expenses (note 39(a)) EERINHAX
(Ht7#39(a)) 475 305
Total staff costs 88 T kAN 110,231 108,986
Cost of sales (note) SHEE R AN (5 469,594 535,502

Note:

Included in cost of sales were raw materials in the amount of
HK$72,487,000 (2021: HK$74,963,000), water and electricity in
the amount of HK$41,661,000 (2021: HK$41,708,000), staff costs
of HK$53,291,000 (2021: HK$49,289,000), and depreciation of
HK$74,318,000 (2021: HK$78,289,000), and of which staff costs
and depreciation have already been included in the respective total
amounts disclosed above.

£ & Bk AR B4R R 6 £172,487,0008 T (=&
— —%F : 74,963,000/ 7T) * 7K E41,661,000
B (ZZT = —4 41,708,000 T)
8 TR A53,291,0008 0 (& — — 4 :
49,289,0007 7t) K #T £74,318,000% T (—
T~ —4F :78,289,000/87T) * H - BT
ARWEBTALXHECHBEESERN -

TP EER NMFRARSEEERAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR B

31 December 2022

9. DIRECTORS’' EMOLUMENTS

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

9. EEME

RIBEBENF6228FE R RGP E

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622, Laws of Hong Kong)
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about

Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

3BNELE AR (REBEEFMEZER) R

e

MRAEMBEZEETHEOT

Retirement
Director Salaries and Benefits scheme
fee allowance inkind  contributions Total
BRGHE
ExHe FEREH BRI #% @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TEL TAL TEL TAL
Year ended 31 December 2022  EHZE-F-—F+=f
S+-ALEE
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. XI'Yu ZEi4 35 1,635 - 1" 1,681
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling RNETL 194 - - - 194
Ms. JJANG Qian® BfErt0 91 - - - 91
Mr. ZHENG Zhen® g2 A 90 - - - 90
Ms. LIU Yu Jie BT ALt 180 ; _ _ 180
Mr. HON Wa Fai BEELE - 1,069 - 18 1,087
Non-executive Director FHTEZ
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica® A £ 180 - - - 180
Independent non-executive Directors BV #7175 E
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong RREEL 180 - - - 180
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael Bu g 5 4 180 - - = 180
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred MhERE 180 - - - 180
1,310 2,704 - 29 4,043
Year ended 31 December 2021 HZ-ZB=-%+=f
=+-ALEE
Executive Directors HITEZE
Mr. XI'Yu e 36 1,653 - 18 1,707
Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling RNRLT 194 - - - 194
Ms. XI Man Shan Erica®” Z YL £ 180 - - - 180
Mr. ZHENG Zhen® BELEO 66 - - - 66
Ms. ZHANG Shuo® KA LW 84 - - - 84
Ms. LIU Yu Jie BIALE 180 - _ _ 180
Mr. HON Wa Fai BEELE - 1,122 - 18 1,140
Independent non-executive Directors BU 5772 %
Dr. CHAN Yan Cheong RRASEL 180 - - - 180
Mr. YUEN Kim Hung, Michael Bl 180 - - - 180
Mr. HO Yau Hong, Alfred L 180 - - - 180
1,280 2,775 - 36 4,091
Notes: Hiat -

(i) Ms. JIANG Qian was appointed as an executive Director with effect

from 30 June 2022.

(i)~ Mr. ZHENG Zhen resigned as an executive Director with effect

from 30 June 2022.

(iii) ~ Ms. XI Man Shan Erica was re-designated from an executive
Director to non-executive Director with effect from 30 June 2022.

(iv)  Ms. ZHANG Shuo was not re-elected at the annual general
meeting of the Company and retired as an executive Director at
the conclusion of the annual general meeting held on 18 June

2021.
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(if)

(iii)

(iv)

BELTR_E-_—_FXA=1+HE
ZEBRITES -

BELEER-_E-_—_FA=1TH%
EHITES -

ZYMLZ+R_E-_—_FA=+8
MM TESHEAENTES -

REZERARARARRBFAS
FEE YERZZT-_—FRAT+N
HRTZBRRBFAGERKRIR
TES-



9.

10.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE R AR B

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS 9.
(continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
Directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors has waived
any emoluments for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

No payment or benefit was paid in respect of the termination of the
services of Directors during the year (2021: Nil).

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 10.

EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2021:
one) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2021:
four) individuals during the year are as follows:

EEME (8

RAFEE R - A% B &R E BN
SEABREEMBEASE K NBER 288
B XEABBEE - BHE_T_—F
F_E-—FE+-_A=+—HBILEE "
WEEERRTAE -

74 [ 3 1% 3t 5 4 L 6 RS 44
HAFE o (CF—F )

EE#HmAL

FERBERHTALTET ME(ZTE=Z—F:
—R)AEFE HHS BN FORE-
A= (T -_—F:0FZ) ALFER
ZHemEnT

2022 2021

B —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Salaries and other benefits Hre REAMER 1,786 2,201

Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 2,281 3,652

Contributions to retirement schemes R AORAE T FT B R R B 321 399
Equity-settled share-based AR A e st B 1R 9

payment expenses EEMI A 287 254

4,675 6,506

TP EER NMFRARSEEERAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

= = =]
10.INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 10. =B AT (88)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
The emoluments of the three (2021: four) individuals with the =EZ(ZEZ—F NB)HEaHg AL
highest emoluments fell within the following bands: B 8 T 5147
2022 2021
—E_-— T —%F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A N
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) B85 (Bt)
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 7L 21,000,000 7T = -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7t 21,500,000 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,0017% 7t £2,000,0007% 7T = 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001%8 70 £2,500,0007% 7T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001;%8 70 £3,000,0007%8 7T = 1
3 4
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the RAERER  KREBTHEA =7 (=
above three (2021: four) individuals as an inducement to join, or T —F O ANETEZNEEEATBE
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office. EMBEREESMBRE 2 EE - siiEA
BERLAH(E -
PA=] 3.
11.INCOME TAX M. &S
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit (a) MMEERRXANZIHIERR
or loss represents:
2022 2021
—_E__ —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Current tax B HA T 1]
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEMER = -
PRC Corporate Income Tax PRI RSN 18,525 17,479
Under/(over)-provision in respect of ~ BEFEEBE TR,
prior years (FRFERE) 964 (4,355)
PRC Dividend Withholding Tax FERR B TR 3,455 5,345
22,944 18,469
Deferred tax IE R IE
PRC Dividend Withholding Tax o % B FE A0 (3.455) (5,345)
Origination and reversal of TR N [B] 5 B Hth B R = FE
other temporary differences 50 (5,688)
19,539 7,436

188  New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022



11.INCOME TAX (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

—E-=F+=-A=+—H

11. ﬁﬁ *jﬁ ('--E)

(a) HEBERRAZHRIALR

31 December 2022

or loss represents: (continued) (48)

Notes: Btit -

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands (i) RERASHENEBRELHS
and the British Virgins Islands, the Group is not subject to ZHBIEED  KREBETBRE
any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgins HEHENIEBR XHBHMN
Islands. ERIFTISH -

(i)  Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2021: (i) BERNESHIEAFEE (G EZ
16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for the years. mmﬂme 5% —E-—fF:
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as 16.5% ) st E - R AEER
the Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong BE-_ T -_—_FKk_FT-—%F
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. +ZAZt+-—BLHEEYTESR

BREEEIBRESN B
uf}E%/%*‘J %Rﬁé{%

(iii)  The Company’s subsidiaries in PRC are subject to a statutory
Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") at the rate of 25% (2021:
25%), except for the subsidiaries which are qualified as the

iy AXRABZHBEWERQRBEIE
25% (ZZE = —%F :25%) 2%t
$%M*h£m¢%ﬁﬁ (T2

High and New Technology Enterprise in PRC that would BED  EFEFRESHIEK

be entitled to enjoy a preferential CIT at the rate of 15%
(2021: 15%). Dividend distribution from subsidiaries in

@ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ%ZW% AR
ZEMBERARAEEZTE15% (=

PRC to the holding companies in Hong Kong is subject to a %:—i $15%) ZIBEDEFR
reduced withholding tax rate of 5% (2021: 5%), BRI =R EP B RRMAE
ﬁ%? R AT DIk 2R EEIRS%
T:—i 5%) 2 B #m T8
MR EHH -
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) TﬁzkﬁﬁfRTqu Z Tt I8
accounting profit at the applicable rates: S e EFHENT
2022 2021
—==-= —ZEZ—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Profit before taxation RR B Al % F 24,103 60,354
Notional tax on profit before taxation, ZABREF I el A R 2 & F
calculated at the rates applicable in MEAEZBRBINEF 2
the tax jurisdiction concerned HEMEA 9,151 17,694
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A] %% 5 5 2 % 7% &2 22 7,546 7,204
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERRBWAZH B E (3,120) (2,678)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised kAT I8 B 18~ B o 2 11,632 3,068
Under/(over) provision in respect of  BEFEEE LT,/
prior years (ERER A1) 964 (4,355)
Tax effect of temporary differences CHRAEREB I R E
recognised 50 (5,688)
Effect of income tax preferential FEEHRERRRZYE
policy in PRC (6,684) (7,809)
Tax expense for the year AEEHERE 19,539 7,436

“ECCEER FFRREBBRAF

To3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

12.DIVIDENDS

(@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year

12.8z B2
(a)

RNERRNAR A K
RIR

2022 2021
—EB-—F —TE-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Final dividend proposed after the RBEBREREZRAKRE
end of the reporting & 1%0.0038% 7T
period of HK$0.0038 —E - —4%:0.0039%7T)
(2021: HK$0.0039) per share 11,536 11,839

The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of
the reporting period and is subject to the approval of the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

REERREEB RN ZFERE
WERBEMRERRAE BB
FARRIBERREREERAFAE
LHAER - TAFE -

FARHE RN E— K
FEERNARAEARR
Z BB

2022 2021
B8 —E-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Final dividend in respect of the AEEERNIERER F— B
previous financial year, approved e L S L
and paid during the year of H“OM(3039°%; (_/%_—E '
HK$0.0039 (2021: HK$0.0072) A o TBA—=— '
per share 0.00727%7¢) 11,839 21,857
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

13. 81 &7

Basic earnings per share (a)
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on

the profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$7,273,000 (2021: HK$40,419,000) and the weighted

average number of 3,035,697,018 (2021: 3,035,697,018)

ordinary shares of the Company in issue during the year as

follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

B FE R AR B

T —F+=-A=1+—H

I AN 2 F

RAREB ANEEBRERRFTHE
AR B A A FE (k% 517,273,000
BT (ZF = — 4 : 40,419,000 JT)
RARBFRDETE BB MNEF
) £43,035,697,018f% (== = — 4 :
3,035,697,0180%) 25t E AT :

ZRERMEFLIIE
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F

Ordinary shares in issue at
1 January and 31 December

W—A—HBE+ZA=+—H
ZEBRITEBRK

3,035,697,018 3,035,697,018

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares at 31 December

R+ZA=+—HzEBR

hniE 18 8 3,035,697,018  3,035,697,018
Diluted earnings per share (b) FRLE S BT

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$7,273,000 (2021: HK$40,419,000) and the weighted
average number of 3,035,697,018 (2021: 3,037,681,364)
ordinary shares of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022 is calculated as follows:

REE_ZE-_F+=A=+—
AEFE SREFSRAMNDHER
KR AHER AR F7,273,000
BT (ZZE = —4 : 40,419,000/
L) RARB EBRMEFHIH
3,035,697,018f% (=T = — & :
3,037,681,3648%) 25 E T ¢

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) EERMEFLIGE (#E)
2022 2021
—E== —ET-—F
Weighted average number of RTZA=+—RAzZ%BER
ordinary shares at 31 December DNHE S35 81 3,035,697,018 3,035,697,018

RIEARRERESE

BOIROHNEE

Effect of deemed issue of shares
under the Company’s share
option scheme

- 1,984,346

Weighted average number of ordinary A+ - A=Z+—BZE @K
shares (diluted) at 31 December nEE 8 ()

3,035,697,018 3,037,681,364

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no assumption was
made for the exercise of share options because the exercise
price of share option exceeded the average market price of the
Company'’s share. Accordingly, diluted earnings per share was
the same as basic earnings per share for 2022.

_— ——

REBEEZZE-_—_F+=-A=+—H
IEFE BREBRENTEERRN
ARABBRGHFEHTE  HILER
BEREETE AL T
FHERBERFETGRERNZF
R -

FFER FFEREEBERAA

oY



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 9% - BB B

192

Computers
Construction ~ Plant and and Furniture Motor
Buildings  inprogress  machinery  equipment  and fixtures vehicles Total
B% EBIR HERRE EERZE GARRE AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn AR iR Thr T Thr Thn
Cost B
At 1 January 2021 R-E--%-f-H 619,188 15,041 458,627 21,231 6,393 12,085 1,132,565
Exchange adjustments Ejigg 20973 188 15,747 732 216 33 3,219
Additions RE 1,118 15,739 4,48] 2,186 285 3,695 27,505
Disposals HE (69) - (9,078) (255) (92) (855) (10,349)
Transfer b 12,774 (25,133) 12,275 79 5 - -
Reclassified as assets of a disposal ~ EFHEAREHEZ HERA
group held for sale LEE (6,600) - (712) - (1) - (6,673)
At 31 December 2021 and R-E--%+-A=+-8Ek
1 January 2022 “Z--%-8-R 647,384 5,835 481,981 23973 6,806 15,288 1,181,267
Exchange adjustments B 5% (47,354) (518)  (36,108) (1,806) (499) 868)  (87,153)
Additions NE 977 14,395 5,981 2,554 315 759 24,981
Disposals HeE (35 - 2,197) (365) (163) (511) (3211)
Transfer g5 5,888 (12,083) 6,195 - - - -
At 31 December 2022 Ro$ZZFT=AZt-8 606860 69 ASE2 U356 6459 MG68  1,11582
Depreciation and impairment FERAE
At 1 January 2021 RZE--%-f-H 147,428 = 177,324 8,420 2,689 7,07 342,932
Exchange adjustments ERAE 5,451 - 6,736 324 106 186 12,803
Charge for the year ERR 27305 - 46,334 37 1,191 1771 80,332
Eliminated on disposals REEREH (56) - (7.210) (230) (81) (818) (8,395)
Reclassified as assets of adisposal B P EABfELEZ LERA
group held for sale 2EE (1,952) - - - - - (1,952)
At 31 December 2021 and RZE--5+-A=1+-REk
1 January 2022 “Z--£-8-H 178,1% = 223,184 12,225 3,905 8210 425,720
Exchange adjustments EiEE (14,046) - (18,228) (958) (316) (495) (34,043)
Charge for the year ERG 26,126 - 43,544 3,003 1,057 1,985 75,715
Eliminated on disposals REERHE (13) - (1,905) (345) (124) (345) (2,732)
At 31 December 2022 R-RZZHETZAZ1-H 190,263 - 246,595 13,925 4522 9,355 464,660
Carrying amount BEE
At 31 December 2022 RZRZZETZAZ1-H 416,597 7629 209,257 10,431 1937 5313 651,164
At 31 December 2021 R-B--%+-f=1-H 469,188 5,835 258,797 11,748 2,901 7,078 755,547

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022



14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

14. 9% ~ BB B (8)

(continued)

The buildings are situated in the PRC with leases held within 50
years.

As at 31 December 2022, certain property, plant and
equipment with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$89,129,000 (2021: HK$108,107,000) had been pledged to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group (note 38).

As at 31 December 2022, included in the Group’s property, plant
and equipment there were certain factory buildings ancillary to
industrial sewage treatment erected on the leasehold land in the
eco-plating specialised zone with an aggregate carrying amount
of approximately HK$113,960,000 (2021: HK$133,280,000) that
were leased to customers for use in accordance with the contractual
arrangement under the master agreements entered into between
the Group and the customers entering the eco-plating specialised
zone which is owned, operated and managed by the Group. As
the centralised industrial sewage treatment services provided by
the Group to the customers are significant to the arrangement
as a whole inside the eco-plating specialised zone, these relevant
buildings and equipment facilities being leased to the customers are
accounted for and classified under property, plant and equipment in
the consolidated financial statements. At the end of both reporting
periods, no impairment were recognised on the property, plant and
equipment at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Movements of carrying amount of the assets, primarily the buildings,

ZEBTFMURTE I R0ERNESHE
ﬁo

RZZE-_—_F+=-_A=+—8 E@E{E
4 #£#4989,129,0008 T (=T = —F :

108,107,000 7T) 2 & THWHE BE X
REETEF EAEANEEMERIETT
BhE 2 PR (FIFE38) o

R-ZB-_—_F#+-_A=+—8 st AKX
SEVE BERRBEPDHIERREHE
EXEHEE LM EFMEHIRNITES
KEEWMEFTIRER E%EEDA

#)/113,960,0008 0 (Z T = —F :
133,280,000 7T) E*ETE;K;‘%IEEL

ABASEMRES LEREEZRRE
EREXBZEPIIUZEHZERTA
MEHFLBETRETPER -ARNASE
BREPRHZEPA TR KEER
BHRRERFEXERAZEBLHME
BEX BUHSFEEATEFPZHEBET
RESRBIREGWHBRERAREE
URERYE BERKBET KM
EHREHR ABHIR _FT__F R
B+ -A=+—HZU¥E K&F
KR B FERIRE

RELEZHEHETEPNEE(ZER

leased out to customers under operating leases are as follows: BF)ZEREEZHNT

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT THET

At 1 January Bn—A—H 133,280 139,229
Depreciation e (9,991) (10,423)
Exchange adjustments ME W A (9,329) 4,474
At 31 December R+t=-—A=+—H 113,960 133,280

Leasing income recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$34,324,000 (2021: HK$32,014,000), details of which are
included in note 4 to the financial statements.

AEBEFARRHEWAE34,324,000
BT (ZZ — —4 32,014,000 7T) °
HBEHNYIEREN T4 -

“ECCEER FFRREBBRAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR B

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

15.RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

15. EFEEE

HK$’'000
FER
Cost 58S
At 1 January 2021 R-_ZE-_—%F—H—H 159,034
Exchange adjustments (ER IS 2,632
Additions arising from new leases M EHESIRZAE 1,968
Release on lease termination R ERRRRR 311
Reclassified as assets of a disposal group held for sale EH DM ARBELHE Y HEERE 2 BE (20,930)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZE-_—F+-A=+—HEK
- —F—HF—H 142,393
Exchange adjustments P& 3 5% (5,145)
Release on lease termination R ERERRR (781)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-Z-#+Z-A=+—H 136,467
Depreciation wE
At 1 January 2021 RZE=-Z—F—A—H 29,394
Exchange adjustments b TR 439
Charge for the year FAMEK
—land use rights — T EAE 3,539
— office premises g VNS ES 602
Release on lease termination R ERRRRR (242)
Reclassified as assets of a disposal group held for sale EH D AIBEHE  HEERE 2B E (2,392)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 RZZBE-_—4F+-_A=+—HK
- —F—HF—H 31,340
Exchange adjustments PE 1 5 2 (1,004)
Charge for the year FRk
—land use rights — T A 3,027
- office premises e YNESY/ES 726
Release on lease termination KT ER R R (781)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZB-_—_F+=-A=+—H 33,308
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2022 R-B-ZH+=-A=+—H 103,159
At 31 December 2021 R-ZEBE-—F+-A=+—8 111,053
As at 31 December 2022, certain land use rights with an aggregate RZE-__F+-_A=+—HB HKEE

carrying amount of approximately HK$26,091,000 (2021 :
HK$28,830,000) had been pledged to secure banking facilities

granted to the Group (note 38).

A £ #926,091,0008 L (& = —F ¢
28,830,000/8 L) 2/ T L FA#ED T

ER ERASERERBRITREZE

R (MF5E38) °
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The analysis of the carrying amount of right-of-use assets by class of
underlying asset is as follows:

31 December 2022

B FE R AR B

T —F+=-A=1+—H

15. EHIEEE (B

REMEEEN T BENEREEERE
BofmT :

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Ownership interests in land use rights held #F{EE B T iFERBENME
for own use, carried at depreciated cost in  #E#Ezs - £ B IR ITE K AR
PRC with remaining lease terms between AR - 82 FHEN T
30 and 50 years 30&50%F 34,215 37,277
Ownership interests in land use rights BAEHREETFERN L
held for leasing to customers, carried at ~ {F FARER Fr A ERE S -
depreciated cost in PRC with remaining  7£ 1 B3R #r & pk A ABE -
lease terms between 30 and 50 years R T BN T 302 504F 60,064 63,227
Ownership interests in land use rights held /@ A+ E REL
for own use, carried at depreciated cost ~ PRE#EHERS - FEP BIR
in PRC with terms to be renewed by WERAAR  HHRA
government (note) RN ER (4722) 8,235 9,099
Office premises leased for own use, carried B RBAER ANIBFT - £ HIR
at depreciated cost in PRC, with remaining #T&KA AR » $2 T
lease terms of more than 1 year and less #8814 & D A5
than 5 years 645 1,450
103,159 111,053

Note:

As at 31 December 2022, certain land use rights with carrying amount
of approximately HK$8,235,000 (2021: HK$9,099,000) together
with property, plant and equipment with total carrying amount of
approximately HK$97,168,000 (2021: HK$117,752,000) located at
Xiangshui, Yancheng City, Jiangsu Province, PRC is subject to the
requirement of new incineration facility to be further constructed
thereon in order to comply with the stipulated minimum floor-area
ratio by 23 November 2020. The Group has submitted a development
plan for constructing new incineration facility on the land, which is still
pending governmental approval up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements. In the opinion of the Directors of the
Company, once the government approval for the construction of new
additional incineration facility is obtained, the construction work will be
commenced accordingly and there would be no material impact to the
Group's operation and financial position.

At the end of both reporting periods, there were no impairment
recognised on the Group's land use rights.

Mat

R —F+_A=+—"HB URHFH
T ERE B T 2K &R {E 49 48,235,000
BL(ZZT=—4% 19,099,000 7t) 2 & T
-t {5 PR #E 3 R BR M A8 (B 4 597,168,000
B (ZE = —% 1 117,752,000 7T) 2 ¥
¥ BELEE BETEHEE—TE
RFMERBZERL UER T _TF
+—A-+=ZHAFABEZRNEHRE
Ko AEEBRIPZ L HELTNER
MHERE BEEZSHRAVERR
HEEBRNESFRFE ARATEERA

— BB EATIOEZE A EINT R
BEATRBEREEN B8 LAEE
VR BRI IERNERNTE -

RMEREHR TERAEE 2 T
FRHETERIRE °

“ECCEER FFRREBBRAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

16. GOODWILL 16. B &
2022 2021
—E=-= —ET-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January and R—A—HKEK+Z-A=+—82
31 December BRI B 33,000 33,000

Goodwill is attributable to the business segment of environmental
integrated waste treatment services that arose from the acquisition
of 82% equity interest of NUET(JS) in 2007. NUET(JS), through its
subsidiaries, is engaged in the provision of environmental waste
integrated treatment and disposal services in the Jiangsu Province,
PRC.

Impairment test assessment

The goodwill, together with related property, plant and equipment
with carrying amount of HK$63,459,000 (2021: HK$72,705,000),
and land use rights with carrying amount of HK$8,123,000 (2021:
HK$8,447,000), are allocated to NUET(JS) Group as an identified
CGU under the operating segment of environmental waste
treatment services.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

RRGABEYMEERBES S EMLRD
BTN ZET L FUWENUETUS) 82% %
MERFEE o NUET(US)B B EWE QAR
BIGENRERHREREYVEEREE
R 7 ©

BB R AT

P 22 38 [7) BR T {E 463,459,000/ 7T (= &
— —4% 72,705,000 7T) Z HERE ¥ % -
B B M 5% 1 LA I BR T 8 /38,123,000% 7T
— T~ — 4 : 8,447,000/ ) 2 L fE
BT DEENUETUS)EE - 1 ARIREE
MEERBEEDPET 2 —HE #5
REEEBNM -



16. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

16. E & (4§)

Impairment test assessment (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the assessment on the recoverable
amount of this CGU was determined by Colliers International
(Hong Kong) Limited (“Colliers International”) (2021: Colliers
International), an independent firm of professional valuers, on the
basis of value-in-use calculations which use cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period, that are discounted to their present values at
a pre-tax discount rate of 16.61% (2021: 19.50%). Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an annual growth
rate of approximately 2.2% (2021: 2.0%) which does not exceed
the long-term growth rate for the waste treatment industries. Other
key assumptions for the value-in-use calculation relates to the
estimated cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted sales and
gross margin. Such estimation is based the CGU's past performance,
future business plan and management’s expectations for the future
market development.

BB RS FE 1 (88)
RZEZ—F+=ZA=+—8 " HR
CELE uZTM@éﬁﬁ T2 E B
BYEZEGHEMITR DEEYERERE (B
B)ERAR (R OBEBR))(ZE=—%F:
BOBE) ERFERERFESETE - £/
BEFAEDNEARBEEEEERER
FHEzVHREEFEZ RS RERA -
WIAF I HTIR B16.61% (T = —F ¢
19.50% ) MBEHRE - AFHEZR
ERBERALD22% (ZFE=_—F :2.0%)
LERREIHE HUEBAEVEES
TEZEHPEER -BHEFRERAS
MEBEBACTREETECEMEER
HEREMRMEE ZHEERENE - ZMET
DIREREEABMNBAERE  REKE
BEtEl R EEEYRKMISHE 2B
MmiEH ©

The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as FTHREBEEMMERAZTFEBROT
follows:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
Gross profit margin EF = 56.96 % 58.34%
Compound annual growth rate in BhEHRZESFIEREK
the initial five-year period 4.5% 2.1%
Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows FLAMETEZHEZRETE
beyond the budget period 2R =R 2.2% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate applied to the FEARRERETERZ
cash flow projections TATITIR X 16.61% 19.50%

Since the recoverable amount of the NUET(JS) Group as an identified
CGU, to which goodwill and related property, plant and equipment
are allocated, exceeded the aggregate carrying amount of these
assets of the NUET(JS) Group as an identified CGU, no impairment
loss on goodwill and the relevant assets were considered necessary
at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Sensitivity analysis of unforeseen downsize effect to the recoverable
amount of the CGU had been performed on each of the following
scenarios with the assumptions of (i) gross profit margin down by
5%, (ii) compound annual growth rate in the initial five-year period
down by 2%, or (iii) pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections up by 2%, respectively. There was no impairment loss
on goodwill and the relevant assets of the CGU was considered
necessary at 31 December 2022 in each of these scenarios.

HREESEEERERDE BER
BB ZNUETOS) @ (B Rl A —ER £ E
AR Z AT IE € B8 B BNUET(S) 5 &
(R A—EREELAEMN) WRETEE
ZJHEEEE Q- RZTE__Fk=
T -+ _A=+—H8 BEXIEH
BEEGRAEAELRERSE-

HRSEAS MTW@i%MTTﬁﬁ
EREEERTISBRETHRES
T & H R ROE = MQS%'OWEE
FHENFESERERD2%  K(i)E
A B3R € 7 2 T8OR /9 bR B AT 37 38 238 0
2% BHEeEABUCEHERBBEEER
R ZF+Z A=+ BB AREZR
EL R EEE -

“ECCEER FFRREBBRAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR B

31 December 2022

17.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

17.

(@) The following list contains the particulars of the principal

subsidiaries, which affected the results, assets, or liabilities of
the Group as at 31 December 2022:

R B AR ZRE
@ BEPEARER-F-—Fi=
5 EERABZE
ARZHENT

il

Proportion of ownership interest

RRERGLA
Group's
Place of incorporation  Form of legal Particulars of issued and ~ effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operations entity paid-up capital interest the Company  a subsidiary Principal activity
BER AEEY B-%
WEARAR AMRIREELE  ERERoKX  AREREE ERER mE0FRE WELERE TEEE
Ever Champ (China) Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
company

186 () AR A7 Bk BRRA 10,000 £ &% REBR

Fair International Investment Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Enterprise Limited company

ERARRALFERAT B BRAT 10,000 &% RAZK

Fair Industry Waste Recyclables Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited company

ERTEENBENRERAA Bk ERRA 10,000 % &% RERR

Fair Time International Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 99,327,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
("Fair Time") company

ERERARAA (£R]) B ARAT 99,327,000 8% &2k

Jiangsu New Universe Environmental ~ PRC Wholly owned Registered RMB50,000,000 100% - 100%  Environmental technical
Engineering Management Limited* domestic and paid-up consultancy and
("Jiangsu New Universe enterprise RMB12,000,000 engineering services
Engineering”)

THEFHRRIRERARLA HE hEBELY AR %50,000,0007 & RREGZAR
(T&FHIE) £2 AR 12,000,000 TERS

Jiangsu Xin Yu Environmental PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 100% - 100%  Environmental technical
Technologies Limited* owned enterprise  HK$80,000,000 consultancy

TERFRRIRERAA hE NEBERX R4l 280,000,000% 7 RREMHN

New Sinotech Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 5,000,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
("NSIL") Hong Kong company of US§1 each

FEMRARRAA* (NIL)) ABRAEE/EE  ARAA 5,000,008 B RAEI X REZK

LERR

New Universe (China) Investment British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 1,800,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong company of US$1 each

HF(hE) REBRAT ABRABR/EE  BRAA 1,800,000R BREEIXT RERR

LEBR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

B FE R AR B

T —F+=-A=1+—H

17.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. R B AR 2/ & (i)
(continued)
(@) The following list contains the particulars of the principal (a) HEEXEARAERANR_Z_—_F+=
subsidiaries, which affected the results, assets, or liabilities of ﬁ =t+—H¥% BES(AEZ=E
the Group as at 31 December 2022: (continued) ERBARZERBOT : (B)
Proportion of ownership interest
RRERELA
Group's
Place of incorporation  Form of legal Particulars of issued and ~ effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operations entity paid-up capital interest the Company  asubsidiary Principal activity
BEfR AEEY B-%
WEARAR AMRIREELE  ERERoKX  AREAEE EREE mALARE WELAKE IEXR
New Universe (China) Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 1,000,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
company
W5 (PE)BRAT B ERAF 1,000,000 & &% RELRK
New Universe Environmental British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 4,000,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Protection Investment Limited Hong Kong company of US$1 each
HFRRREAERAR" LRRNER/FR BROA 4,000,000k BREEIET RELRK
LERR
New Universe Environmental Hong Kong Limited liability 21,640,000 ordinary shares 82% - 82% Investment holding
Technologies (Jiang Su) Limited company
("NUET(S)")
HPRANK(IH) ARAF (0 BRAE 21,640,000 BB REER
(TNUETS)))
New Universe International Ecology British Virgin Islands/  Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong company US$1 each
HFERERARAT ERRRER/FE  EROW 10000% BRERIZ T2 RELRK
New Universe International Group Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited company
FTEREX (B ERART (0 BRAT 10,000 &% REZK
New Universe International Holdings ~ British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% 100% - Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong company US$1 each
HFERERERAT ABRLEE/BE  BROW 10,000 5 REEIZTL RELRK
EBR
New Universe Recyclable Investments  British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong company US$1 each
FRERBERARRAT AERAEE/EE  ARLA 10,000k SR A E XL REZK
New Universe Recyclables Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 10,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Investment holding
company
FFERBLHAERAT Bk BRAA 10,0008 £ % RELR
“ECoFFER HFREESEARLAF S 199



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR B

31 December 2022

17.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
(a)

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

17.

The following list contains the particulars of the principal

subsidiaries, which affected the results, assets, or liabilities of
the Group as at 31 December 2022: (continued)

R B AR 2R E (B

(a) BEFEAEBR-_T_—_F+=
CEESBEZE
ZMBRARZFRBNOT : (8)

A=+—B%4%&

Proportion of ownership interest

RRERGLA
Group's
Place of incorporation  Form of legal Particulars of issued and ~ effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operations entity paid-up capital interest the Company  asubsidiary Principal activity
BEAR AEEY B-%
WEARAR AMRIREELE  ERERoKX  AREREE EREE mALARE WELAKE IEXR
Smartech International Group Limited ~ British Virgin Islands/ ~ Limited liability 1,000,000 ordinary shares 100% 100% - Investment holding
Hong Kong company of US$1 each
EREREEERAT ABRLES/AE  EROW 1,000000R BREEIXT RELRK
LEER
Smartech Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 70,380,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100%  Asset holding
company
ENERERAT B BRAT 70,380,000% & @k HERE
Smartech Plastic Moulding Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 100 ordinary shares 100% - 100% Dormant
company
ENEBARERAT B ERRAE 1005 B EEex
Smartech Services Limited Hong Kong Limited liability 2 ordinary shares 100% - 100% Provision of
("Smartech Services") company management services
ERNERERAF(ENER) Bk BRAA WEER REERRS
Sugian New Universe Environmental ~ PRC Wholly foreign Registered HK$97,010,000 100% - 100%  Environmental
Solid Waste Disposal Limited* owned enterprise  and paid-up hazardous waste
HK$97,000,000 treatment and
disposal services
BEFMAEENREARAA h NEBELR 97,010,008 TR RRERENRERR
97,000,000% 70 ERH%
Xiangshui New Universe PRC Sino foreign joint  Registered and paid-up 65% - 65%  Environmental
Environmental Technology Limited equity enterprise ~ HK$50,750,000 hazardous waste
("Xiangshui New Universe”) treatment and
disposal services
EAFTRRNBERAR hE niaELE 3EM R f8250,750,000 7 RRERENRERR
([2x#]) ER%
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17.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

B FE R AR B

T —F+=-A=1+—H

17 RMB AR ZRE ()

(@) The following list contains the particulars of the principal
subsidiaries, which affected the results, assets, or liabilities of
the Group as at 31 December 2022: (continued)

() BEFEAKER_ZT_—_F+—
A=+—B%#& BEEXBEZE
EMBARZHBAOT : (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

BRERELA
Group's
Place of incorporation  Form of legal Particulars of issued and ~ effective Held by Held by
Name of subsidiary and operations entity paid-up capital interest the Company  asubsidiary Principal activity
BER AEEY B-%

WEAREH AMRIREELE  RRERoKX  AREREE BRER mE0FRE WELEEE IEERE

Yancheng New Universe Solid PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 82% - 100%  Business operation
Waste Disposal Company Limited owned enterprise  US$700,000 ceased
("Yancheng New Universe")

ENFHEEENRERRAT hE NEBELX R4 700,000% T BRILEEER
([E55%])

Yancheng NUHF Environmental PRC Sino foreign joint ~ Registered and paid-up 65% - 65%  Environmental
Technology Limited* equity enterprise ~ HK$83,000,000 hazardous waste
("Yancheng NUHF") treatment and

disposal services
BTE %ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁ il THRERE Rl 283,000,000% RRERENRERR
(&5 TESD ERE

Zhenjiang New Universe Solid PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 82% - 100%  Environmental
Waste Disposal Company Limited owned enterprise  US§10,850,000 hazardous waste
("Zhenjiang New Universe") treatment and

disposal services

BINTERENRERRAA HE IEBALR it R 210,850,000% 0 RRERENRERE
(T3] ERHB

Zhenjiang Sinotech Eco- Electroplating  PRC Wholly foreign Registered and paid-up 100% - 100%  Environmental
Development Limited (“Zhenjiang owned enterprise  US§25,000,000 industrial sewage
Sinotech”) and sludge treatment

and facility provision
Services in an
eco-plating zone

BIZNERSERRERARAS HE HEEELE a1l R 225,000,000% T BRIZAKRSER
(TErEs]) ERRERESRRE

G

“ECCEER FFRREBBRAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

17.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
(continued)

(b)  The following tables summarised the financial information
relating to each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material
non-controlling interests (“NCI”) at the end of the reporting
period. The summarised financial information presented below
represents the amounts before any inter-company elimination.

For the year ended 31 December 2022

17 RMBLrRAZHRE ()

(b)

TREJINRE SRS REFRAAN
SETNEAERIFERER ([3F
ZhER ) 2B ARS8 2%
ERBE - TIMBERBELR
HEEEREEARRBEERI 22
B e

BE-Z--—f+=-H=+—HLt
FE

NUET(JS) Xiangshui Yancheng
Group NU NUHF
NUET(JS)5 B gKEFF HEFFEZ
(note)
(B 3E)
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TER
NCI percentage FEERER A DL 18% 35% 35%
Non-current assets SEMEEE 99,505 120,942 237,271
Current assets MENE E 149,766 17,128 54,630
Current liabilities mEAaE (108,702) (75,938) (97,547)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (3.827) - (1,582)
Net assets BEFE 136,742 62,132 192,772
Carrying amount of NCI FERiERZREEE 24,614 21,746 67,470
Revenue U &= 114,530 34,658 143,668
Profit/(loss) for the year FERMN(EE) 30,575 (42,315) 18,850
Total comprehensive 2EKE (BB BE
income/(loss) 18,482 (48,884) 4,218
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI S Bl & IFHE RS 2
wmA (&8 5,503 (14,810) 6,598
Dividend paid to NCI S FIEERER 2
g5 3,505 - _
Cash flows generated mEESEEL(FTA)
from/(used in) operating ZHRERE
activities 39,588 (2,189) 13,115
Cash flows used in investing & & EEFTH 2
activities ReRE (3,536) (568) (3.884)
Cash flows used in financing RME EENFTHE 2
activities ReEne (30,963) (1,470) (3,032)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

- F+-A=+—H
17. KRB AR ZIE ()

31 December 2022

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

(b)  The following tables summarised the financial information
relating to each of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material
NCI at the end of the reporting period. The summarised
financial information presented below represents the amounts

before any inter-company elimination. (continued)

TREINRE SRS REFRAAN
SETIHERERIFZERER
BABEB UK ENHRE - T7I
BHERBEDRNBENEER
NREIRAYRAIZ 2 - (&)

(b)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bz Z-_—4F+-_A=+—81t

FE

NUET(S) Xiangshui Yancheng
Group NU NUHF
NUET(S) & B BKHFF HEHRHTFEZ
(note)
(B&E)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAET
NCI percentage JEERERE O 18% 35% 35%
Non-current assets ERBEE 111,641 136,966 269,807
Current assets mEBAE 152,235 45,372 49,484
Current liabilities mEBE (119,487) (71,321) (128,543)
Non-current liabilities EnREaE (4,490) - (2,196)
Net assets BEFE 139,899 111,017 188,552
Carrying amount of NC| EERER ZEEE 25,182 38,856 65,993
Revenue I 5 132,744 81,363 144,322
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEHN(EE) 46,181 (16,796) 28,757
Total comprehensive 2mEWaE(EE) B
income/(loss) 52,123 (12,876) 34,660
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI D ERE JEIZ=AR#EZE 2
m A (E51E) 8,313 (5,879) 10,065
Dividend paid to NCI ST IR ER
B& B 3,015 - 4,200
Cash flows generated from K& FHELZ
operating activities ReRE 59,906 2,993 28,790
Cash flows generated wEEBEE (FA)
from/(used in) investing ZHEERE
activities 1,547 (2,699) (10,234)
Cash flows used in financing BLE EENFTH 2
activities BEmE (53,089) (980) (20,289)

Note: Htat -

NUET(S)E B FHNUETUS) ({E B3E A
A REMBAREINT ERF
RE A A B TR E RS R E R D
BRARMEMK -

NUET(JS) Group comprises NUET(JS) as the holding company and
its subsidiaries, Zhenjiang New Universe, Yancheng New Universe,
and the associate, Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste Disposal
Limited*.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT ER R M EE
31 December 2022 —E-—F+=-A=+—H
17.INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)
(c) Disposal of a subsidiary

17 RMBLrRAZHRE ()

(0 HE—RHBEARA

On 14 April 2022, the Group completed the disposal of its R-ZZE-__FWA+MABE A&EE
entire interest in a subsidiary, Taixing Xin Xin Resources THREEER—FRE2EWB AT
Recycling Company Limited (“Taixing Xin Xin”) whose B ERBENMAERA A ([ZF
assets and liabilities were classified as a disposal group BEFFH D OMEHRE REAEAR
held for sale as at 31 December 2021 as disclosed in note #42,100,000 T (A& 151,760,000
26 for a consideration of RMB42,100,000 (equivalent to BIL) WM 26T R KA

HK$51,760,000).

MEENABBR _T-_—F+=
A=Zt—B2BRMBEFEZLE

HE -
HK$'000
TEx
Net assets disposed of: FIHEEEFE:
Assets of the disposal group held for sale FIRsEsHEHeaEE
(note 26) (Htit26) 23,830
Other receivables Hfh fE YR IE 348
Cash and cash equivalents B hERIREER 1,229
Other payables o FE A FRIE (3)
Deferred tax liabilities FEBIEEE (711)
24,693
Fair value of consideration REZATE 51,760
Net assets disposed of FrEECEESFRE (24,693)
Costs directly attributable to the disposal AEERENHENKA (2,355)
Release of translation reserve % B T R4 2,591
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—KWB LR 2K 27,303
Net cash flow arising on the disposal HEEEZRSREFEHE
Cash consideration received WE 2B eRE 51,760
Costs paid directly attributable to the disposal BEEBEERLENENER (2,355)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FtEzReERERREER (1,229)
Net cash inflow REMAFE 48,176
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

—E-=F+=-A=+—H
18. R ENBIZHESRE

31 December 2022

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
Share of net assets PHEERE
At 1 January ®—A—H 175,835 180,175
Share of results DIERE (7,250) (6,389)
Share of other comprehensive income DIRE MW S (12,597) 5,938
Dividends received B 2 (2,538) (3,889)
At 31 December R+t=ZA=+—H 153,450 175,835
The following list contains the particulars of the associates at 31 LTREHMNEBE AT R —_E-_—_F+=A
December 2022: =t+—B2Z#HE:
Proportion of ownership interest
BEERGLH
Place of Particulars of Group's Held Held
incorporation  Form of business issued and paid-up effective by the bya Principal
Name of associate and business  structure capital interest Company  subsidiary  activity
B-%
ERELK E3 20 BRTR rE@E2 MR WELH
BenAER EEWE 2R BREAHE BERER =L BE TEER
Zhenjiang Xin Qu Solid Waste PRC Joint equity Registered 24.60% - 30%  Environmental
Disposal Limited* enterprise and paid-up hazardous
("Zhenjiang Xin Qu") RMB36,000,000 waste landfill
disposal
services
BINEEERERR HE RELE HERARARE BREREY
BRRAA(EIHNE]) 36,000,0007C BERE R
Nanjing Chemical Industry Park PRC Sino foreign joint  Registered and 30% - 30%  Environmental
Tianyu Solid Waste Disposal Co., equity enterprise  paid-up hazardous
Ltd. ("NCIP") HK$93,600,000 waste
treatment
and disposal
services
HRLEIEXERT e PG ELE HRER RREREN
ERENEEARAF 93,600,000/ 1 BER
(TARXTF]) REMRH
“ECCEER FFRREBBRAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

The above associates are accounted for using the equity method in
the consolidated financial statements.

(a)

(@)

The shares of Zhenjiang Xin Qu are currently traded on the
platform of New Over-The-Counter Market (“New OTC
Market”) in Mainland China, which is considered as a closed
market by the Directors of Company and the quoted price of
Zhenjiang Xin Qu on the New OTC Market does not reflect the
open market price of its shares. In March 2023, Zhenjiang Xin
Qu has started up the procedure to apply for delisting from the
New OTC Market.

NCIP is an unlisted entity without quoted market price.

Impairment testing of the Group’s interest in NCIP

During the year ended 31 December 2022, NCIP still incurred
temporary downtime for repairs and maintenance for both
phase | and phase Il incineration facilities.

As disclosed in (d) below, NCIP incurred a loss of
approximately HK$31,528,000 (2021: HK$41,844,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

At 31 December 2022, the recoverable amount of the
Group's interests in NCIP as a cash-generating-unit has
been determined based on value-in-use calculations. The
Group has appointed Colliers International (2021: Colliers
International), an independent firm of professional qualified
valuers, to perform such valuation. The calculations use cash
flow projections of NCIP covering a five-year period according
to the forecast of its management. The pre-tax discount
rate applied to the cash flow projections is 15.74% (2021:
18.03%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows
of this cash-generating unit is 2.2% (2021: 2.0%) per annum.
Other key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations relate
to estimation of the performance which is based on the
incineration facilities with a licensed capacity of 38,000 (2021:
38,000) metric tonnes for the hazardous waste treatment of
NCIP, and management’s expectation for market demand in
Nanjing, the capital city of Jiangsu Province, PRC.

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

BE = (F)

L E R RIREE M BRERNIERA
REEENER o
(a) EITHTIE AIRR 10 3R e 70 AR B A 3 3

(b)

(o]

=RAH=R)FEEE - AR A
EERH_RAHMATHEARET
(& 70 B = AR &Y B I T RE R R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
(continued)

(@

Impairment testing of the Group’s interest in NCIP (continued)

The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based their cash flow projections to
undertake an impairment test of the recoverable amount of
the Group’s interest in NCIP:

Projected cash flow — The projected cash flow from NCIP is
based on the performance of the incineration facilities with
capacity of 38,000 (2021: 38,000) metric tonnes for the
hazardous waste treatment of NCIP, and the management’s
expectation of the market demand in Nanjing.

Discount rate — The pre-tax discount rate 15.74% (2021:
18.03%) was determined using the Capital Assets Pricing
Model on the cash flows projection before tax and under
specific risks relating to the business of NCIP. In determining
an appropriate discount rate, consideration has been given to
the applicable borrowing interest rates in the year immediately
before the projection period. The decrease in the discount rate
for this year’s assessment is mainly attributable to the fact that
NCIP has obtained the necessary operating permission licence
for its processing facilities for hazardous waste treatment and
there is less company specific risk for the assessment in the
current year.

Growth rate — the growth rate used beyond the five-year
period is determined based on the expected long-term
inflation in the PRC and does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate of the hazardous waste treatment
business in which NCIP operates in Nanjing, the capital city of
Jiangsu Province, PRC.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on the discount
rate and growth rate are consistent with information from
external sources.

Management determined that the recoverable amount of the
Group's interest in NCIP exceed the carrying amount of the
interests in NCIP. Accordingly, no impairment is considered
necessary at the end of the reporting period.

31 December 2022

B FE R AR B

T —F+=-A=1+—H

18 REBEAR R (F)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. 1
(continued)
(d) Summarised the financial information of the Group’s (d)

associates, adjusted for the differences in accounting policies
and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated

financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2022

e NEl 2 E (])

REBRBERNA ZMBERNRE
(REMESTBRARE) REKRE R
BRRAREELR -

BE_®B__f+-A=t+-—-HL
FE

Zhenjiang
Xin Qu NCIP
ELHE BRERXF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FExT
Gross amounts of the associate’'s Bt AT 2R &5
Non-current assets EMENEE 67,639 525,276
Current assets MBEE 70,063 52,965
Current liabilities mEBAE (19,816) (74,781)
Non-current liabilities EMEBEE (24,811) (85,035)
Net assets BEFE 93,075 418,425
Revenue g 31,885 57,078
Profit/(loss) for the year FREHA (E8) 7,362 (31,528)
Other comprehensive income H 2w W
— Exchange difference on —MEMBWMERTES
translation of financial B 5 =58
statements (7,455) (34,533)
Total comprehensive loss FHEEERE (93) (66,061)
Dividend received from the associate & Y& B 4 A 7 2 A% 2 2,538 =
Reconciliation to the Group's HEAEERBE QT2
interest in the associate EEZHER
Gross amount of net assets of BE N EEFEL RS
the associate 93,075 418,425
Group's share of net assets of the  AN&EED(hEt S N a7l 2 BEFE
associate 27,923 125,527
Carrying amount in the consolidated R4R & B B3R 2 BREE
financial statements 27,923 125,527
Aggregate amounts of the AEESHBHELARZBESHE
Group’s share of the associate’s
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHA (E8) 2,209 (9,459)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2wk
— Exchange difference on —MREMBWMARTESE
translation of financial =5
statements (2,237) (10,360)
Total comprehensive loss EMEEIRAERE (28) (19,819)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

LY P Q = A Y -l-lli * %
18.INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. R E NB 2% (48
(continued)
(d) (continued) d)y (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 Bz—_T-_—4F+-_A=+—81t
FE
Zhenjiang
Xin Qu NCIP
BT R ARAKTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Gross amounts of the associate’'s MEAFZLLE
Non-current assets ERBEE 43,236 586,819
Current assets mEEE 83,070 66,472
Current liabilities MBBE (7,546) (81,635)
Non-current liabilities ERFAaR (17,131) (87,170)
Net assets BEEFE 101,629 484,486
Revenue Wz 43,645 32,210
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEHN(EE) 20,547 (41,844)
Other comprehensive income H i 2mkas
— Exchange difference on —MEMBmERMESE
translation of financial bE H =%3
statements 3,208 16,582
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2 (FE) 8% 23,755 (25,262)
Dividend received from the associate 2 UgHk & A 7] 2 A% & 3,889 -
Reconciliation to the Group's HEAKRERBEE QAT Z
interest in the associate fEEZHE
Gross amount of net assets of BEAREEFEZIALSH
the associate 101,629 484,486
Group's share of net assets of the REEDEBMERFZEEF
associate B 30,489 145,346
Carrying amount in the consolidated R4 A KRR ZBEMmME
financial statements 30,489 145,346
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s FEBIHHE AT 2B SHE
share of the associate’s
Profit/(loss) for the year FEHEF (BE) 6,164 (12,553)
Other comprehensive income H i 2m| ks
— Exchange difference on —BREVBRmRMES
translation of financial N =%
statements 963 4,975
Total comprehensive income/(loss) PEME(BER)BE 7,127 (7,578)

TP EER NMFRARSEEERAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR B

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

19.INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 19 R—REELEFZHER
2022 2021
=%== —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E T FAET
Share of net assets PILEEFE
At 1 January R—A-—8 51,990 47,400
Capital contribution H&E 57 7,696
Share of results ’7915%% (13,044) (4,440)
Share of other comprehensive income DR E M2 WS (3,316) 1,759
Unrealised profit on inter-company Z’HAFFEEETTEE% Gl
transaction eliminated on consolidation R 50 K & I % A
(note) (Biz¢) (474) (425)
At 31 December R+=A=+—-H 35,213 51,990

Note:

HsE -

The elimination of unrealised profit on consolidation of approximately
HK$474,000 (2021: HK$425,000) represented 65% share of unrealised

?A BR AR BT SH 9 R B 3R & R 49474,0007%
T(ZE = —4F: MS%MﬁHM$%E

profit on the inter-company transaction regarding the revenue arising F?/\ PERHRIBERERERRTERD
from provision of environmental equipment construction and installation FIEENRANRTBISRER RN
services rendered by the Group to the joint venture as disclosed in note 65% (40T ST 7E40(b) T 88 ) ©

40(b) below.

The following list contains the particulars of the joint venture at 31 UTREHNEErER_T_—_F+_A8
December 2022: =F+—BZHEE:

Proportion of ownership interest

BEERELP
Place of Particulars of Group's’
incorporation  Form of legal issued and effective Heldbythe  Heldbya
Name of joint venture and operations  entity paid-up capital interest ~ Company  subsidiary  Principal activity
-5
EMA LR BRTR A5z  HARE  WERA
RELRER EERY EEERZFR  BRERRE ERER kF BE IEXH
Liuzhou Xinyu Rongkai Solid Waste ~ PRC Sino foreign joint  Registered 65% - 65%  Environmental
Disposal Company Limited* equity enterprise  and paid-up hazardous
("Xinyu Rongkai") RMB80,080,000 waste treatment
and disposal
services (2021:
Construction in
progress)
oM %ﬁ?”ﬂllﬁﬂ?%?% M PHRELE  EMREARARE RrBRENEE
ARAR(HTERI) 80,080,0007 RRERH (=
T--F: 5
E%)
The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method in the ZARMENESUBRERNY A E
consolidated financial statements. Xinyu Rongkai is an unlisted HEABE - HFEY A —KEMERE
entity without quoted market price. T ETERE-
Xinyu Rongkai is operated under joint venture agreement, pursuant HFELYNIBEALHS AL Bt
to which the Group would share control over Xinyu Rongkai with REBemEL FHRBIIEGSFTFFRY
the joint venture partner, and accordingly, the investment in Xinyu o REFLRY TR EIRBEL D%
Rongkai is accounted for as joint venture. ABEEHE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19.INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE
(continued)

Summarised the financial information of Xinyu Rongkai relating
and reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements.

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021

B R ER R MIEE
31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H
19. X — Bt EZERS
(#8)

MTRIZHBERNBER RGP
BRAREESRK

BHE_Z-_—_F#FK-_ZT-_—%+_-H4

=t+—HIEFE
2022 2021
—E=—= —E-—F
HK$"000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Gross amounts of the joint venture's  SEECHESHE
Non-current assets FRBEE 181,330 180,744
Current assets B EE 3,848 36,677
Current liabilities mEAE (64,473) (30,955)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE (62,317) (102,690)
Equity & 58,388 83,776
Included in the above assets: UEtEEBE:
Cash and cash equivalents ReLERRELIER 2,359 27,125
Revenue Wz 6,035 -
Loss for the year FEEE (20,067) (6,831)
Other comprehensive income Hih 2|k
— Exchange difference on translation of —MEMBWMERTESE
financial statements PEH Z%E (5,102) 2,707
Total comprehensive loss THEERARE (25,169) (4,124)
Dividend received from the joint venture BEREEDPEIRE = -
Included in the above loss: LLEBREE
Depreciation and amortisation e N i (9.464) (609)
Interest income F B U A 217 325
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in EEXREBERAEDE S
the joint venture iz B iR
Gross amount of net assets of the SRCEEEFECASHE
joint venture 58,388 83,776
Group's share of net assets of the AEBDEEERECEESTE
joint venture 37,952 54,454
Unrealised profit on inter-company KR e HEBERERRIRR 50
transaction eliminated on consolidation R R A (2,739) (2,464)
Carrying amount of net assets of the joint A& MEFEERHEE
venture 35,213 51,990
Carrying amount in the consolidated REEYVBHRERZEmME
financial statements 35,213 51,990
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share AEE P EEE X B S H
of the joint venture’'s
Loss for the year FEFEE (13,044) (4,440)
Other comprehensive income HEt 2w
- Exchange difference on translation of BMEPIERERTE
financial statements HIEH =% (3,316) 1,759
Total comprehensive loss 2HEBIEREE (16,360) (2,681)

_— ——
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % ek R MY et

31 December 2022 —T-——HF+-A=+—H

20. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

20 ZBH b= EW mIE R
FEANRZBRFHRE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Equity instrument designated as measured  5F AF B H M 2 E UK IR
at fair value through other comprehensive = A FEFE7RATA
income (non-recycling) (P A &) 70,300 80,800
2022 2021
—EB-_F —TE-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
At 1 January n—AB—H 80,800 118,100
Net fair value change transfer to BREMEAREREES
equity through statement of other ARz A TEZEFE
comprehensive income (10,500) (37,300)
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 70,300 80,800

The Group has designated the unlisted equity investments as
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income on
non-recycling basis (“FVOCI (non-recycling)”), as the investments
are held for strategic purposes. Dividends with amount of
HK$4,249,000 (2021: HK$4,637,000) were received on the unlisted
equity investments for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20.EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has interests in the following

unlisted equity investments:

B FE R AR B

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

20 ZBH b= EUW IR 2
FEANRZBRAERE (F)

R-—EBE-——#F#+—-_B=+—8 KA&E
RRFNFELETRARERBERS

Proportion of ownership interest

RERERLY
Place of Particulars of Group's
incorporation  Form of legal issued and effective  Held by the Heldbya  Principal
Name of investee and operations entity paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary  activity
H-%
TR LR BETR rEEZ HALH WEAR
BRENRER EEHY ERERZEA  HREAHE ERER &R BE TEZEE
Suzhou New Huamei Plastics Co., ~ PRC Sino foreign joint  Registered 18.62% - 18.62%  Plastic materials
Limited (“Suzhou New Huamei") equity enterprise ~ US$16,000,000 dyeing
(note (a)) and paid-up
US$5,000,000
BNAEREHERAA HE MG ERE #1f16,000,000 EHAE
(TaMaEx)) (M@) EE-
5,000,000% T
Danyang New Huamei Plastics Co.,  PRC Sino foreign joint ~ Registered 24.50% - 24.50%  Plastic materials
Limited (“Danyang New Huamei") equity enterprise  and paid-up dyeing
(notes (a), (b)) US$1,600,000
REHEXERERRA e mEERE iR BHAE
(IFE#HzEX]) 1,600,000 7T
(MizHG@) - (b))
Qingdao Zhongxin Huamei Plastics ~ PRC Sino foreign joint  Registered 28.67% - 28.67%  Plastic materials
Co., Limited ("Qingdao Huamei") equity enterprise  and paid-up dyeing
(notes (a), (b)) US$1,650,000
EERHEREHERAA e NG ERE HMRER EHAE
(I58%%)) 1,650,000 7T

(Ftek(a) -~ (b))

“ECCEER FFRREBBRAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

20. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

Notes:

(@)  The unlisted equity investments carried at fair value represent
investments in Suzhou New Huamei, Danyang New Huamei
and Qingdao Huamei, which are principally engaged in plastic
materials dyeing manufacturing business in Mainland China.
As at 31 December 2022, the fair value of these unlisted equity
investments was determined by reference to the valuation
carried out by Colliers International (2021: Colliers International),
an independent firm of professional valuers, using a market
approach model based on the EBIT multiple of enterprise value to
earnings before interest and tax (“EV/EBIT") of comparable listed
companies in the same industry, after having taken into account of
the discount for lack of marketability of 15.50% (2021: 16.60%)
for these unlisted investments. Details of fair value hierarchy for
these investments are disclosed in note 42 below.

EBIT

EBIT

2022 2021

20 ZBHMbEs M ZRA
TENRZEEAKZSE (8)

Bat

(@) FEEMBRARE RRAFEAR)T
EREBENFEE BBFEERSE
EE(ZERATNTERTEANMKSE
BRACRHEER) 2HRE - R =T
—-E+-A=+-—H KEEZ
S LHRERZTE R T E
15.50% (Z T = —4 : 16.60% ) 1% -
REFLTRABEZAFEDLZ
EMBUBRETEMS NEER (=
T—F S NEE)RATEEER
ZIEEBE  ZEXTABRRITER
BB EM AR EEELBERA
A ZEBITRE £ (TEV/EBIT) AR
H— B BT NM A2 E -

Fair value relative to

Dividend yield Fair value the Group's total assets
RHrEELEE
ke% MY ZATE
(note (i)) (note (i)
(M) (Mrzx(i)
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

“B--f _E-%% CZB-CE _E--% CZE-CE -E--f CZB--E -"Z--%

HK$'000  HK$'000

HK$'000  HK$'000

THL T THL Thr
Suzhou New Huamei eSS 5232 13,259 9.4% 48% 17,500 33,300 1.2% 19%
Danyang New Huamei HESS 3,675 4,7% 3.6% 7.4% 7,600 8,100 0.5% 0.5%
Qingdao Huamei EB¥x 11,276 15,510 4.4% 53% 45,200 39,400 3.0% 2.2%

(i) Dividend yield represents the net dividend received (net
of PRC dividend withholding tax paid) from the respective
unlisted equity investment during the reporting period in
a ratio to the fair value of the respective unlisted equity
investment of the Company at the end of that reporting
period.

(i) The fair value of each of the unlisted equity investments
at the end of the reporting period was determined by
reference to the respective independent and professional
valuation performed by Colliers International (2021: Colliers
International).

(i) In the opinion of the Directors of the Company, there was
no impairment on each of the above unlisted investments
at the end of both reporting periods, and there was no
impairment charge to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for both years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)  Qingdao Huamei and Danyang New Huamei were not regarded
as associates of the Group, because the Group could not exercise
significant influence over their financial and operating policies
under the constitutional frameworks that the Group has less than
20% voting power of the board directors of these investees.
Accordingly, the investments in Qingdao Huamei and Danyang
New Huamei are accounted for as unlisted equity investments.

B FE R AR B

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

20 ZBH b= EUW IR 2
FEANRZBRFHRE (F)

Hiat (&

(b) BEEXRABHEXITRARLE
EBENE RERERNEENIE
ERVENESSHATR20%EKE
BZERERT  AKETREHEZE
RAIZHBREERRTEERZE
HNeEl REBEXRAGHES
ZIRE A ETRAKRE AR -

21.INVENTORIES 21. 17 &
2022 2021
B8 — T - —F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
Raw materials FE 7,037 6,718

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

ERRRAXAFAABRSEZFESEON

and included in profit or loss is presented as follows: E5WT ¢
2022 2021
—E-— —ET-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Carrying amount of inventories consumed  Frl#ERF S 2 BREE 72,487 74,963

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

22. BWEBRA R EIR

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables JE U BR 3R 124,866 167,443
Lease receivables rWHEE 21,424 3,277
Bills receivables e E IR 1,597 20,468
147,887 191,188

Less: allowance for lifetime ECLs B 2HEREEEREBBE
(note 43(d)) (P 5E43(d)) (41,388) (41,166)
106,499 150,022

ZBCCFFER FFRREEARAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR B

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

22 BBEBRARE® ()

(a) Ageing analysis (a) BREG DT
The ageing analysis of trade receivables (which comprised R EHRERER(BERERE
of customer account receivables and lease receivables) and FEREANMERAE) MEREREZ
bills receivables as of the end of the reporting period, based BHEOHENMBE2HEHREEEE
on the invoice date and net of allowance for lifetime ECLs is ZEEZIRESWTENNMT
presented as follows:
2022 2021
—E-= - —4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
0 to 30 days 0B £30H 47,751 62,029
31 days to 60 days 31HZE60H 13,217 33,272
61 days to 90 days 61H%E90H 14,437 10,276
91 days to 180 days 91HZE180H 21,859 9,611
181 days to 360 days 181HZE360H 5,588 23,742
Over 1 year HHiE—F 3,647 11,092
106,499 150,022
The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly $’§@‘I§tﬂ?§7\i‘ﬁ%\%ﬁgﬁ
on credit. The Group allows an average credit period of 60 SGER e REBAFHIRIRIT ¥
days to its customers of the environmental industrial waste, FE% CEKEEREERFERE X
sewage and sludge treatment services and its lessees, and an HEABAZFHEER— ﬁx;%ﬁ%o
extended average credit period of 180 days to the customers H mXEfEREVEETP (R
of regulated medical waste treatment which are hospitals and BERERBEDZA) 2FYH 1*% HA 3T
medical clinics. K£ZE1808 -
(b) Impairment losses of customer account and b) EREFPEXRLEBEE 2R
lease receivables BEE

Most of the debtors are local hospitals and reputable
companies in the PRC. Based on past payment history,
economic conditions and other forward looking information
available, the management determined the lifetime ECLs as at

31 December 2022.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

31 December 2022

B FE R AR B

—E-=F+=-A=+—H

22, FE UL B 30 B B 48 ()

(continued)
(b) Impairment losses of customer account and b) BREFERANLEE ZH
lease receivables (continued) BHEE (&)
Impairment losses in respect of customer account and lease EHEKREFERREEZHERS
receivables are recorded using an allowance account unless BERABEEREZER BRIEAER
the Group is satisfied that recovery amount is remote, in EME AR RIERE - AE LB
which case the impairment loss is written off against trade AT REBEBEEZENERERE
receivables directly. The movement in the allowance for PiiE e 2 ETEBMEEEEREER
lifetime ECLs during the reporting period is as follows: WEHAZESHOT
2022 2021
—EB-—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHEIT
At 1 January W—HA—H 41,166 14,429
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 18,219 30,563
Reversal # [l (14,831) (1,878)
3,388 28,685
Written off b — (2,867)
Exchange adjustments (& 3 (3,166) 919
At 31 December HR+=-—A=+—H 41,388 41,166
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate B A 80 BR 78 oK 1B R (B 2 FE R IE T
to a wide range of independent customers and lessees for FEZRUETBENGRE 2B
whom there was no recent history of default. Receivables that EEREMEA - BBHERERE
were past due but not impaired are related to a number of CEWRFBEIRESZREANERS
independent customers that have a good track record with REERZRBZBIRTP - AEH
the Group. The Group does not hold any collateral over these 3 8 g 55 A5 R A A e
balances.
TECCFEER HFRREEARAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(b)

Impairment losses of customer account and
lease receivables (continued)

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate lifetime ECLs
for trade receivables and lease receivables. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of the customers.
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed bad debt rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults
in the manufacturing sector, the historical bad debt rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed bad
debt rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed. The assessment of the correlation
among historical observed bad debt rates, forecast economic
conditions and lifetime ECLs is a significant estimate. The
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit
loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual credit loss in the
future.

23.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND
OTHER RECEIVABLES

22. BBBRARER (B8

(b)

REEFERRBEE 2R
BEE1R (&)

A& EE B ERE B E R RARR
kESKEERHZEREERSE -
BEEXRREFPFEAAZEBH B
FHE - BEREEMMARNEEBE
EBERZERERER - AEEK
BRI BRI RCERE - UARE
ENEEEERER - fIM - [WE&
HIARK —F 2 RAKEMN K& E
Z ARESBNEXZEORIE
mEEBERRRELAE R
SmEAH AEEEHEECDE
RZBERE  WHATR MG 2 E
BIEL O - BEHBECERZE
RE - FEAKERR 2 HEBEHRE
EFBZENHEERR T HE—
HEAfL -BEHEEEBEZzE®E
ZEERRIAREEARR 2 BACFT
TR AEEBEEFEEBETE
2R N R BRI 2 TEORI TR 44
RREFKHRZEREREBRER

HEAFAE-ZREeRHEM
FEY X IR

2022 2021

—E== —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Other receivables (note) H k8 (4 i) 4,946 3,344

Prepayments TE < FRIE 16,135 25,948

Contract performance deposits paid BENEORES - 6,564
Dividend receivable from RKE—BERAKEZ

an equity investment B UEL AR B = 600

21,081 36,456

Note: Included in other receivables was an advance of HK$988,000 to an

associate, which was unsecured, bore interest at 4% per annum
and was repaid on 16 February 2022.

The above other receivables and prepayments do not contain

impaired assets and expected to be settled within one year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

24. CONTRACT ASSETS BHEE

The Group's contract assets are analysed as follows: $%l2é},ﬁ@§§ﬁ$ﬁﬁur :
2022 2021
—_E_— —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHT
Contract assets LUEE

— arising from equipment construction and — AR EELRTERE

installation services 32,652 22,591

Contract assets consist of the Group’s rights to consideration for
works completed but unbilled amounts resulting from equipment
construction and installation services, which are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights to payments become unconditional
which was generally within one to three months. The increase in
contract assets was the results of the increase in the provision of
equipment construction and installation services during the year.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets is
as follows:

BHEER %$Elﬁanﬁlkmﬁ
BOEN EXRBREERTERBEE
B R 25 B8 SR IE PO R AR I B R R AR B
(—RAE—ZEZE=Z@A)EBEREZREKER -
BREEEMEBANFANRENHRER
E R ERIGIENAER -

ABREBEEMKEZFEZ BHRRH

2022 2021

—E-= - —F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Within one year —F R 32,652 22,591

An impairment assessment is performed at each reporting period
end using a probability of default model to measure the expected
lifetime credit losses of contract assets. The provision rates for the
measurement of the lifetime expected credit losses of the contract
assets are based on those of the trade receivables, in respect of the
environmental equipment construction and installation segment,
as the contract assets and the trade receivables, in respect of the
environmental equipment construction and installation segment,
are from the same customer bases. The provision rates of contract
assets are based on historical data as adjusted by the current
conditions during the year ended and at 31 December 2022 and
forward looking information. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the lifetime expected credit loss rate for the Group’s contract assets
was considered as minimal.

REREABHHRBEOB B #ET
BEFG U EANEENEBTES
EEBEBR-FTEA ﬁéﬁziﬂﬁﬁf
BEEBRBEERDEREHEIBRER
%ﬁﬂZEW%mﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁZ%
HER EHENEEREBARERERR
#“%ZEW%mﬁXQHHEﬁ%
ANEEZEBEXRDERBEEELH®
—E-—F+-A=+—BEBHAEFER
ENBEARAEEEREAZR R _F
T ZFkZE—F+ZRA=+—8"
AEBEGNEEN2HEHEEBIEX
iR BRI -

“ECCEER FFRREBBRAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % ek R MY et

31 December 2022 =—ZE=—#+=-A=+—H

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

BHREREFAREEAR
HtBREMREN
(a) BEREARSIER HER -

2022 2021
—=E- —_ZEF——
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Cash and bank balances e MRITES 89,543 108,386
Time deposits TR 185,961 201,879
275,504 310,265
Less: Restricted bank deposits (note) B ZREARITFER

(Hat) (5,225) (8,191)

Cash and cash equivalents in the REEREeERERAZRE
consolidated statement of cash flow rKERBESIEH 270,279 302,074

Note: Bt -

As at 31 December 2022, bank deposits of approximately
HK$5,225,000 (2021: HK$8,191,000) were deposited with a bank
with restricted use for the issuance of guarantees by the bank to
the customers of the Group in respect of the specific performance
under certain construction contracts and for the issuance of bills
payables to suppliers of the Group (note 38).

The bank balances and time deposits carried interest at market
rates within the range from 0.01% to 4.50% (2021: 0.01%
to 1.76%) per annum for the year ended 31 December 2022.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates on daily deposit
rates. Short-term time deposits are placed for varying periods
within a tenure of 3 months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and time
deposits are placed with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.
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RoTE-——F+=-A=+—H 77
17 30 495,225,000 T (Z T = —F :
8,191,000%8 L) TR —KR1T * &
RE AT BRBEZRITRETERS
RN ERBARNEETF S HER
MmASEBEEERE L EMS IR (W
££38) °

REz_T-_—_F+-_A=+—H1L
FE - RTBBRRTEREFRIETSF
ENFTHF0.01%EL50% (T = —
F:0.01%E1.76%) 5B « TR
TR EBEHERMNERFEZZH
FEHAB -RPTEHERZGEREA
“EAUNRTAESEE KRTAEEZ
EReFEme  BRBEBRSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
by e
—E-—F+-RA=1+—H
2. ReERERHEEIER
Eﬂi’,iﬁﬁuwé*—l (nﬁ)

31 December 2022

25.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing b) MEESHELEZAERSE
activities: AR :
Lease Accrued Bank
liabilities interest borrowings Total
HEAE Bt FR RITEE #Ast
(note 30) (note 29) (note 27)
(FffzE30) (FfzE29) (FFzE27)
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET TER TER
At 1 January 2022 A
—H—H 1,470 194 198,970 200,634
Changes from financing MmERERE
cash flows:
Proceeds from bank RITEEMENRIEA
borrowings - - 139,268 139,268
Repayment of bank BERITEE
borrowings - - (233,425) (233,425)
Finance costs paid EATEE KA - (5.758) - (5,758)
Capital element of lease MEMNR 2 ERED
payments (722) - - (722)
Interest element of lease HE Rz F 2 HMH
payments (52) - - (52)
Total changes from financing Bt &R &R @58
cash flows (774) (5,758) (94,157) (100,689)
Exchange adjustments bE 3 3 & (81) - (6,854) (6,935)
Other non-cash changes: HihIEIR & & F -
Interest expenses recognised FA 1825 7R
in profit or loss FERX 52 5,641 - 5,693
At 31 December 2022 R-B-Z—F
+=ZBA=+—H 667 77 97,959 98,703
ZBCCFFER FFRREEARAF



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS Rk MY 5

31 December 2022 =T=—F+=-A=+—H

2. HERERHAEEE
HQﬂlﬁﬁﬁuu.é*—l— (---E)

25.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing b) MEEFHELEBENY
activities: (continued) B (88)
Lease Accrued Bank
liabilities interest  borrowings Total
HEBRE JE 5T 2 RITEE “Er
(note 30) (note 29) (note 27)
(M$5E30) (Mi5E29) (M§5E27)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2021 RZZTEZ—F
—H—H 147 254 189,035 189,436
Changes from financing MEBRSRED :
cash flows:
Proceeds from bank RITEEMENIE
borrowings - - 141,410 141,410
Repayment of bank BERITEE
borrowings - - (134,425) (134,425)
Finance costs paid B R E AR - (6,526) - (6,526)
Capital element of lease MEMNR 2 ERED
payments (590) - - (590)
Interest element of lease ME Rz F 2 MH
payments (55) - - (55)
Total changes from financing Bt &R &R g5
cash flows (645) (6,526) 6,985 (186)
Exchange adjustments ME 26 - 2,950 2,976
Other non-cash changes: HhIER S B -
Interest expenses recognised FA 1825 7R
in profit or loss FERX 55 6,466 - 6,521
New lease FERE 1,968 - - 1,968
Release in lease termination 4% |- E % (81) - - (81)
At 31 December 2021 RZE-—F
+—-—A=+—H 1,470 194 198,970 200,634
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26. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

SALE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

The major classes of assets classified as held for sale:

31 December 2022

—E-=F+=-A=+—H

260 P EABIEHEZEE

NERBHELEZEEZ T EEH

Assets held Assets for the
for sale  disposal group Total
\ %ﬁﬁ%Z
FIELEZ HEAEZ
BE BE #Et
(note b) (note a)
(P 7EDb) (B 5Fa)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHET
At 1 January 2021 R-ZZE-—F—F—H 15,411 S 15,411
Reclassification from: BTHEEENSE -

Property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - W= M & B - 4,721 4,721

Right-of-use assets FREEE - 18,538 18,538

Due from fellow subsidiaries JE Uk [B) 2 BB A BRI - 3,252 3,252

Total assets for the disposal HEHGZBEE

group - 26,511 26,511

Less: Elimination of intra-group & : £ BN A B 2 4 &

balances - (3,252) (3,252)
Exchange adjustments PE 5% 520 390 910
At 31 December 2021 RZT_—%+_H
=+—8 15,931 23,649 39,580
Transfer on disposal NSRS (27 717()

(note 17(c)) - (23,830) (23,830)
Exchange adjustments BEE 3¢, 98 (1,173) 181 (992)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-—F+=A8

=+—AH 14,758 - 14,758
“ECCEER FFRREBBRAF
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NOTES

TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR B

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

26. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE (continued)

Notes:

(a)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group has entered
into negotiation with a third party to dispose of the entire equity
interest in a subsidiary, Taixing Xin Xin. Taixing Xin Xin was
principally engaged in holding land and buildings in the PRC
and its principal assets which comprised of land and buildings
were vacant since 2017. The assets of the Taixing Xin Xin mainly
comprised of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets with aggregate carrying amount of HK$23,649,000 at 31
December 2021. As the net proceeds were expected to exceed
the carrying amount of the assets, no impairment loss has been
recognised for year ended 31 December 2021.

On 16 June 2020, the Company's subsidiary, Yancheng New
Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited has entered into
a demolition and relocation compensation agreement with the
local authorities to dispose of the land and buildings situated at
Yancheng, Jiangsu Province, the PRC at a total compensation of
approximately RMB13,061,000 (or equivalent to HK$15,931,000
as at 31 December 2021) under an urban development plan
promulgated by the local government. The related assets classified
as held for sale with a carrying amount of HK$27,642,000 were
written down to the consideration on disposal of HK$15,411,000,
resulting in a loss of HK$12,636,000 which has been recognised in
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2022, the related assets classified as held
for sale located at Yancheng, Jiangsu Province, the PRC was
still subject to the environmental restoration works in progress
to be completed at the site and the approval of the relevant
governmental environmental authority.
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260 P EABIEHEZEE

(45
His

(a)

)

REBEE_T=-_—F+=_A=+—HI1
FE - AEFEAF=FREE—RH
BRARFEFFTHE LR AR ET
B ZENFIEREEPELH
T REF MEFBEEALTHWR
BF BT —tFREE - FHEH
TWEAEFTEREYME  BE MLEE
UREREEE R —F+=
B=Z+—HZ#KE®EE 423,649,000
B -BERBHMGRBFERB
BENERAE WREE_2=-—%
+Z A=+ —BHIEFRITEEREIM
B °

R-ZZ—ZTFEXNA+TAA REH
BRFEMOR T EERE - KQRHK
BRAAEMFHEEEDEEFR
ARBEHEMFE B LT BHERD
FHoBmESHARE3,061,000
T(IR—_E-_—F+_A=+—H
18 715,931,000 ) B E LA
BTEREEM MmO L REEY -
A RT S %8 527,642,000/8 TTH 2
HARBELELAECHMREZHER
815,411,000/ 7T * & 512,636,000
BIINEERE YERHE_ZT_ZTF
T A=+ BILFENEZPRER -

HE-_ZT-—_F+=ZA=+—81
FE DEABELHENEEEEDN
FERBSNIRFEEETEIRNEET
T EFRREEIEOTKRE
SHEBBUTRRIFIOHE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

4= [
27.BANK BORROWINGS 27. RITEE
At the end of the reporting period, interest-bearing bank RBEEHR AEBZAERITEEA
borrowings of the Group were repayable as follows: AT HAE (B2 -
2022 2021
—E-=fF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Current liabilities mENBE
Current portion of bank borrowings R—FEREBEERZ
due for repayment within one year RITIEE 2 BVHAER (D 97,959 189,970
Non-current portion of bank borrowings ABTIREBTIRESR

subject to standard clause to demand A ERZRITEEZ
for immediate repayment 3ERIEREB 17 = 9,000
Total interest-bearing bank borrowings TERITIEERRE 97,959 198,970
2022 2021
—E-—F - —%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
- Unsecured — AR 30,159 125,770
- Secured — B 67,800 73,200
97,959 198,970

ZBCCFFER FFRREEARAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR B

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

27.BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the maturity dates of the bank

27. SRiITEE (&8
RBEHR AEERTEEZEEHA

borrowings of the Group were as follows: U
2022 2021
—E_—= —ET-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Within one year — &R 97,959 189,970
After one but within two years —FREMFA - 9,000
97,959 198,970

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the

RBEBRR  AEEATIEBHEL

Group's bank borrowings were denominated in the following WITEEZEMENT :
currencies:
2022 2021
—E-= —_E=-—
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#& T AT
Hong Kong Dollar T 25,300 91,610
Renminbi AR 72,659 107,360
97,959 198,970
Notes: K -

(a)

Certain banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants. If the Group was in breach of the covenants, the
drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand. In
addition, certain of the Group’s banking facility agreements
contain clauses which give the lender the right at its sole discretion
to demand immediate repayment at any time irrespective of
whether the Group has complied with the covenants and met
the scheduled repayment obligations. The Group regularly
monitors its compliance with these covenants, and is up to date
with the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does not
consider it probable that the bank will exercise its discretion to
demand repayment so long as the Group continues to meet these
requirements.

As at 31 December 2022, none of covenants relating to the
drawn down facilities had been breached (2021: Nil). All bank
borrowings, including amounts repayable on demand, are carried
at amortised cost. None of the portion of bank borrowings due for
repayment after one year which contains a repayment on demand
clause and that is classified as a current liability is expected to be
settled within one year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT &R R M RE
31 December 2022 —ZTE-—_F+-A=+—H
27.BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 27 SRITEE (&8
Notes: (continued) Hiat : (&)

(b) As at 31 December 2022, total unsecured bank loans of b)) RZE_—_F+-_A=+—H ' &xQ

approximately HK$25,300,000 (2021: HK$91,610,000) owed by
the Company in Hong Kong bore interest at variable rates ranging
from 1.65% to 7.99% (2021: 1.56% to 3.01%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2022, total unsecured bank loans of
approximately HK$4,859,000 (2021: HK$34,160,000) owed by
the subsidiaries in the PRC bore interests at different fixed rates
ranging from 3.75% to 4.60% (2021: 3.75% to 4.60%) per
annum.

As at 31 December 2022, total secured bank loans of
approximately HK$67,800,000 (2021: HK$73,200,000) owed by
certain subsidiaries in the PRC were secured by pledge of land
use rights and certain property, plant and equipment with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$26,091,000
(2021: HK$28,830,000) and HK$89,129,000 (2021:
HK$108,107,000) respectively. These bank loans bore interest at
different fixed rates ranging from 4.05% to 4.35% (2021: 4.00%
to 4.35%) per annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all unsecured
bank loans of the Company under banking facilities granted
by different banks in Hong Kong that contained specific
performance covenants had been fully settled (2021: outstanding
HK$51,000,000). Pursuant to those specific performance
covenants, if Mr. XI Yu (“Mr. XI"”) as the controlling shareholder
of Company (i) ceases to be directly or indirectly the single
largest shareholder of the Company; (ii) ceases to own directly or
indirectly at least 30% of the issued shares with voting rights of
the Company; or (iii) ceases to have the management control over
the Company, the bank may cancel all or any part of the facility
and declare all or any part of the outstanding facility, together
with accrued interest, and all other amounts accrued under the
banking facility letter immediately due and payable, whereupon all
or part of the facility shall be immediately cancelled and all such
outstanding amounts shall become immediately due and payable.

Mr. XI confirmed that he owns the direct beneficial interest in
83.66% of the issued share capital of New Universe Enterprises
Limited (“NUEL"), as such, he is deemed to be interested in the
1,109,303,201 (2021: 1,109,303,201) shares of the Company
beneficially held by NUEL, representing approximately 36.54%
(2021: 36.54%) of the total issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2022 which remains unchanged up to the date
of this report.

AR & B R & 425,300,000 7T (=
T - —4:91,610,000% 7T) 2 EiK
HRTERBENRFEEN T EF R
1.65%%7.99% (=T = —4% : 1.56%
£3.01%):H 8 -

RZZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H #H
Bt B A &1 /K & 494,859,0008 7L (=&
— — 4 : 34,160,000/ 7T) 2 & K 38
BITERRBREDNRIBEENTF
M K3 T75%%4.60% (ZF = — 4 :
3.75%%4.60%) 5t & ©

RZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H +H
& T M B AR R & #67,800,0007% T
— &~ —4 73,200,000 7T) 2B
AR T EFAEER Jh A L 3 FRAE
ETYWE BMEERKE (GREAED
B4 £26,091,0008 70 (ZF ——4F ¢
$28,830,000/% 7T) %89,129,000/% 7T
(ZZF = —% :108,107,000/ L)) 2
W ElE - ZFRTERTIETR
EEBABERNRLIOS%ELIS% (ZF
T —4%F 1 4.00%%4.35%) 5B

HE-_Z-_—_F+-_RA=+—HIHF
EARBREEHEERETATRIR
IERTFRTBEETHERTENR
mZMAERKFETER (ZE—
£ K {E1851,000,0005 7T) ° R 15 5%
ERTEOZE WEELE([EL
EDWEBARRRERER))VIFHBE
BEBEEARARZE—RARE (i)
THEEIBEEEBEARTZL30%
B SR 2 BT ¢ k(i) B Y
RNNEHEA SRS - AR EBITA
BEZEBEEz22HS AR =
HEBREMBHZREZREER
EEFBERBEZRERET A
H g2 HEN BRI R
Mz BEBREEECE  MATE%
EREEFBEAESRHER -

ZEE R EE B ABNew Universe
Enterprises Limited ([ NUEL]) B 2
1THRA83.66% 2 Bz » HIL -
R BENNUELE S H B A QA
#1,109,303,201f& (=& = —F :
1,109,303,2010%) R fH R #E A # &=
RZBE-Z_—F+-A=+—HBHEXK
NRIBETRABEL36.54% (ZF
Z—1%F :3654%) F EEAHE HEH
HEFE T o

FER FFRREEEERAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

B Eh
‘= 28.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 28 BHERARER
2022 2021
—EB-_F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Trade payables FETBE 2R 59,497 72,521
Bills payables ENEE 10,242 6,086
69,739 78,607
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the RBEHR ENERLZEZHE 2K
invoice date at the end of the reporting period: BomT
2022 2021
—_E__ —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
0 to 30 days 0B Z30H 17,040 27,160
31 days to 60 days 31H&E60H 5,428 5,754
61 days to 90 days 61HZ%90H 3,431 7,047
Over 91 days B3iE91H 33,598 32,560
59,497 72,521
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and normally settled within JENBEZ RS BH—fREI0H £180H
90 days to 180 days. 4 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

B FE R AR B

—E-=F+=-A=+—H

= =5
29. ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER 2. EtEEREMEMKIE
PAYABLES
2022 2021
=F== —E=—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Salaries and bonuses payable BRI TITE RIEA 12,961 14,415
Accounts payable for acquisition of WEME BEMRREBZ
property, plant and equipment FETRR 24,720 32,136
Accrued interest payable FEA FEETHI B 77 194
Provision for claims (note (a)) R EBE (H i) 8,177 =
Costs accrued for land restoration and soil BRIREEME 2 +&1E &
remediation of obsolete plants TIEBE 7 AT A 27,372 29,552
Dividends payable to non-controlling A — KM B A 7 IR
interests of a subsidiary (note (b)) w2 BB (HEE b)) 60,193 59,803
Other payables (note (c)) H{th &S FRIE (22 (c)) 85,112 92,886
218,612 228,986

Notes: Biat -

(a)  During year ended 31 December 2022, claims were made by (@ MEBEZZ-_—F+ZA=+—HL
independent third parties against the Group in respect of a FE BUBZARBERTEESY
construction and installation contract. No payment has been made HAREBELEBER - EH ARG R
to the claimants pending outcome of the decision. The recognised AR M AR AR o B RE AR
provision reflects the Directors’ best estimate of the mostly likely EEHRA AR REEME -
outcome.

(b) As at 31 December 2022, the dividends payable to the by RZTEZZ=ZF+ZRAR=+—8" TE
non-controlling interests of the subsidiary, NUET(JS), is comprised NHWBRG AINUET(JS) IF 12 % =
of amounts attributable to (i) Mr. YIN Yong Xiang approximately BREBE: (WRKFELEEENRT
to HK$26,752,000 (2021: HK$26,579,000), (ii) Mr. SUN Jia %’]26,752,000/%571: (ZZF = — f;z
Qing approximately to HK$26,752,000 (2021: HK$26,579,000), 26,579,000 7T) - (iVRR B %k £ &
and (i) Mr. LIU Lai Gen approximately to HK$6,689,000 (2021: 1l 3K T8 4926,752,0008 T (=& = —
HK$6,645,000). Mr. YIN Yong Xiang, Mr. SUN Jia Qing and F 126,579,000 L) + K(i)BI KR
Mr. LIU Lai Gen hold 8%, 8% and 2% of the equity interests S 4 JE A FXIA 496,689,0008 T (=T
in NUET(JS) respectively, and they are also the existing directors — — % 16,645,000/ 7T) ° BRIk FE Sk
of Zhenjiang New Universe, the wholly owned subsidiary of E BRXEEERRBRBLEA DR
NUET(JS). The dividends payable to the non-controlling interests BNUET(JS)8% ~ 8% M2 %K) i% # « 1
is accumulative non-interest bearing with no fixed terms of 75 BNUET(US)2 & K B 2 &) 8T
payment. FHREEE - ZEMNFERERD

KRB ATERE - EmEFE T ER -

() As at 31 December 2022, other payables mainly comprised (i) (00 RZZTEZZF+ZA=+—8" &t
audit fee HK$1,350,000 (2021: HK$1,350,000), (ii) payables R EEBFENEZE,350,000
to various independent constructors of approximately of B (ZEZ—F 1,350,000,%
HK$30,727,000 (2021: HK$41,709,000), (iii) retentions 7o) (NER Z B8 B Em R IA
and deposits received of approximately HK$26,085,000 %’930,727,0005’573 (ZZE=—%:
(2021: HK$28,911,000), (iv) provision for selling expenses of 41,709,000 7t » (i) B W 17%%@%&
approximately HK$8,392,000 (2021: HK$12,988,000) and (v) ¥ % #926,085,000/%8 T (
other tax payables of approximately HK$1,085,000 (2021: F :28,911,000/% 7T) - (iv) iﬁ% ]
HK$1,221,000). S 1% #98,392,0008 T (=& = —

F 12,988,000/ 70) K (v)E ftb FE
3K 491,085,000 L (Z T = —F -
1,221,00057T) °

CEICEFER HFRREBBRART
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 i a P =

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

= 30.LEASE LIABILITIES 30. HERMK

v As at 31 December 2022, the lease liabilities were payable as R-_E-_—_F#+-_A=+—8" ENHE
follows: EaEMT :
2022 2021
—E-—F B —4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Current liabilities REBERE
Within 1 year —FR 326 750
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFNR 341 351
After 2 years but within 5 years MFBERFAN - 369
341 720
667 1,470
==
31. CONTRACT LIABILITIES . EHEE
2022 2021
B —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#E T FAET
Deposits received from customers BREFZS 3,190 38,507
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32.DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants were obtained by the subsidiaries, Yancheng

NUHF and Zhenjiang Sinotech to subsidise the construction of their

respective environmental energy saving facility and controlling
facility of sewage discharge in the eco-plating specialised zone. The
grants are recognised as other revenue over the estimated useful

lives of the plant facilities.

B FE R AR B

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

32. IE T B FF 48 BY

MEBLARERNTEE RETERES
ZBRHENERARRREREXR R
BERES B 2 BRRERE R N5 KBER
EERE M - M RETRER
B2 fil 5T R B R e 8 A EL A MR o

HK$'000
FHT
Receipt of grants I B 4 Bb
At 1 January 2021 RZFE=Z—F—H—H 12,752
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 38 B 607
Receipt for the year F AU ER 10,500
At 31 December 2021 and at 1 January 2022 R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—8Bx~K
—E--#—H—H 23,859
Exchange adjustments ME 3R B (1,760)
At 31 December 2022 R=B=ZZ=F+=H=+—8H 22,099
Release of grants AL
At 1 January 2021 RN-—ZE=-_—F—H—H 6,319
Exchange adjustments ME WA 244
Release for the year FREL 1,808
At 31 December 2021 and at 1 January 2022 R-_ZE-_—F+_-_A=+—8x
—E-_—%—H—H 8,371
Exchange adjustments M N B (695)
Release for the year FAEL 2,026
At 31 December 2022 R-B-_Z_+-A=+—H 9,702
Carrying amount FREE
At 31 December 2022 R-B-_—_+-A=+—H 12,397
At 31 December 2021 R—_E-_—F+=-_F=+—H 15,488

“ECCEER FFRREBBRAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1 75 i a P =

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

¢ 32.DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS 32. IE 3 B AT 44 b (%)
gl (continued)
The government grants were analysed for reporting purpose as: BB RERMSOME
2022 2021
—=-= —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FHET
Current liabilities mBaE 1,935 2,057
Non-current liabilities EREBE 10,462 13,431
12,397 15,488

33.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 33. NG SHMBHRRBEN

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ZHEH
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated statement (@) REEBIRIETRAZ
of financial position: BV EARA IR -

2022 2021

—EB-CfF —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Provision of PRC Corporate REFE R B E TS T EHE

Income Tax for current year 18,525 17,479
Provision of PRC Corporate Income & & [Z A B 1> ¥ AT 1S B &

Tax for prior years 7,058 1,896
Exchange adjustments ME W A (446) 206
Income tax refunded W=l Fris BLR B 409 1,804
Income tax paid BER (19,971) (15,291)

5,575 6,094
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

—E-—F+=-A=+—8

33.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERRELEMIBEE &
BE:
()  Movement of each component of deferred tax assets () BEHEEEREBEESEKLG
and liabilities Z &
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities RIEEBBERARAIER
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial BELERIE(BE) BEZX
position and the movements during the year are as follows: DRERNBEHEHI LT :
Effect of
withholding
tax on
Fair value distributable
Fair value  adjustment profits of
adjustment of assets  the Group’s  Impairment
on equity  on business PRC loss on trade
investments  combination  subsidiaries  receivables Total
BB
rEEZ
REHEH +EHBAT
RAfEe HEEFLZ ARk ERRNZ
AYERE ATERE  RAZRE HEER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FET FAET FEL
At 1 January 2021 R-B-—#-f-A 6,981 17,597 12,957 - 37,535
Charge to other comprehensive 3 A {1 2 W%
income (3,410) - - - (3,410)
Released upon distribution R REREEEE
of dividends - - (5,345) - (5,345)
Charge to profit or loss AR - (516) 4,815 (9,987) (5.688)
Exchange adjustments ERHBE - - - (167) (167)
At 31 December 2021 and R-_E-—-F+-A=1+-H
1 January 2022 hZE-ZF-f-H 3,571 17,081 12,427 (10,154) 22,925
Charge to other comprehensive st AEM2E N E
income 580 (711 - - (131)
Released upon distribution RAEREHEL
of dividends - - (3,455) - (3,455)
Charge to profit or loss FAER - (497) 1,404 (857) 50
Exchange adjustments R - - - 782 782
At 31 December 2022 W-8-=§+-A=t+-8 4,151 15,873 10376 (10229) 20,171
“PCCFER HFRAEEARAA

31 December 2022

33. KRR

ZEEH (&)

MBMRAHRA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

33.INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 33.R&GEMBRRABEERN
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ZFh#E#H (&)
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (b) ERELEMIBEE &
(continued) BE: (8)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial (i) AHEMBRERZ LK
position
2022 2021
—E_-_F - —4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Net deferred tax assets recognised 424 BIF N R TR
in the consolidated statement of BT IR & E SRR
financial position (10,229) (10,154)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised FR4R & B 754kt R #E R
in the consolidated statement of Jﬁk%ﬂlﬁﬁfﬁ@%ﬁ
financial position 30,400 33,079
20,171 22,925
(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: () AERZELEMBEE
The Group has tax losses arising in the PRC of approximately AREBGCHREEANREEBEED
HK$55,999,000 (2021: HK$12,475,000) that will expire in /55,999,000 7T (ZF = — 4 -
one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. 12,475,000 7t.) + E 0] LUK $5 K
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect RERB &M E R —ZERF AR
of these losses as it is uncertain that taxable profits will be He-mRTHEEERERERN G
available against which the tax losses can be utilised. FAREHEZERERE Al
ARZEEERRAELETIBEE -
The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of AREBEEAEANHREEBRED
approximately HK$50,036,000 (2021: HK$50,036,000) for 750,036,000 T (ZF = —F :
offsetting against future taxable profits indefinitely. Deferred 50,036,000/ 7T) - A DA f& (R Hj 4K
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses SRR ERBRRHEF c MARZEE
and it is uncertain that taxable profits will be available against BHERAEELHBEEE  BINTHE
which the tax losses can be utilised. EREEBSERTUR M AKBEZE
B
(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised: (d) RERZELEHBERE

At 31 December 2022 and 2021 there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. B 7
Number of shares Share capital
R EE [
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E=-—= —E-—F ZE-C —E-—F
‘000 ‘000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
TR TH  FER TR

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 SREE.0IETY

each T F R
Authorised EE
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—B&k+=A
=+—H 100,000,000 100,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRER
At 1 January and 31 December ®H—A—BNk+=A
=+—A 3,035,697 3,035,697 30,357 30,357
As at 31 December 2022 the holders of ordinary shares are entitled RZFZZF+ZA=+—H HARK
to receive dividend to be declared from time to time and are entitled BRAEANGREDEIRERZKE I
to one vote per share at general meetings of the Company. All ARARFBRRAEG LR ERERME—
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual FRARFBRTEEMS  ME LR
assets. KR =ZERSEF -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

35.RESERVES 35. %
(@) The Group (a) XN&EE
Details of the movements on the Group's reserves are set out AEBFBEZEEFBHANGEE
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. K o
(b) The Company (b) AR F
Share
Share option Retained
premium reserve profits Total
RAEE BREME REBF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FEL FERL
(note (c)(i)) (note (c)(vi))
(BEE(C)) (M E(vil))
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ-F-F—H 456,465 601 170,045 627,111
Profit for the year ERRT - - 43,114 43,114
Dividend relating to 2020 “Z-ZERE - - (21,857) (21,857)
Equity settled share-based transactions IR A et B iRR G
(note 39(a)) fEER 22 5 (H339()) - 305 - 305
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 WH-ZE-—%+-A=+—-HEK
—E--F—-f—H 456,465 906 191,302 648,673
Profit for the year ERRET - - 8,602 8,602
Dividend relating to 2021 —E--ERE - - (11,839) (11,839)
Equity settled share-based transactions IR A a st BRIk
(note 39(a)) R 2 25 (H339()) - 475 - 475
At 31 December 2022 RZB--%+-A=t-H 456,465 1,381 188,065 645,911
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves and their (o) RBEZHELRE®RLAESE

movements

(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 34 of the Companies Act (Chapter
22, Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The balance of share premium is
distributable and for such use as permissible under the
laws of Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35.RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves and their

movements (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of overseas operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies of
translation of foreign currencies. The balance of this
general reserve is distributable and available for such use
as permissible under the laws of Cayman Islands and the
Articles of Association of the Company. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies set
in note 2(x) to the financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments at the end of the reporting period and is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies in
note 2(h) to the financial statements.

Capital reserve

On 17 February 2011, the Group's effective interest
in NSIL was increased from 38% to 98%, and NSIL
Group became 98% indirectly owned subsidiaries of
the Company, and the excess of fair value of net assets
acquired over cost of acquisition of 98% equity interest
in NSIL Group of HK$4,185,000 (after deduction of
acquisition related costs) was recognised as deemed
contribution from the transferors, New Universe
Enterprises Limited and another party, in their capacity
as shareholders of the Company and fully credited as
capital reserve in the equity of the Group.

On 7 October 2015, the Group’s effective interest in
NSIL was increased from 98% to 100%, and the excess
of carrying value of net assets acquired over cost of
acquisition of the remaining 2% equity interest in NSIL
Group of HK$378,000 (after deduction of acquisition
related costs) was recognised as deemed contribution
from the transferor in his capacity as shareholder of
the Company and fully credited as capital reserve in the
equity of the Group.

31 December 2022

B FE R AR B

T —F+=-A=1+—H

35. &t (48)
BRZETRAE LA S
% ()

(c)

_— ——

(i)

(7if)

(iv)

V& 5 1 1
ERFEERRREFINES
ZHEREREL Z A I
EEZR- -FEHEILDREEBER
B2 @A BRER - %
—RFEE BRI HDIR R
RERSHEERRART
MBERARAFFZRE -
% ek 1R T AR IR B 75 R P R
200FT 8 2 BT BRR B IR ©

REE G
REEMHFHERERARE Y
AFFBRARERAFEZR
AHEEFE HREHNE
BmEAMF2N 2 B BKRT
IABZ IR ©

B F
RZE——F=ZA++tH"
NEBMMNSILZ BB EZ R
38%IB INZE98%  NSILE B
BN T E T BI8%E &=
ZHBRR FTURIEE EF
B2 AFEBENSILEEI8%
fi% # 2 W BE X A8 2 4,185,000
oo (0B M BE F B K
KNig) B R AEE ANew
Universe Enterprises Limited
ES—TF (UAARRRIBREZH
M) ZHELE  WEEHLA
REBBRARNZ ERGHE -

WZE—RF+AEH -
NEBMMUNSILZ BEEEZZ R
98% 1% =100% @ A U BE &Y
FEEZEREERLNSILE
Btk T 2% 2 WHER AN 2
378,000/ 7T (0B W i =18
KRR ERRAEZEA
(AERRBREZ HMD) 2
EHE TERHBEZALEE
N - W

FER FFRREEEERAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

35.RESERVES (continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves and their
movements (continued)

(v)  Share option reserve

Share option reserve comprises the value of the
unexercised share options granted by the Company
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 2(s)(ii) to the
financial statements.

(vi)  Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant regulations in the PRC,
the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
required to transfer a certain percentage of its profits
after tax to reserve funds. Subject to certain restrictions
set out in the relevant PRC regulations and in the
subsidiary’s articles of association, the reserve funds may
be used either to offset losses, or for capitalisation by
way of paid-up capital.

(vii)  Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2022, the Company had reserves in the
amount of HK$645,911,000 (2021: HK$648,673,000)
available for distribution to its owners.

36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in
respect of office premises which fall due as follows:

35. f s (45)

(0 REcMELRAEREE
&) (&)
() ERELE

(vi)

(vii)

BRERGEEEREY TR
2R R RE2(s)(ii) BT 5% 4% 1O DA B £
TR R & 5T R R
ARAREHRERETERK
RERI(EME -

JETE
REBHBEBEER  KA2QF
RABERZZHERRES
BER T O 2 BB RE T
ERBLES -ETEHERH
EREMBARZABER
MAZHRRT  HHEAIAED
AAEEEBRIABER
K2 ABIEER -

2 B 7R 1%
WNZEZ—F+=_A=+—
B AARBAHS KT HE
B A Z [# 645,911,000/ 7T
— & - — 4 : 648,673,000
I e

36. % = fHERE
REBEEREAEA
R-ZE-—F+-_fF=+—8 K&£H
MM AEMEE T BHERZTAIH
g EZ ARREAEREDT

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—4F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAET

Within 1 year 15 A" 560 560
The Group as lessor AEBEAEHEA

The Group leases out certain of its factory buildings under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally provides for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions.

238  New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

AEERBELEHERHEERETT
BAE HEGK-—BRAERBEERD
NERAERE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B FE R AR B

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 36.REFHERIE(F)

(continued)
The Group as lessor (continued)

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
under the non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

AEBEREEAE)
R_ZE-_—_F+_A=+—H8 ' A&H
THBUEKEREE T RRMIEEKA
ENFRMT

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHIT
Within 1 year —FR 30,489 33,707
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFNR 30,337 27,151
After 2 years but within 3 years MFBE=FN 15,108 17,079
After 3 years but within 4 years = F®ENFA 9,807 10,664
After 4 years but within 5 years MEBBRFA 4,331 5,922
After 5 years hF & 7,927 10,696
97,999 105,219

37.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. B AR KIE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
capital commitments:

REEWF  AEEZERREDT -

2022 2021
—E—C —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Contracted but not provided for: ERTH B R B
— Capital expenditure in respect of —BBEYE - BEEREEZ
property, plant and equipment B R R E 22,464 20,624
— Capital contribution payable to —ENTRAKENEE
the equity investment 15,976 15,976

ZBCCFFER FFRREEARAF
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UE e R

31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

38.PLEDGE OF ASSETS AND AVAILABLE
CREDIT FACILITIES

(a)

. EERFREHEEME

Pledge of assets (a) BEHRH
At 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of assets pledged R-ZZE-_—_F+-_A=+—8 "5
as collaterals for banking facilities granted to the Group by ETRITBEFAEEZETRE R
certain banks and for trading purpose in favour of clients and BRXGENUNERPREER AT
suppliers are set out as follows: AMBRERBERGZEEZRE
BEHEIAT
2022 2021
—EB-—F —ETE-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Property, plant and equipment M - BB MEE 89,129 108,107
Land use rights + {5 A E 26,091 28,830
Restricted bank deposits PR I #9 ERITF 3K 5,119 8,191
120,339 145,128
Available credit facilities (b) HEREERE

At 31 December 2022, the total banking facilities
of the Group amounted to HK$137,000,000 (2021:
HK$213,610,000) which were utilised to the extent
of unsecured bank loans of HK$30,159,000 (2021:
HK$125,770,000) and secured bank loans of HK$67,800,000
(2021: HK$73,200,000) and the available unutilised
banking facilities amounted to HK$39,041,000 (2021:
HK$14,640,000).
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ZEZF+ZA=+—H" K
£E 2 RITRVE #2%85137,000,000
BT (ZZFEZ—% :213,610,000%8
ﬁ) E#ﬂi@)ﬁﬁzﬁﬁwﬁfﬂ”

X £$30,159,0008 L (=T =—4F :
125,770,000/%75) kEEBIREITE
X #67,800,0008 0 (Z T = —4F :
73 200,000/ 7T) KRB A 2 & A

R 17 @l & /539,041,000 ¢ (=&
——% :14,640,000/87C) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39.SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(a)

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s non-executive directors, including independent
non-executive directors, employees of the Group, consultants
of the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group, the Company’s shareholders and any
non-controlling shareholders of the Company’s subsidiaries.
The Scheme became effective on 5 May 2015 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue on the adoption date. The maximum
number of shares issuable under the Scheme to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period is
limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit
is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5 million, within 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
28 days from the date of grant, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, commence after a vesting period and ends on a date
which is not later than 10 years from the date of offer of the
share options.

31 December 2022

B FE R AR B

T —F+=-A=1+—H
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(a)

_— ——

& A AT
ARBELE—EBRESE ([Z
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FEEEZ AR TFABR -

RIBZ T8 - WA EER B M H R
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BT Z210% » A+ — {8 A
HiE - ZEr B ER2EERE
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BRERARE LRI -

BYEE TRERKARAETE
EE SmEzEMBHEALZE
feiE  MBBLEBIIENTES
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AEIREEREZ BEAAR KRG
B EEE) # 85,000,000
L BEAMERERS FEREL
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31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

39.SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

39. iR ERtE RIESRIK
B (&)

(continued)
(a) Share option scheme (continued) (a) BBIHEETEI(E)
The exercise price of share option is determinable by the BREZITFEERBAESSEET  E
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the TEERTISEEE  (EEBER
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock HEHEAQRK MRS H R
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of the offer BE FAMRZBME: (VAR AR
of the share options; (ii) the average of the closing prices MREERHEREBHITRER
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock exchange’s SREMIMBERESE LR ZF
daily quotation sheets for the five trading days immediately BHUWHE  RiNARARDZEDR
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the HEZHE - BRET &I TRAE
Company'’s shares on the date of offer. Share options do not AZEERBIRBEREARS FRE
confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at the FEF o
shareholders’ meetings.
The following share options were outstanding under the WRIEZ T M AR TTE 2 BB T
Scheme:
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Weighted Weighted
average  Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
mEFH METH
TRE BREZE 1128 BREHE
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT T4 BT T4
Outstanding at 1 January W—A—AHKENE 0.262 21,020 0.250 9,640
Granted during the year FRERH 0.308 13,080 0272 11,380
Exercised during the year FRIE - - - -
Lapsed during the year ERNEW - - _ _
Cancelled during the year ERNKEEH 0.272 5,041 - -
Outstanding at 31 December (note) M+ ZA=+—BRRETE () 0.281 29,059 0.262 21,020
Vested during the year FAEB 0.272 6,339 0.250 9,640
Exercisable at the end of the period AEHRTE 0.259 15,979 0.250 9,640

Note: The number of shares of the Company that may be issued in
respect of such 29,059,000 (2021: 21,020,000) outstanding
options is 29,059,000 (2021: 21,020,000) shares,
representing approximately 0.96% (2021: 0.69%) of the
issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2022.

No share options were exercised during the year. The options
outstanding at 31 December 2022 had a weighted average
exercise price of HK$0.281 (2021: HK$0.262) per share and
remaining a contractual life ranging from 0.37 years to 3.54
years (2021: 1.37 years to 3.55 years).
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B 5T 5t 3% £29,059,00010 (=& = —
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39.SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

31 December 2022

B FE R AR B

—E-=F+=-A=+—H

39. iRt B RIESRIK

wmF (&)

(continued)
(a) Share option scheme (continued) (a) BERRHEETEI(B)
The fair value of the share options granted on 18 January NR—_ZE-_—_F—HAF+N\H =%
2022, 15 January 2021 and 15 January 2020 was —_—F—At+HEBER-_ZT_ZTF—
approximately HK$1,092,000, HK$578,000 and HK$836,000 BT+hBERENBERENATFES
respectively, of which the Group recognised total share option B %) /1,092,0007% 7T - 578,000/
expense of HK$475,000 (2021: HK$305,000) charged to 7. }836,0008 7T - HFAKREEHER
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2022. BE_Z-_—_#F#+-_A=+—8H1t
F [E WE R BB IR #E & 51 B 52475,000
BT (ZZ=—% :305,000/7T) -
WEEEZET R -
The fair value of services received in return for share options MBEE L ERENRERE ZA
granted is measured with reference to the fair value of share FEDMZEEREBREZQF
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of share EffE - BRECAFE G
options is measured based on binomial option pricing model MBYEEGHEMS NEE (ZF
by the independent firm of professional valuer, Colliers T—F HHRBECBR AR
International (2021: CBRE Limited), taking into account the BE-_EAAEETEEAGE T E
terms and condition upon which the options were granted EEFATHEZERRGE T
during the year. The following table lists the inputs to the FRIE TERERNEXNNEAE :
model used:
2022 2021
—E_-— —ET -4
Fair value at measurement date ATEHMATE HK$0.1017& 7T HK$0.0847% 7T
Share price at grant date BB ER D EE HK$0.3058 7t  HK$0.270% 7T
Exercise price 1B HK$0.308% T  HK$0.272/4 T
Expected volatility 8 HA i B) 51.845% 51.135%
Expected life of options TE G BAfE EF HA 3.54 yearst 3.55 years4E
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B =& 2.36% 2.64%
Risk-free interest rate 4 3 by A R 1.18% 0.22%
The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility T8 HR R 08 DAJE 2R e R B (IR &
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of BERRHE 2 INREF R FEHIzTE) -
the share options), adjusted by any expected changes to future TRERITAHESZEREENR
volatility based on publicly available information. Expected RO IE 2 FMTEHZ{ T LA
dividends are based on historical dividends. Changes in the B FHEREUFESLRE AEAE-
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair FIRAFEBRE S AHATE
value estimate. ZIHFTEEEAFE -
Share options were granted under a service condition. This KRB CHREREEERDER
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date BoRFECERZRENF LA
fair value measurement of the services received. There were no Bz AFER ZEGETEFERE
market conditions associated with the share option granted. Ao ELRRHBERESBE TS
i1 o
“ECCEER FFRREBBRAF
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31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

39.SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(continued)

(@) Share option scheme (continued) (a)

The terms and conditions of the options granted for the years

ended 31 December 2022 are as follows:

Number of shares

to be issued upon
exercise in full of
the options granted
REBREE2ETH
BATRIROYE

Vesting conditions

BERNE

39. iR ERtE RIESRIK
B (&)

AT S (8)
REBEE-ZE-__F+=-A=+—H
IEFERHERENBRRRGEE
T

Contractual life of options

BRENSHER

Options granted
to employees
on 18 January 2022:

NZTZZF—f
+/\RETESEZ
FfiRE -

13,080,000 shares

The Options granted shall be vested
upon achievement of certain vesting
conditions (the "2022 Vesting
Conditions”) as specified in the offer
letter (the "Offer Letter”) of each
respective Grantee. If the 2022 Vesting
Conditions applicable to the relevant
Grantee are not achieved, the unvested
Options granted to such Grantee shall
be cancelled as specified in the Offer
Letter.

The Options shall vest in the proportions
to be determined according to each
particular Offer letter on the date the
2022 Vesting Conditions applicable to
the relevant Grantee are achieved.

FRHBRESREEBARANEY
R (TENE]) RETANETRE R
(0225 BHEMN)) EXERE - @
RIEBRRAB20225 8 i KaE
K RTEREARANKREBBRER

SURANBRTE T IAEH -

BRESRERRNARRRAN025E
EHERERRERTRORBEAL
558 -
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Subject to the Options having been
vested, the Options granted are
exercisable from the date of
publication of the annual results of
the Company for the year ending 31
December 2024 (the “2024 Results
Date"”) to the earlier of (i) the date
on which such Options lapses in
accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme; or (ii) the 90th
business day after the 2024 Results
Date.

FERESEE  MELERETR
HEARNRHE-Z-NEF+=A
ST-ALFERNZEXERY
([ZE-mF£ERE])RAE
EZNTHHR(UBRRER BE):
(VBBBRERRERETENEG
PERMABE: RN =FT-mEX
EAMEEEREEA -



39.SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2022

Share option scheme (continued)

(a)

Number of shares

to be issued upon
exercise in full of
the options granted
REBREE2ETRE
BATRIROYE

Vesting conditions

BERME

B FE R AR B

T —F+=-A=1+—H

39. iRt B RIESRIK
wmF (&)

IR 8 ()

Contractual life of options

BRENSHEN

Options granted on
15 January 2021
and vested to
employees:

6,339,000 shares
(2021: 11,380,000
shares)

The Options granted shall be vested upon
achievement of certain vesting conditions
(the "2021 Vesting Conditions”) as
specified in the offer letter (the “Offer
Letter”) of each respective Grantee. If
the 2021 Vesting Conditions applicable
to the relevant Grantee are not achieved,
the unvested Options granted to such
Grantee have been cancelled as specified
in the Offer Letter.

The Options have been vested in the
proportions being determined according
to each particular Offer letter on the date
the 2021 Vesting Conditions applicable
to the relevant Grantee are achieved.

FIRLERESRSREARANEY
H(ENR]) RTBENETRE KNG
([20215BKEHED EXBELRE «
HERARBEAR A0 BB ISR
BN BRTEBRARANARBERE
BRENIANETE TIAEH -

R-ZE-—F—A 6,339,000/
+THARTRES (Z2=—F:
BlEE ki 11,380,000%)

BRENEARERARAN0215E K
fEKE R RS ERONETN LA
EIFLEE -

_— ——

Subject to the Options having been
vested, the Options granted are
exercisable from the date of
publication of the annual results of
the Company for the year ending 31
December 2023 (the “2023 Results
Date"”) to the earlier of (i) the date
on which such Options lapses in
accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme; or (ii) the 90th
business day after the 2023 Results
Date.

GERERER  FTREDERETR
HNgARAHE-_T-=51+_A
“t+-BLEFEMEFEERS
([ZZE-_=2E88]) R
HEATHH UABREE BE):
()E FIRE AR IR 1R IR P PR A =T 81 Y (6
REAMMBE: R()=2T=_=F%
ERHEEOELER -

FER FFRREEEERAA
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31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND 0.BHESE RIEERIK
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS wmF (48)
(continued)
(a) Share option scheme (continued) (a) BBRRHEETEI(B)

Number of shares

to be issued upon

exercise in full of

the options granted  Vesting conditions
RUBREELETE

BAFRITROHE  BEEY

Contractual life of options

BRENSHEH

Options granted 9,640,000 shares Upon the performance targets specified
on 15 January in the offer letter of each respective
2020 and vested grantee having been achieved by the
to employees: respective grantee, the Options have

been vested in the proportions to be
determined according to each particular
offer letter on the 30th business day
after the date of publication of the
annual results of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

RZZZZE-F 9,640,000 REARAEBUBEBR T KRR
THERTRES BfRE BRENALRTERZ T
BEE ZRIE BET_ AT HISEZFERER

FoTEZXARRRERERNREL
HAEEZLPIEERRE -

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022

The Options granted are exercisable
from the date of vesting to the earlier
of (i) the date on which such Options
lapses in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme; or (ii)
the 30th business day after the date
of publication of the annual results of
the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.

RUvBRETHEREBHRE(
REBR BB GT Z5H
REXMZE : RNARAEES
T -F+-AZ+-HILEE
EEAMANGE=-TELEA
(ABREBE)ITE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

39.SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(continued)

(b)

Employee retirement benefits

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group participates in defined contribution benefit
schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by the relevant local
government authorities in Jiangsu Province, whereby the
Group is required to make contributions to the Schemes at
certain percentage of the eligible employee’s salaries. The
local government authorities are responsible for the entire
pension obligation payable to the retired employees.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 (2021: HK$30,000).
Contributions to the plan vest immediately. No contribution(s)
shall be forfeited and used by the employer to reduce the
existing level of contributions of the Group. The Group has
no other material obligation for the payment of pension
benefits associated with the MPF Scheme beyond the annual
contributions described above.

31 December 2022
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T —F+=-A=1+—H

39. iRt B RIESRIK

wmF (&)

(b)

_— ——

e B RAKEF

RIBARM R E S BEEREM - A
£E2 MBI HE S BT REE
%2 BRI 8 (T5H81)) -
B AEEARAKBEET S
ZETED LA BIEH R -
EnBAREAREARKERS
BHHRIAKS -

AEBERBEERBHRILE —
HEsEREEEE ([BEE
) -mEeE N RABILE
ARAEEZEBEMKMERETS -
RiERESTE EBIREEED
MiREEABEWA Z5%MZATE
EHHER MABEBRARZREA
30,0008 7T (=& = — 4 : 30,000
B IT) o MaxEt EEH Z HKTIE
EERE - LEAEFTERREFREE
152 P LA ORE > 7 SR B3R B R SRR SR ©
L FEREHERIN REBEYEL
NEBEEF BB IEREN 2
HMBEREE -

FER FFRREEEERAA

247



248

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

List of related parties

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Directors are of the view that the following entities and
persons are related parties to the Group:

Name of the related party
BEEER

NUEL

NUEL

Sun Ngai International Investment Limited

("Sun Ngai”)

HEBREERRAR (TFE])

Mr. XI Yu

Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling

RAONKLE

Zhenjiang Xin Qu (note 18)

SEOT 3[R (FF3E18)

NCIP (note 18)
FARAF(MIFE18)

Xinyu Rongkai (note 19)

FLE(MEE19)

40.FRABEATR S

(a) BEABALTZRE
REEZE-_Z-__FK-_F=-—F
TZA=+—HLFE EFRE
THRRAEAEEZ BB AL :

Relationship
&

A shareholder beneficially interested in 36.54% (2021: 36.54%) of
the issued share capital of the Company. The Company’s Directors,
Mr. XI'and Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling are also directors of NUEL.
RANRTF36.54% (ZF = —%F : 36.54%) B BITRAFES Btk
MLBH e RARBEBEFREEERKR/NELTIRBNUELZ E S -

A company being 100% owned by New Universe Holdings Limited
("NUHL"). The Company’s Director, Mr. Xl and Ms. CHEUNG Siu
Ling are also directors of Sun Ngai and NUHL.

M FERER QA ([FHFER]) HEH100%#E w2 A7 o XA T
EFEAENKRINERLINBH BRI FERZES -

A shareholder of NUEL beneficially interested in 83.66% of the
issued share capital of NUEL. Mr. Xl is also the director of NUEL,
NUHL and Sun Ngai.

NUELZ FRER » FANUELZ 83.66% B BT AR R Emikn - £t
HEIRARNUEL s T FEREHB 2 E S -

A shareholder of NUEL beneficially interested in 6.07% of the issued
share capital of NUEL. Ms. CHEUNG Siu Ling is also the director of
NUEL, NUHL and Sun Ngai.

NUELZ BRE - IANUELZ6.07% BB TIRAPHEBE EmER - 5R/D®
ZEIRARNUEL - BT FEREHB 2 EE -

An associate of the Group, of which the Company holds an effective
equity interest of 24.6%, and the subsidiary, Zhenjiang New
Universe Solid Waste Disposal Company Limited directly holds an
equity interest of 30%.

REBBERT > RRAINREPRH24.6% 2 BRI - I @b
BARBEINTFEEEYEEAR AR EEA30% R A ER -

An associate of the Group, of which the Company holds an indirectly
owned equity interest of 30%.
REEZBERT  RRRINEPEEEA30%REEL -

A joint venture of the Group, of which the Company, being one of
the two joint venturers, holds an indirectly owned equity interest of
65% and shares joint control of the joint venture.
REBZEERE  ARFAMERMEBEE 22— BEHEEE6S%
RIETHRZEZAEDRE 2 LRS-

New Universe Environmental Group Limited ANNUAL REPORT 2022



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. FRBALR 5 (E

(continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (b) HEBEBALTZRS
2022 2021
—E—-_= —F——
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt = FTET THIT
Revenue from environmental REBREREEE R
equipment construction and AR &~ 2%
installation services
— Xinyu Rongkai — ey (i) 4,295 6,957
Interest income B U A
- NCIP —ERAF (i) 6 13
Rental expenses (included in the  f4 B9 (5] A A £ H
administrative expenses of the TEEIE)
Group)
- Sun Nagai — & (iii) 960 960
Charges on hazardous waste e EYEEE BB
landfill disposal (included in the (B A7 2 ) 4 £ AR )
cost of sales of the Group)
— Zhenjiang Xin Qu — TR (iv) 7,693 17,075

Notes: et -
IRAE B B R A B E m A %
e EMRES O (K
BE—REE EREYRIER
K — 1 /& B8 BE 4B 3 ) M Ak
UHTFERIzAEERERE
AEEBRETRRETTER
EHNOBHMERZEaE L
ZEBEZE MAKEEZ2E
HEBARIN -_Z—hE+—A
BE-IBEBEHNGHEEEE
KAEDBEBHEREZH —HR

Under the joint venture agreement in relation to the
establishment of Xinyu Rongkai for the purpose of setting
up an integrated hazardous waste treatment centre, which
includes an integrated hazardous waste treatment plant
and a hazardous waste landfill site located at Liuzhou
in Guangxi, the PRC, the Group is entitled to designate
contractor to be selected at prevailing market price for
constructing the facilities of the joint venture and a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group was selected under a
general contract bidding to become the contractor at the
total contract sum of RMB48,980,000 (approximately

g L A : e
HK$57,796,000) in November 2019 for the construction B S %2@%5;%/\Ei
of the entire phase | incineration facilities. The total 4,8'980'(129;:/\(Lffjf796'ooo;i
contract sum for construction of the phase | incinerator ) - BEZAERRZ AR

BEREZBANEETIRIF
EEBERRD - BEHAERA
WA AR LT AR BIE14AE
ATZHERIRBEBER
5 e

of the joint venture was determined and transacted on
arm’s length basis. The construction contract does not
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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31 December 2022 =T=—F+=-A=+—H

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (continued)

Notes: (continued)

ii. Interest income was arisen on an advance of RMB810,000 ii.
(approximately HK$988,000) to NCIP bearing interest rate
at 4.0% p.a. for 6 months and repaid on 16 February 2022.

iii. Rental expenses were charged by Sun Ngai for leasing office iii.
premises of the Group in Hong Kong. The leases run for a
period of one year and the monthly rent was determined
in commensurate with the market rate. The tenancy
agreements in respect of the rental expenses entered
into between the wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
Smartech Services Limited (“Smartech Services”) and Sun
Ngai were de minimis transactions exempted under rule

14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

iv.  For the year ended 31 December 2022, the charges on iv.
hazardous waste landfill disposal paid by 4 (2021: 5)
subsidiaries in PRC of the Group to Zhenjiang Xin Qu were
made according to the contracted prices and conditions and
subject to the compliance with the relevant administrative
requirements promulgated by the National Pricing Bureau
in PRC. These transactions do not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors are of the opinion that the above related parties
transactions were conducted on normal commercial terms and
were priced with reference to prevailing market prices, and in

the ordinary course of business of the Group.

(c) Balances with related parties

40.FRABEAN T 5 (4B

(b) BEAEBBMALZIRS ()
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() EBREEE AL ZEH
Maximum outstanding
balance during the year ended

HEUTFERRREESAR

2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C —E-— —E_CF —E_—
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET AL TET FET
Amounts due from customers for F—RAECEZENTE
contract works in relation to EWEF 258
ajoint venture
- Xinyu Rongkai —HFEY 8,287 3,186 8,287 4,048
Accounts payable for charges on 8 — 5B & /3 F] /5 [ A 4
hazardous waste landfill disposal EREMEERENR 2
in relation to an associate ERERA
- Zhenjiang Xin Qu - BIHRE 576 3,936 - -
Other receivables Hih 8
- NCIP -BRAF - 988 988 988
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(d)

Provision of guarantees to a related party

On 25 September 2020, the Company and the joint venturer, as
the joint guarantors, entered into the guarantee agreement with
a bank in the PRC to jointly guarantee the repayment obligations
of Xinyu Rongkai (a 65% indirectly owned joint venture of the
Company) in relation to the bank loan facilities in a total amount
of RMB120,000,000 (approximately HK$135,600,000) and the
guarantee is effective until 31 December 2027, for the purpose
of financing the construction of the integrated hazardous waste
treatment project undertaken by Xinyu Rongkai in Liuzhou,
Guangxi province, the PRC.

On 7 December 2022, the Company as the guarantor, entered
into the guarantee agreement with another bank in the PRC
to guarantee the repayment obligations (in the proportion of
65% interests in Xinyu Rongkai) amounted to RMB5,850,000
(approximately HK$6,611,000) in relation to the short term
bank loan being granted to Xinyu Rongkai with a total
amount of RMB9,000,000 (approximately HK$10,170,000)
for its purpose of general working capital in the PRC and the
guarantee is effective until 6 December 2026.

The guarantees disclosed above were not recorded at fair
value, as in the opinion of the management, the difference in
the interest rates, by comparing the actual rate charged by the
bank with this guarantee made available, with the estimated
rate that the bank would have charged had the guarantee not
been available, is not material.

The banking facilities of Xinyu Rongkai guaranteed by
the Company amounting to 65% of RMB129,000,000,
(approximately HK$145,770,000) (2021:RMB120,000,000,
approximately HK$146,400,000) of which RMB125,100,000
(approximately HK$141,363,000) (2021:RMB116,100,000,
approximately HK$141,642,000) was utilised, and
loans of approximately RMB93,173,000 (approximately
HK$105,285,000) (2021: RMB107,393,000, approximately
HK$131,019,000) were outstanding as at 31 December
2022 of which approximately RMB84,173,000 (2021:
RMB107,393,000) is repayable on 21 June 2025 and
bearing interest at 4.55% (2021: 4.75%) per annum and
RMB9,000,000 (2021: RMB Nil) is repayable on 6 December
2023 and bearing interest at 3.65% per annum.

31 December 2022

B FE R AR B

T —F+=-A=1+—H
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(d)

_— ——

M A B A TIREER

RZE_ZTFNALA=-+HB AR
AHEAEF (EREREMRA) H
PR -RIBITEILERGE - A
EERTFELEN (AAGIEERES
5% e BEE)RBEBAARE
120,000,0007T (49135,600,000/% 7T)
ZIRTERBE  ZEREFXE=ZZ
“tF+=-A=+—H8 BMAMA
T S YL A R BR AL B R B A0
ZEBREMRARIEREIREES -

RZEZZF+ZAERH XRQ7A
ERERABEAPRS —RR|ITEF]
BRBE ARTFERINER TR
HI B F 485 A R #9,000,0007T (49
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FTFLY65% s 2 O IR EAR
#5,850,0007T (#96,611,0007% JT.) )
ER EXRBENFRIERE A
H—ReEES  ERESHZE=ZE
ZRETZANH-

BREENERLERATFEAK
HAEEERR BBLLBIRITERH
ZEROER T B YR ) X 8
RITAEY EIBHIERIBR T A
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RABFTEREPE5%E BT
LIk 1T b & & A K %129,000,0007T
(#9145,770,0008 70) (Z T = —F :
AR #120,000,0007T (47146,400,000
BL)) EFEBHAARE
125,100,0007T (#7141,363,000/% 7T)
(ZZ2=—%F : AR¥116,100,0007T
(#9141,642,0008 L)) e R =T ==
F+-_A=+—H REBEZHA
R %93,173,0007T (#9105,285,000/%8
L) (ZZE=—F : AR¥107,393,000
7T (#9131,019,000870)) * EF LA
R #84,173,000 (ZZT=Z—F : A
K #107,393,000T) HR T - H
FRAZ+—RBE WKRFHN=E
455% (ZF——4%F 1 475%) 5 &
& AR ¥9,000,0000T (ZZE = —4:
ARBZ ) BER_Z_=F+_-A8
NREE  WIRFFIE365%: B o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

e — =3
40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40. BN T X 5 (8)
(continued)
(d) Provision of guarantees to a related party (d) \A @A TREER(B)
(continued)
The provision of guarantees disclosed above does not Lt AT IR A R AR D SR A T AR Bl
constitute a connected transaction or continuing connected FUATE THHEBRZ I HIFER
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. B 5 o
(e) Key management personnel remuneration (e) TEEBEALTZME
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group AEBEARAETEEEREALTZ
and the Company, including amounts paid to the Directors of e (RIEMFARE BN TAAR
the Company as disclosed in note 9 and certain of the highest AIEEFELMFI0REZENT
paid individual as disclosed in note 10, is presented as follows: EfT&EeEHREREFB)HIWT :
2022 2021
—E_-_F - —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHEIT
Salaries and other benefits #Fe MHAMAE A 12,238 11,794
Discretionary bonuses BB e AT 3,744 4,754
Contributions to retirement RKAE A ET B ALK
schemes 1,402 1,071
Equity-settled share-based payment — LAR% 2N # 25 5+ & 32 f% 15 1
expenses AW ARE 475 305
17,859 17,924
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY M EZoEErzeMIA

CATEGORY

The carrying amount of the financial assets and liabilities for each

AEERBERRSHEERTAZEH

category of the Group’s financial instruments as at the end of the EEMBEERAENOT :
reporting period are as follows:
2022 2021
—E-—fF - —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Financial assets at amortised cost LAt HE 2 eRMEE
Trade and bills receivables FEW R R R, 106,499 150,022
Refundable deposits and other receivables AREF & K
H A fE M RROR 4,946 3,847
Restricted bank deposits PR IR 1T 17 K 5,225 8,191
Cash and cash equivalents RekERREER 270,279 302,074
Financial assets at fair value through ERHMEZEWSRATEAR
other comprehensive income ZEeRMEE
Equity investments at fair value FREMEERZEERATERNE
through other comprehensive income ZIEARIEE
(non-recycling) (“~ay &) 70,300 80,800
Total financial assets THEERRE 457,249 544,934
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBHALTEZ
e R=R
Bank borrowings RITIEE 97,959 198,970
Trade and bills payables ERERRER 69,739 78,607
Accrued liabilities and other payables FErtBEREMmENIRIE 218,612 228,986
Lease liabilities HEBE 667 1,470
Total financial liabilities THAaERE 386,977 508,033

ERMTANFBREREEMBERRE
MisE o

Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes to the financial statements.

“ECCEER FFRREBBRAF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

42.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial

42.

EMIAEZRATERE

REHAGREBESEBEMEKES 2 A FEME

instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that EEN XEB 2RI AZEREEK
reasonable approximate to fair values, are as follows: NEBEWT
Carrying amount Fair value
FEE ATE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C —To—F —E-C-F —F-—
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER
Financial assets at fair value through EBEMZERHEE A FE
other comprehensive income AEZEeREE
Equity investments at fair value FREMEIAREERATE
through other comprehensive ARZBRARE (TAEE)
income (non-recycling) (note 20) (Htiz20) 70,300 80,800 70,300 80,800

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, financial assets included
in refundable deposits and other receivables, contract assets,
trade payables, financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities
and other payables, deposits received from customers, contract
liabilities, amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximately to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturity of these
instruments. The Directors consider the carrying amounts of the
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

The carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities at
amortised cost of the Group is determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices from observable markets transactions.

The fair values of non-current portion of interest-bearing bank loans
and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting the
expected future cash flows using rates currently available for the
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The Group’s own non- performance risk for interest-bearing bank
borrowings and other borrowings as at 31 December 2022 was
assessed to be insignificant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

42.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF ReMITAREZATEFRE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of unlisted equity investments in plastic materials
dyeing have been estimated based on assumption that are not
supported by observable market prices or rates. The valuation
requires the Directors of the Company to make estimates using
the enterprise value to earnings before interest and tax ratio of
comparable listed companies adjusted for discount on lack of
marketability. The Directors believe that the estimated fair value
resulting from the valuation methodology, which are recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position, and the related
changes in fair values, which are recorded in other comprehensive
income, are reasonable and they were appropriate values at the end
of the reporting period.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period on recurring basis, which categorised into the
three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair Value
Measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets and liabilities at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are
inputs for which market date are available.

(#)
REBHACHFELTRANRE ZAF
BNERYEERAFHHERIH X
X2 RRMEE - £ITHER AR A
EXEFERANELBRLETARZER
EELLE BB A& A L XM b A
WEEHRZ TS RBUEZ T RBE -
EEMEHETEMERZMAFTAFE
(BIIAZAFBRRRER) R A FEZH
RED (HIAEMErEKER)EES
B UYARRERRREE 2EE-

AT ERE

TRITAEERREPRIZEFTEE
EGBZEMIAZAFE AR
TARBRBEMBHRELENFIZRA
FEFAEMAEZ=ZEAAFEER -~
FEAEMBEZERDIZ2RUTHE
Bt ABE s TBEEERERIEE

M -

- E-BREE ERE-EBETE
ATE DR EABARSRE
ERABEEED S AEAER
B o

- F_EHE ERE_EHEIE
NFE-BRENEE AT
BREBINZHE URTEATH
ERGICERHE - TABER
Az BBEEARBRBOTISEUE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 =T=—F+=-A=+—H

42.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF

' FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant

2.z IREZATE

T E
(%)

N EBR(E)

- BEERYE ERTABREIHZ

unobservable inputs.

ERREBEAHERFE

2022 2021
“B-CF —E--F
Fair value Fair value
at 31 at 31
December December
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
iy S
= bt 2 It b3
t=A tZA
=t=HZ =t-H2
AVHE £-F EZFE £ZRE NTE £-E £2E Ey
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER TER TR TR TET FEL TER TER
Equity investments at fair value through EBEM2EMRERATEAR
other comprehensive income (non- LRERE (T 3E)
recycling) (note 20) (Wit20) 70,300 = = 70,300 80,800 - - 80,800

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were no transfers
between level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into or out of Level 3 (2021:
Nil). The Group's policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which

they occur.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements:

Valuation techniques

AR FEERENES -

E=EATEHEZAM:

Significant

unobservable inputs

REBEEZZE-__F+ZA=+—HIHF
B TERE—EBERF_EBEE.
FEAKEHE—B(ZT_—F &) -
REBZREAREBREANREHR

Key data applied

HER % EXTABNGAZE TEEAYE
2022 2021
—E-CF —E--F
Unlisted equity investments in plastic Market comparable Discount for lack of
materials dyeing companies marketability 15.50% 16.60%
BHAEZ mHAELRAA BRzmERBIL
FEMRARE g
EV/EBIT ratio
EV/EBITH & 17.55 14.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

42.FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to the
discount for lack of marketability. As at 31 December 2022, it was
estimated that with all other variables held constant, a decrease/
increase in discount for lack of marketability by 5% would have
increased/decreased the Group’s other comprehensive income by
HK$4,100,000 (2021: HK$4,900,000).

The movements during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair value
measurements are follows:

B FE R AR B

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

R.gMIRZAFERE

(4)
2B E R (4)

AFEFEHEBRE TSR ENINE R
- _ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—H" &
FAAEEMEBERIFETNE BRZWER
MR D IN5% S ARER 2 H
fib 2 T U 25 38 00,8 4,100,000 7T (=
T~ —4F : 4,900,000/ 7T) °

FRAE=ZEBRAFEAEZEHREHNT :

2022 2021
—E_-— —ET-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Unlisted equity investments: FLETHRARE :

At 1 January Hn—A—H 80,800 118,100

Net unrealised loss in fair value recognised REM 2 HEIRZFRERAFEZ
in other comprehensive income AEEERFHE (10,500) (37,300)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 70,300 80,800

TP EER NMFRARSEEERAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank loans and
cash and short term deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from the Group’s
operations.

The Group’s activities expose it to risks associated with the financial
instruments include market risk (including foreign currency risk,
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. Management of
the Company and its subsidiaries coordinates with the board
of Directors at its headquarter in Hong Kong that monitors and
manages the risk exposures and provides written policies to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

(@) Foreign currency risk
The Group adopted Hong Kong dollars (HK$) as the currency
for presentation purposes. The functional currencies of
the Company and its PRC subsidiaries are HK$ and RMB
respectively.

Some of the trading transactions of the Group were
denominated in United States dollar (US$). The Group's
exposure to currency risk arises from financial instruments
that are monetary items or from financial instruments
denominated not in the functional currencies of the respective
entities within the Group, which are HK$ and RMB. For the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no sales of the
Group were denominated in foreign currencies other than the
functional currencies of the Group.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of
the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets
and liabilities translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing
rate are as follows:

B FE R AR B

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

A3. B EREE B R RBUR

(48)

(a)

SN RLER (%)
RIS HK - A B LA SNE 5HE
THESAERE MRS B MK
PEERERET

2022 2021
—E-C -5
US$’000 Us$'000
TER FET

Monetary financial assets EMSREE
Other receivables H th & W skE 11 1
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERREIER 2,578 300
2,589 311
Monetary financial liabilities E¥sHEeE = -
Current net exposure RENEFERE 2,589 31

Sensitivity analysis of currency risk

The management considered that the currency risk to be low
as the exchange rates of US$ relative to HK$ or RMB were not
significant for both 2022 and 2021. Therefore, no hedging
or similar measures have been implemented by the Group.
At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the impact of the Group’s
exposure to currency risk was minimal. Accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis was presented.

_— ——

BB B R R T

AR ZEZZFRZF=_—FE
HHBTRARBE ZERFSHI T
HE THERBINERBRER -
Eift - ANE B AR EIE R REL
B R —_FR-_T-—F
TZA=1+—8 AEBEIIEERER
CREEBEM AL WEZT R
Eo T o
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31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to the risk of changes in market interest
rate in relation to bank borrowings at fixed and variable
interest rates (note 27) and bank balances (note 25). It is
the Group’s policy to manage its interest costs using a mix
of fixed and variable rate debts, and to minimise fair value
interest rate risk in relation to borrowings. At 31 December
2022, approximately 74.2% (2021: 54.0%) of the Group's
bank borrowings bore interest at fixed rates. The Group
has no significant interest-bearing assets apart from bank
balances with their interest rate profile disclosed in note 25
to the financial statements. The interest rate profiles of the
bank borrowings are disclosed in note 27 to the financial
statements .

Sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, for 100 basis points (“bp”, whereas
1 bp is equivalent to 0.01%) increase and decrease in interest
rate as the sensitivity rate, assuming that the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
had been outstanding for the whole year. A positive number
below indicates an increase in post-tax profit and total equity
where interest rates generally decreased by 100 bp. For an
increase in 100 bp, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit and total equity and the balances below
would be negative.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk (continued)

+ 100 bp impact

31 December 2022

B FE R AR B

T —F+=-A=1+—H

A3 MBHEREE BT RER

(4)
(b) F% @B ()

T 5 /2 2 8RB 0 17 (4D

- 100 bp impact

EF100EE S 2 E THR100EES &
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F ZZE-C —ET-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FTHET FH&T
(Decrease)/increase in R 77 18 345 A
profit after tax C:2IVE: Vi (986) (2,004) 986 2,004
(Decrease)/increase in
total equity A CRd) /& (986) (2,004) 986 2,004

The sensitivity to interest rates of the Group has increased
during the current year mainly due to the increase in variable
rate borrowings. The analysis has been presented on the same
basis for both years.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk on its unlisted
equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, which are determined by reference to
the EBIT multiple of comparable listed companies in the same
industry as set out in note 20 to the financial statements.

The Group’s unlisted equity investments are held for long-term
strategic purpose, which are confined to equity investments
with key operations in plastic materials dyeing industry in
Mainland China, and have risk and return profiles different
from the core operations of the Group. The performance of
the respective investees has been monitored by the Group’s
delegates appointed to the respective board of directors of
the respective investees, and is assessed by independent
professional valuer at least semi-annually by referring to the
performance of other listed entities with similar business
operations, comparing with the financial data of those
investments available to the Group, and adjusted for the
marketability of these investments relative to the benchmark
data available in the market.

(c)

_— ——

RAFEASEHNENGFRED
g HEBEFHNENEESE
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T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(0)

Equity price risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis of other price risk

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.
The following table illustrates the sensitivity if the prices
of the respective equity investments had been 5% (2021:
5%) higher/lower, as a result of the changes in the multiple
of enterprise value to earnings before interest and tax of
comparable listed companies in the same industry, at the
reporting date. A positive number below indicates an increase
in post- tax profit and/or total equity, if any, where price of
the equity investments increased by 5%. For a decrease in 5%,
there would be an opposite impact on the profit and/or total
equity and the balances below would be negative.

43. MHEREE BT RER

(48)

(c)

RABERR (&)

H 14 (B 15 )2 % 5 BB 72T
THHEESTERIERNRE A H
WA BEERBRMETE - FXRIR
WEBRERTEITELERETA
RIZCEBELEFHAMNEF Z RE
BHIRERABRENEER RS
BH EFTR5% (Z 2 - —4F
5%)EEE o TR EHINER
BRI E 7 B IN5%E 6 B
BMEsFRk,/SBERA(NE) G
B o 8 T BE5% » Bl & 5 R K 5)
BRAEXBESREENEREE
mrRNEHRERER -

+ 5% impact - 5% impact
A% ZHE TRR5% 2 % &
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F ZZE-C —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FTHET FAET
Increase/(decrease) in B B 18 5 R an
profit after tax OR ) = - - -
Increase/(decrease) in AR A I CR )
total equity 3,164 3,636 (3,164) (3,636)

The Group’s sensitivity to unlisted equity investments has
applied the same basis for both years.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group. The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables (note 22), other receivables (note 23) and contract
assets (note 24). The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from cash and cash equivalents and bills receivables is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial institutions
for which the Group considers to have low credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position. As at 31 December 2022, the
Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose
the Group to credit risk.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
in industries or countries in which the customers operate.
Significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual customers. At
the end of the reporting period 0.3% (2021: 0.2%) and 3.2%
(2021: 3.1%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade and bills
receivables (including lease receivables) at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix. As
the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
services line). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade and bills receivables
(including lease receivables) are written-off if past due for
more than one year and are not subject to enforcement
activity. The Group does not hold collateral as security over
these balances.

31 December 2022
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

43. MHEREE BT RER

(d)

Credit risk (continued)

ECLs rates are based on actual loss experience over the past
3 years, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
and an assessment of both the current and forecast of general
economic conditions at the end of the reporting period
over the expected lives of the receivables. At 31 December
2022, lifetime ECLs of trade and bills receivables (including
lease receivables) in the amount of HK$41,388,000 (2021:
HK$41,166,000) was provided as amount of impairment
measured under the ECLs model.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade and bills receivables (including lease
receivables) using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2022

(d)

(48)

EERE (&)

EHEEBERDNERBE=ZF
NERBBELER (HEBKAREE
RETHAR) RRERFBEHRF
Bz REHKRYE B AT R AR REEL
EBERZFAG T ==2F+=A
=t+—HB AEBEBFIEERER
LEE(BEEREEE) 22 HEH
=B 5185 541,388,0008 L (=&
——% 141,166,000/ L) ' tEAIR
BrEHREEEAGFEZRESRE -

ATEIBREEAEBERESER
SEREERERE (BFERKHE
E)EERBEEZ AR -

R-ZE-_—_f+=-A=+—H

Trade and bills receivables (including lease receivables)

EXRFREE (BEEYESR)
Days past due
BHAE
More than More than
30 but 120 but
Not yet due Less than less than less than More than
or current 30 days 120 days 360 days 360 days Total
%A30A %iM20A
REHHEH DH308  EHR1208  BHH360A %A360A @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TEx TER
Expected credit loss rate ~ AEIEEBAR 0.38% 0.63% 0.84% 53.51% 90.43% 27.99%
Gross carrying amount FHARE 61,202 14,529 22,043 12,020 38,093 147,887
Expected credit loss RHEEER 234 92 184 6,432 34,446 41,388
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT A3. U HBREBEEEERBR
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued) (%48)
(d) Credit risk (continued) (d) EERR (&)
As at 31 December 2021 N—_ZTE—-—F+—-_A=+—H

Trade and bills receivables (including lease receivables)

RUERRRR (BREKEE)

Days past due
BHAY
More than More than
30 but 120 but
Not yet due Less than less than less than More than

or current 30 days 120 days 360 days 360 days Total

%1308 %1208
e R SH30B  BARI08  BHR360H %3608 @&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAL TAL TAT TR TEL TAL

Expected credit loss rate  EHIEEERE 1.12% 1.59% 7.67% 30.88% 95.18% 21.53%
Gross carrying amount  BEEA(E 96,385 10,443 10,409 48,630 25,321 191,188
Expected credit loss HEEEER 1,084 166 798 15,017 24,101 41,166
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31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Liquidity risk

The Group manages its liquidity through maintaining a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of bank borrowings, banking facilities, and other
interest-bearing borrowings. In management of the liquidity
risk, the Group maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
considered adequate by the management to finance the
Group's operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuation
in cash flows. The Group regularly monitors its liquidity
requirements and its compliance of financial covenants, and
ensures sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer terms. As at 31
December 2022, the Group did not have any available secured
banking facilities not yet drawn down and the unsecured
banking facilities not yet drawn down by the Group were
approximately HK$39,041,000 (2021: HK$14,640,000).

Liquidity needs are monitored on a day-to-day basis.
Long-term liquidity needs for a 360-day lookout period are
identified monthly. Funding for long-term liquidity needs
will be considered when there is any potential investment
identified. For term loans subject to repayment on demand
clauses which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion,
the following table shows the cash outflow based on the
contractual repayment schedule and, separately, the impact of
the timing of the cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke
their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period for the
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay:

B FE R AR B

31 December 2022 —ZE-——F+=-A=+—H

A3 MBHEREE BT RER

(48)

(e) mEBMER (B)
TRADRBEDRAEEEBE
EHTEHOEMAZHE  DRE
ARKTRR S KA % E T 48
EXERBFEHAEE

As at 31 December 2022

W-B--%#+-A=t+-H
Total
Carrying undiscounted  Less than 1to3 3 months 1to  More than
amount cash flows 1 month months  to 1year 5 years 5 years

AFRRE
REE REZE OMMER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR

123 3MEAZIE 125% BB5E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FEx TEx TER

Financial liabilities ~ £ REE

Bank borrowings BOEE
- at variable rates - R E 25,300 25,949 7,751 7,746 10,452 = -
— at fixed rates ~RETHE 72,659 74,044 - - 74,044 - -
Trade and bills payables EREHRER 69,739 69,739 33,598 8,859 27,282 - -
Accrued liabilities and BB ERHE
other payables 5B 218,612 218,612 50,434 3,895 164,283 - -
Lease liabilities HEBE 667 700 29 58 263 350 -
386,977 389,044 91,812 20,558 276,324 350 -
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Liquidity risk (continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
UE e R

31 December 2022 —Z-—F+_-A=+—H

43.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued) (%48)

43. MHEREE BT RER

(e) MENVERBR ()
As at 31 December 2021
RZZEZ-%+ZA=+-H

Total
Carrying  undiscounted Less than Tt03 3 months Tto  Morethan
amount cash flows 1 month months to 1 year 5 years 5 years
RTRES
REE nERE  SMER 1£3@R 3@AZIE 1255 BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThER THER ThER TER THER THER THER
Financial liabilities ~ £®E®
Bank borrowings ROEE
- at variable rates - REHHE 91,610 92,356 8,918 17,898 65,540 - -
- at fixed rates ~HRETH®E 107,360 109,752 2,837 756 106,159 - -
Trade and bills payables FE(JEEFI R E 8 78,607 78,607 32,560 14,387 31,660 - -
Accrued liabilities and ~ [Eif BB RE A
other payables JER B 228,986 228,986 40,602 3,505 184,879 - -
Lease liabilties BERR 1,470 1,560 67 134 603 756 -
508,033 511,261 84,984 36,680 388,841 756 -

The undiscounted cash flows of the other borrowings and the
current portions of bank borrowings, trade payables, accruals,
other payables, and deposits received are approximate to
their carrying amount, as the impact of discounting is not

significant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Capital management

The Group’s capital management objectives are:

(i)  to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern;

(i)  to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders;

(iii)  to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital;

(iv)  to support the Group's sustainable growth; and

(v)  to provide capital for the purpose of potential mergers
and acquisitions.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain and adjust the capital structure, the Group will adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, issue new shares, buy
back its shares, issue new debts or redeem existing debts.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements.

There was no change in the objectives, policies or process for
managing the capital during the years ended 31 December
2022 and 2021.

31 December 2022

B FE R AR B

T —F+=-A=1+—H

A3 MBHEREE BT RER

(48)

(f)

_— ——

RNz
AEEZARERARMT -

() REAEEBRNAUUFE

g

(i) AR REHR R R E A F
AR R &

(i) RFZBEARBUEIRE
PN N,

vy XRHAEEZAHEER:
&

(v) REBEAHIRWBREER -

AEEERREARBYREBELE
BREMEREECRBRMEERER
EAXARB - BRTHRFRAEEAR
B AEEEABEINTRERZK
B BITHk - BERD - BITH
EBLERREGES -

AR A S E AR (AT BT B )
HNERE ARE -

REBEEZZE-__FR_ZFT=-—F

TZA=T-RIEFERN #HEE
REAERZBR BERSLEFRF -

FER FFRREEEERAA

269



270

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES (continued)

(f)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors its capital using gearing ratio. The Group
expects to maintain its gearing ratio at less than 50%. The
gearing ratios as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were as

43. MHEREE BT RER

(48)

() EXEE(E)

AEBESRAEABBLRETHSE
Ko REEBHHEFEEETNGEL
RES0% AN - RZE - —F K=

follows: E—F+_A=T—RAZEESA
BELLEMT
2022 2021
—E=-= —ET-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Current liabilities REEE

Bank borrowings RITIEE 97,959 198,970
Lease liabilities HEERE 326 750
98,285 199,720

Non-current liabilities FREAE
Lease liabilities HEBE 341 720
341 720
Total interest-bearing debts FTEEKAE 98,626 200,440
Total equity FLY N 1,075,507 1,182,810
Gearing ratio EESBLER 9.2% 16.9%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dp e

—E-=F+=-A=+—H

44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

OF THE COMPANY

31 December 2022

44 KA BB R RBE

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 7 F#& T FAET

Non-current assets kRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RBAR 2= 626,772 654,060

Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 49,270 92,425
Prepayments TE T RIR 509 709
Cash and cash equivalents BehEFRIREIER 25,548 24,784
75,327 117,918
Current liabilities REBEE

Bank borrowings RITEE 27(b) 25,300 91,610
Accrued liabilities and other payables FE&T & & K H fib JE 1~ ;& 531 1,338
25,831 92,948
Net current assets RBEEFE 49,496 24,970
Total assets BWEE 702,099 771,978
Total assets less current liabilities REERFABERE 676,268 679,030
Total liabilities weE 25,831 92,948
Net assets EEFE 676,268 679,030

Capital and reserves EXRf#EE
Share capital &N 34 30,357 30,357
Reserves i 35 645,911 648,673
Total equity BAMEE 676,268 679,030

“—ECCEFR HFERREEBRAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2022

T =Ff+=-A=1+—H

45. CONTINGENCIES

(a)

Legal contingencies

Legal proceedings were in process against NUET(JS), an 82%
indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
Hong Kong. Two existing shareholders (each a “Plaintiff”,
Mr. YIN Yong Xiang and Mr. SUN lJia Qing, both are the
existing directors of Zhenjiang New Universe and each
holding 8% of the issued share capital of NUET(JS)) actioned
separately against NUET(JS) and alleged that NUET(JS)
should immediately pay each Plaintiff accrued and unpaid
dividends of approximately HK$26,579,000 (approximately
RMB22,478,000) and interest thereon in the amount of
approximately RMB4,058,000 (the “Actions”). In connection
with the Actions, Jiangsu Zhenjiang Intermediate People’s
Court (the “Court”) had approved each of the Plaintiffs’
applications to grant each of them an asset preservation order
to preserve (the “Asset Preservation”) 38.54% of the equity
rights of Zhenjiang New Universe, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of NUET(JS) in the PRC, with effect from 18 March 2022 and,
unless extended, will last until the earlier of 17 March 2025 or
until the Asset Preservation is lifted by the Court. Although the
Court handed down two civil judgments dated 4 January 2023
and 5 January 2023 in respect of the two Actions respectively,
both Plaintiffs did not admit to the judgments of the Court
and have each submitted a civil appeal both dated 29 January
2023 to request for (i) the revocation of the judgments of the
Court; and (ii) NUET(JS) to bear the respective judged costs of
the Actions.

The civil appeals will be transferred to the Jiangsu Province
High People’s Court in Mainland China for further trial
and hearing. As such Actions are still ongoing, the Asset
Preservations will continue to remain in effect.

The Group has already recognised the amounts being claimed
under the Actions as dividends payable to NCI of a subsidiary
under other payables in the consolidated financial statements
(note 29) but no provision has been recognised for any interest
claimed under the Actions on those accumulative and rolling
amounts payable to the non-controlling interests without fixed
terms of payment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

45. CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(a)

Legal contingencies (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the amounts accrued in the
consolidated financial statements for both Plaintiffs were
approximately HK$53,504,000 (2021: HK$53,158,000).

Environmental contingencies

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
subsidiaries have provided regulated medical waste treatment
and disposal services to hospitals and medical clinics, and
provided hazardous industrial waste treatment services
and industrial sewage treatment and disposal services in
Jiangsu Province, the PRC. The related operations require
valid operating permission licences for processing specific
categories of hazardous waste and/or regulated medical
waste and industrial sewage treatment services issued by
the Environmental Protection Department of the Jiangsu
Province, the PRC. To the best knowledge of the Directors,
each of the Group's subsidiaries which carries out treatment
operations for hazardous industrial waste treatment and/
or regulated medical waste and industrial sewage treatment
services has complied with the relevant regulations to ensure
continuous renewal of the licences concerned with best
efforts, or otherwise, the subsidiary would cease its operations
temporarily until the relevant licence(s) is being issued. Save
as disclosed therein, for the year ended 31 December 2022
and up to the date of this report, the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC have not incurred significant expenditures for
environmental remediation and have not currently involved
in any significant environmental remediation. In addition, the
Company and the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC have not
accrued any amounts for environmental remediation relating
to its operations. Under existing legislations and regulations,
the management believes that there are no probable liabilities
that will have a material adverse effect to the financial position
or operating results of the Group.

Save as disclosed herein, there were no other significant contingent
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

31 December 2022
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS Rk MY 5

31 December 2022 =T=—F+=-A=+—H

46. NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period:

(a) The Directors resolved on an unanimous intention to dispose
of the lossmaking operation(s) of the Group, including but
not limited to the possible disposal of the operating segment
of the Group’s environmental equipment construction and
installation services.

(b)  The Directors proposed a final dividend. Details are disclosed
in note 12(a).

47. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the
current year's presentation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

48.POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of new or amended standards, which are not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2022 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These developments
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning
on or after
HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts 1 January 2023
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of 1 January 2023
financial statements: Classification of
liabilities as current or non-current
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation 1 January 2023
of financial statements and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2, Making materiality
judgements: Disclosure of accounting
policies
Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, 1 January 2023
changes in accounting estimates and errors:
Definition of accounting estimates
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: 1 January 2023

Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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48.POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2022 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these developments is expected to be in the period of
initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

49. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors of the Company on 24 March 2023.

* For identification purpose only
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